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CHAPTER 1

Financial Reporting and Accounting Standards

ASSIGNMENT CLASSIFICATION TABLE

Topics Questions Cases
1. Global markets. 1
2. Environment of accounting. 2,3,4 4,5,7
3. Objective of financial reporting. 56,7,8,9, 10 2
4. Standard-setting organizations. 11,12, 13, 14, 1,3,6
15,16, 17,18
5. Financial reporting challenges. 19, 20, 21, 22, 8,9,10
23, 24,25
6. Ethical issues. 26 11,12, 16
*7. Authoritative U.S. pronouncements 27, 28, 29, 30, 31, 13, 14,15
and policy-setting bodies. 32, 33, 34, 35, 36,
37, 38

*These questions and cases address material in the appendix to the chapter.
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ASSIGNMENT CHARACTERISTICS TABLE

Level of Time
ltem Description Difficulty (minutes)
CA1-1 IFRS and standard-setting. Simple 5-10
CA1-2 IFRS and standard-setting. Simple 5-10
CA1-3 Financial reporting and accounting standards. Simple 15-20
CA1-4 Financial accounting. Simple 15-20
CA1-5 Need for IASB. Simple 15-20
CA1-6 IASB role in standard-setting. Simple 15-20
CA1-7 Accounting numbers and the environment. Simple 10-15
CA1-8 Politicalization of IFRS. Complex 15-20
CA1-9 Models for setting IFRS. Simple 10-15
CA1-10 Economic consequences. Moderate 25-35
CA1-11 Rule-making Issues. Complex 20-25
CA1-12 Financial reporting pressures. Moderate 25-35
*CA1-13 GAAP terminology. Moderate 20-30
*CA1-14 Accounting organizations and documents issued. Simple 3-5
*CA1-15 Accounting pronouncements. Simple 5-7
CA1-16 GAAP and economic consequences. Moderate 25-35
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ANSWERS TO QUESTIONS

1. World markets are becoming increasingly intertwined. The tremendous variety and volume of both
exported and imported goods indicates the extensive involvement in international trade. As a
result, the move towards adoption of international financial reporting standards has and will continue
in the future.

2. Financial accounting measures, classifies, and summarizes in report form those activities and that
information which relate to the enterprise as a whole for use by parties both internal and external
to a business enterprise. Managerial accounting also measures, classifies, and summarizes in report
form enterprise activities, but the communication is for the use of internal, managerial parties, and
relates more to subsystems of the entity. Managerial accounting is management decision oriented
and directed more toward product line, division, and profit center reporting.

3. Financial statements generally refer to the four basic financial statements: statement of financial
position, income statement, statement of cash flows, and statement of changes in equity. Financial
reporting is a broader concept; it includes the basic financial statements and any other means of
communicating financial and economic data to interested external parties.

4. If a company’s financial performance is measured accurately, fairly, and on a timely basis, the right
managers and companies are able to attract investment capital. To provide unreliable and irrelevant
information leads to poor capital allocation which adversely affects the securities market.

5. The objective of general purpose financial reporting is to provide financial information about the
reporting entity that is useful to present and potential equity investors, lenders, and other creditors
in making decisions in their capacity as capital providers.

6. General purpose financial statements provide financial reporting information to a wide variety of
users. To be cost effective in providing this information, general purpose financial statements provide
at the least cost the most useful information possible.

7. Shareholders, creditors, suppliers, employees, and regulators all use general purpose financial
statements. The primary user group is capital providers (shareholders and creditors).

8. The proprietary perspective is not considered appropriate because this perspective generally does
not reflect a realistic view of the financial reporting environment. Instead the entity perspective
is adopted which is consistent with the present business environment where most companies
engaged in financial reporting have substance distinct from their investors.

9. The objective of financial reporting is primarily to provide information to investors interested in
assessing the company’s ability to generate net cash inflows and management’s ability to protect
and enhance the capital providers’ investments. Financial reporting should help investors assess
the amounts, timing and uncertainty of prospective cash inflows.

10. A single set of high quality accounting standards ensures adequate comparability. Investors are
able to make better investment decisions if they receive financial information from a U.S. company
that is comparable to an international competitor.

11. The two organizations involved in international standard-setting are IOSCO (International Organi-
zation of Securities Commissions) and the IASB (International Accounting Standards Board.) The
IOSCO does not set accounting standards, but ensures that the global markets can operate in an
efficient and effective manner. Conversely, the IASB’s mission is to develop a single set of high
quality, understandable and international financial reporting standards (IFRSs) for general purpose
financial statements.
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Questions Chapter 1 (Continued)

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

The Financial Accounting standards Board (FASB) is an independent organization whose mission
is to establish and improve standards of financial accounting and reporting for U.S. companies.

The purpose of the IOSCO is to facilitate cross-border cooperation, reduce global systemic risk,
protect investors, and ensure fair and efficient securities markets.

The mission of the IASB is to develop, in the public interest, a single set of high quality, under-
standable and international financial reporting standards (IFRSs) for general purpose financial
statements.

The IASB preliminary views are based on research and analysis conducted by the IASB staff.
IASB exposure drafts are issued after the Board evaluates research and public response to
preliminary views. IASB standards are issued after the Board evaluates responses to the exposure
draft.

IASB standards are financial accounting standards issued by the IASB and are referred to as
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The IASB Framework for financial reporting
sets forth fundamental objectives and concepts that the Board uses in developing future standards
of financial reporting. The intent of the Framework is to form a cohesive set of interrelated con-
cepts that will serve as tools for solving existing and emerging problems in a consistent manner.

International Financial Reporting Standards are the most authoritative, followed by International
Financial Reporting Interpretations then the IASB framework.

The International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) applies a principles-based
approach in providing interpretative guidance. The IFRIC issues interpretations that cover newly
identified financial reporting issues not specifically dealt with in IFRS, and issues where conflicting
interpretations have developed, or seem likely to develop in the absence of authoritative guidance.

Some major challenges facing the accounting profession relate to the following items:
Nonfinancial measurement—how to report significant key performance measurements such as
customer satisfaction indexes, backlog information and reject rates on goods purchased.
Forward-looking information—how to report more future oriented information.
Soft assets—how to report on intangible assets, such as market know-how, market dominance,
and well-trained employees.
Timeliness—how to report more real-time information.

The sources of pressure are innumerable, but the most intense and continuous pressure to change
or influence the development of IFRS come from individual companies, industry associations,
governmental agencies, practicing accountants, academicians, professional accounting organizations,
and investing public.
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Questions Chapter 1 (Continued)

21,

22,

23.

24,

25.

26.

*27.

*28.

IFRS are considered principles-based accounting. These standards provide more general guidance
by starting with broad objectives, outcomes, and principles without providing detailed guidance.
U.S. GAAP (referred to as rules-based accounting) is based on the assumption that management
needs detailed accounting guidance to ensure that the transaction is reported consistently and
appropriately.

Economic consequences means the impact of accounting reports on the wealth positions of issuers
and users of financial information and the decision-making behavior resulting from that impact. In
other words, accounting information impacts various users in many different ways which leads to
wealth transfers among these various groups.

If politics plays an important role in the development of accounting rules, the rules will be subject
to manipulation for the purpose of furthering whatever policy prevails at the moment. No matter
how well intentioned the rule maker may be, if information is designed to indicate that investing in
a particular enterprise involves less risk than it actually does, or is designed to encourage invest-
ment in a particular segment of the economy, financial reporting will suffer an irreplaceable loss of
credibility.

No one particular proposal is expected in answer to this question. The students’ proposals, however,
should be defensible relative to the following criteria:

(1) The method must be efficient, responsive, and expeditious.

(2) The method must be free of bias and be above or insulated from pressure groups.

(3) The method must command widespread support if it does not have legislative authority.

(4) The method must produce sound yet practical accounting principles or standards.

The students’ proposals might take the form of alterations of the existing methodology, an accoun-
ting court (as proposed by Leonard Spacek), or governmental device.

Concern exists about fraudulent financial reporting because it can undermine the entire financial
reporting process. Failure to provide information to users that is accurate can lead to inappropriate
allocations of resources in our economy. In addition, failure to detect massive fraud can lead to
additional governmental oversight of the accounting profession.

The expectations gap is the difference between what people think accountants should be doing and
what accountants think they can do. It is a difficult gap to close. The accounting profession recognizes
it must play an important role in narrowing this gap. To meet the needs of society, the profession is
continuing its efforts in developing accounting standards, such as numerous pronouncements issued
by the IASB, to serve as guidelines for recording and processing business transactions in the
changing economic environment.

Accountants must perceive the moral dimensions of some situations because IFRS does not
define or cover all specific features that are to be reported in financial statements. In these instances
accountants must choose among alternatives. These accounting choices influence whether par-
ticular stakeholders may be harmed or benefited. Moral decision-making involves awareness of
potential harm or benefit and taking responsibility for the choices.

The purpose of the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) is to help develop and stan-
dardize financial information presented to stockholders. The SEC has broad powers to prescribe
the accounting practices and standards to be employed by companies within its jurisdiction.

The Financial Accounting Standards Board’s (FASB) mission is to establish and improve stan-
dards of financial accounting and reporting for the guidance of the public, including issuers,
auditors, and users of financial information.
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Questions Chapter 1 (Continued)

*29.

*30.

*31.

*32.

*33.

*34.

Accounting Research Bulletins were pronouncements on accounting practice issued by the
Committee on Accounting Procedure between 1939 and 1959; since 1964 they have been
recognized as accepted accounting practice unless superseded in part or in whole by an opinion of
the APB or an FASB standard. APB Opinions were issued by the Accounting Principles Board
during the years 1959 through 1973 and, unless superseded by FASB Statements, are recognized
as accepted practice and constitute the requirements to be followed by all business enterprises.
FASB Statements are pronouncements of the Financial Accounting Standards Board and currently
represent the accounting profession’s authoritative pronouncements on financial accounting and
reporting practices.

The explanation should note that generally accepted accounting principles or standards have
“substantial authoritative support.” They consist of accounting practices, procedures, theories,
concepts, and methods which are recognized by a large majority of practicing accountants as well
as other members of the business and financial community. Bulletins issued by the Committee on
Accounting Procedure, opinions rendered by the Accounting Principles Board, and statements
issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board constitute “substantial authoritative support.”

It was believed that FASB Statements would carry greater weight than APB Opinions because of
significant differences between the FASB and the APB, namely: (1) The FASB has a smaller mem-
bership of full-time compensated members; (2) the FASB has greater autonomy and increased
independence; and (3) the FASB has broader representation than the APB.

The technical staff of the FASB conducts research on an identified accounting topic and prepares
a “preliminary views” that is released by the Board for public reaction. The Board analyzes and
evaluates the public response to the preliminary views, deliberates on the issues, and issues an
“exposure draft” for public comment. The preliminary views merely presents all facts and alternatives
related to a specific topic or problem, whereas the exposure draft is a tentative “statement.” After
studying the public’s reaction to the exposure draft, the Board may reevaluate its position, revise
the draft, and vote on the issuance of a final statement.

Statements of financial accounting standards constitute generally accepted accounting principles
and dictate acceptable financial accounting and reporting practices as promulgated by the FASB.
The first standards statement was issued by the FASB in 1973.

Statements of financial accounting concepts do not establish generally accepted accounting
principles. Rather, the concepts statements set forth fundamental objectives and concepts that the
FASB intends to use as a basis for developing future standards. The concepts serve as guidelines
in solving existing and emerging accounting problems in a consistent, sound manner. Both the
standards statements and the concepts statements may develop through the same process from
discussion memorandum, to exposure draft, to a final approved statement.

Rule 203 of the Code of Professional Conduct prohibits a member of the AICPA from expressing
an opinion that financial statements conform with GAAP if those statements contain a material
departure from an accounting principle promulgated by the FASB, or its predecessors, the APB
and the CAP, unless the member can demonstrate that because of unusual circumstances the
financial statements would otherwise have been misleading. Failure to follow Rule 203 can lead to
a loss of a CPA’s license to practice. This rule is extremely important because it requires auditors
to follow FASB standards.
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Questions Chapter 1 (Continued)

*35.

*36.

*37.

*38.

The accounting Standards Codification (or more simply, (the Codification) provides in one place all
the authoritative literature related to a particular topic. The Codification does not include nonessential
information such as redundant document summaries, basis for conclusions sections, and historical
content. It comprises all literature that is considered authoritative; all other accounting literature is
considered non-authoritative.

The chairman of the FASB was indicating that too much attention is put on the bottom line and not
enough on the development of quality products. Managers should be less concerned with short-
term results and be more concerned with the long-term results. In addition, short-term tax benefits
often lead to long-term problems.

The second part of his comment relates to accountants being overly concerned with following a set
of rules, so that if litigation ensues, they will be able to argue that they followed the rules exactly.
The problem with this approach is that accountants want more and more rules with less reliance
on professional judgment. Less professional judgment leads to inappropriate use of accounting
procedures in difficult situations.

In the accountants’ defense, recent legal decisions have imposed vast new liability on accountants.
The concept of accountant’s liability that has emerged in these cases is broad and expansive; the
number of classes of people to whom the accountant is held responsible are almost limitless.

FASB Staff Positions (FSP) are used to provide interpretive guidance and to make minor amend-
ments to existing standards. The due process used to issue a FSP is the same used to issue a
new standard.

The Emerging Issues Task Force often arrives at consensus conclusions on certain financial report-
ing issues. These consensus conclusions are then looked upon as GAAP by practitioners because
the SEC has indicated that it will view consensus solutions as preferred accounting and will require
persuasive justification for departing from them. Thus, at least for public companies which are sub-
ject to SEC oversight, consensus solutions developed by the Emerging Issues Task Force are
followed unless subsequently overturned by the FASB. It should be noted that the FASB took
greater direct ownership of GAAP established by the EITF by requiring that consensus positions be
ratified by the FASB.
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TIME AND PURPOSE OF CONCEPTS FOR ANALYSIS

CA 1-1 (Time 5-10 minutes)
Purpose—to provide the student with an opportunity to answer questions about IFRS and standard
setting.

CA 1-2 (Time 5-10 minutes)
Purpose—to provide the student with an opportunity to answer questions about IFRS and standard
setting.

CA 1-3 (Time 15—20 minutes)
Purpose—to provide the student with an opportunity to answer questions about IFRS and standard
setting.

CA 1-4 (Time 15-20 minutes)

Purpose—to provide the student with an opportunity to distinguish between financial accounting and
managerial accounting, identify major financial statements, and differentiate financial statements and
financial reporting.

CA 1-5 (Time 15—20 minutes)
Purpose—to provide the student with an opportunity to evaluate the viewpoint of removing mandatory
accounting rules and allowing each company to voluntarily disclose the information it desired.

CA 1-6 (Time 15—20 minutes)

Purpose—to provide the student with an opportunity to identify the sponsoring organization of the IASB,
the method by which the IASB arrives at a decision, and the types and the purposes of documents
issued by the IASB.

CA 1-7 (Time 10—15 minutes)
Purpose—to provide the student with an opportunity to describe how reported accounting numbers
might affect an individual's perceptions and actions.

CA 1-8 (Time 15—20 minutes)

Purpose—to provide the student with an opportunity to focus on the types of organizations involved in
the rule making process, what impact accounting has on the environment, and the environment’s
influence on accounting.

CA 1-9 (Time 10—15 minutes)

Purpose—to provide the student with an opportunity to focus on what type of rule-making environment
exists. In addition, this CA explores why user groups are interested in the nature of IFRS and why some
groups wish to issue their own rules.

CA 1-10 (Time 25—-35 minutes)
Purpose—to provide the student with the opportunity to discuss the role of government officials in
accounting rule-making.

CA 1-11 (Time 20—-25 minutes)
Purpose—to provide the student with an opportunity to consider the ethical dimensions of implementation
of a new accounting pronouncement.

CA 1-12 (Time 25-35 minutes)
Purpose—to provide the student with a writing assignment concerning the ethical issues related to
meeting earnings targets.
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Time and Purpose of Concepts for Analysis (Continued)

*CA 1-13 (Time 20-30 minutes)
Purpose—to provide the student with an opportunity to identify and define acronyms appearing in the
first chapter. Some are self-evident, others are not so.

*CA 1-14 (Time 3-5 minutes)

Purpose—to provide the student with an opportunity to identify the various documents issued by different
accounting organizations. This CA should help the student to better focus on the more important documents
issued in the financial reporting area.

*CA 1-15 (Time 5-7 minutes)
Purpose—to provide the student with an opportunity to match the descriptions of a number of authori-
tative pronouncements issued by rule-making bodies to the pronouncements.

CA 1-16 (Time 25—-35 minutes)
Purpose—to provide the student with an opportunity to comment on a letter sent by business execu-
tives to the FASB and Congress on the accounting for derivatives.
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SOLUTIONS TO CONCEPTS FOR ANALYSIS

CA 1-1
1.  True.

2. False. Any company claiming compliance with IFRS must comply with all standards and inter-
pretations, including disclosure requirements.

3. False. The SEC is the governmental body that has influence over the FASB, not the IASB.
4.  True.

5. False. The IASB has no government mandate and does follow a due process in issuing IFRS.

CA 1-2

1. False. In general, the IASB uses a principles-based approach to standard setting while the FASB
uses rules-based approach.

2. False. The objective emphasizes an entity perspective.

3. False. The objective of financial reporting is to provide financial information about the reporting
entity that is useful to present and potential equity investors, lenders, and other creditors in making
decisions in their capacity as capital providers.

4. False. International Accounting Standards were issued by the International Accounting Standards
Committee while International Financial Reporting Standards are issued by the IASB.

5. True.

CA1-3

1. (c); 2. (d); 3. (b); 4. (d); 5. (b); 6. (a); 7. (a); 8. (b); 9. (d); 10. (b).

CA 14

(a) Financial accounting is the process that culminates in the preparation of financial reports relative to
the enterprise as a whole for use by parties both internal and external to the enterprise. In contrast,
managerial accounting is the process of identification, measurement, accumulation, analysis, prepa-
ration, interpretation, and communication of financial information used by the management to plan,
evaluate, and control within an organization and to assure appropriate use of, and accountability for,
its resources.

(b) The financial statements most frequently provided are the statement of financial position, the
income statement, the statement of cash flows, and the statement of changes in equity.
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CA 1-4 (Continued)

(c) Financial statements are the principal means through which financial information is communicated to
those outside an enterprise. As indicated in (b), there are four major financial statements. However,
some financial information is better provided, or can be provided only, by means of financial
reporting other than formal financial statements. Financial reporting (other than financial statements
and related notes) may take various forms. Examples include the company president’s letter or
supplementary schedules in the corporate annual reports, prospectuses, reports filed with govern-
ment agencies, news releases, management’s forecasts, and descriptions of an enterprise’s social
or environmental impact.

CA1-5

It is not appropriate to abandon mandatory accounting rules and allow each company to voluntarily
disclose the type of information it considered important. Without a coherent body of accounting theory
and standards, each accountant or enterprise would have to develop its own theory structure and set of
practices, and readers of financial statements would have to familiarize themselves with every company’s
peculiar accounting and reporting practices. As a result, it would be almost impossible to prepare state-
ments that could be compared.

In addition, voluntary disclosure may not be an efficient way of disseminating information. A company is
likely to disclose less information if it has the discretion to do so. Thus, the company can reduce its cost
of assembling and disseminating information. However, an investor wishing additional information has
to pay to receive additional information desired. Different investors may be interested in different types
of information. Since the company may not be equipped to provide the requested information, it would
have to spend additional resources to fulfill such needs; or the company may refuse to furnish such
information if it's too costly to do so. As a result, investors may not get the desired information or they
may have to pay a significant amount of money for it. Furthermore, redundancy in gathering and
distributing information occurs when different investors ask for the same information at different points
in time. To the society as a whole, this would not be an efficient way of utilizing resources.

CA 1-6

(a) The International Accounting Standards Committee Foundation (IASCF) is the sponsoring organi-
zation of the IASB. The IASCF selects the members of the IASB and the Advisory Council, funds
their activities, and generally oversees the IASB’s activities.

The IASB follows a due process in establishing a typical IASB International Financial Reporting
Standard. The following steps are usually taken: (1) A topic or project is identified and placed on the
Board’s agenda. (2) Research and analysis are conducted by the IASB and a preliminary views
document is drafted and released. (3) A public hearing is often held. (4) The Board analyzes and
evaluates the public response and issues an exposure draft. (5) The Board studies the exposure
draft in relation to the public responses, revises the draft if necessary, gives the revised draft final
consideration and votes on issuance of an IFRS. The passage of a new accounting standard in the
form of an IASB Standard requires the support of nine of the fourteen Board members.

(b) The IASB issues three major types of pronouncements: International financial reporting standards,
Framework for financial reporting, and International financial reporting interpretations. Financial
accounting standards issued by the IASB are preferred to as International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS).
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CA 1-6 (Continued)

The International Accounting Standards Committee (IASB predecessor) issued a document
entitled “Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements.” This framework
sets forth fundamental objectives and concepts that the Board uses in developing future standards
of financial reporting. The intent of the document is to form a cohesive set of interrelated concepts,
a conceptual framework, that will serve as tools for solving existing and emerging problems in a
consistent manner.

Interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) are
also considered authoritative and cover (1) newly identified financial reporting issues not specifically
dealt with in IFRS, and (2) issues where unsatisfactory or conflicting interpretations have developed,
or seem likely to develop in the absence of authoritative guidance.

IFRIC can address controversial accounting problems as they arise. It determines whether it can
quickly resolve them, or whether to involve the IASB in solving them. The IASB will hopefully work on
more pervasive long-term problems, while the IFRIC deals with short-term emerging issues.

CA 1-7

Accounting numbers affect investing decisions. Investors, for example, use the financial statements of
different companies to enhance their understanding of each company’s financial strength and operating
results. Because these statements follow international accounting standards, investors can make
meaningful comparisons of different financial statements to assist their investment decisions.

Accounting numbers also influence creditors’ decisions. A commercial bank usually looks into a company’s
financial statements and past credit history before deciding whether to grant a loan and in what amount.
The financial statements provide a fair picture of the company’s financial strength (for example, short-
term liquidity and long-term solvency) and operating performance for the current period and over a
period of time. The information is essential for the bank to ensure that the loan is safe and sound.

CA 1-8

(a) Arguments for politicalization of the accounting standard-setting process:

1. Accounting depends in large part on public confidence for its success. Consequently, the
critical issues are not solely technical, so all those having a bona fide interest in the output of
accounting should have some influence on that output.

2. There are numerous conflicts between the various interest groups. In the face of this, compro-
mise is necessary, particularly since the critical issues in accounting are value judgments, not
the type which are solvable, as we have traditionally assumed, using deterministic models. Only
in this way (reasonable compromise) will the financial community have confidence in the fairness
and objectivity of accounting standard-setting.

3. Over the years, accountants have been unable to establish, on the basis of technical accoun-
ting elements, standards which would bring about the desired uniformity and acceptability. This
inability itself indicates standard-setting is primarily consensual in nature.

4. The public accounting profession made rules which business enterprises and individuals “had”
to follow. For many years, these businesses and individuals had little say as to what the
standards would be, in spite of the fact that their economic well-being was influenced to a
substantial degree by those standards. It is only natural that they would try to influence or
control the factors that determine their economic well-being.

1-12 Copyright © 2011 John Wiley & Sons, Inc.  Kieso, IFRS, 1/e, Solutions Manual  (For Instructor Use Only)



CA 1-8 (Continued)

(b)

Arguments against the politicalization of the accounting standard-setting process:

1. Many accountants feel that accounting is primarily technical in nature. Consequently, they feel
that substantive, basic research by objective, independent and fair-minded researchers ultimately
will result in the best solutions to critical issues, such as the concepts of income and capital,
even if it is accepted that there isn’t necessarily a single “right” solution.

2. Even if it is accepted that there are no “absolute truths” as far as critical issues are concerned,
many feel that professional accountants, taking into account the diverse interests of the various
groups using accounting information, are in the best position, because of their independence,
education, training, and objectivity, to decide what international financial reporting standards
ought to be.

3. The complex situations that arise in the business world require that trained accountants develop
the appropriate reporting standards.

4. The use of consensus to develop reporting standards would decrease the professional status
of the accountant.

5. This approach would lead to “lobbying” by various parties to influence the establishment of
reporting standards.

CA 19

(@)

In many respects, the IASB is a quasi-governmental agency in that its pronouncements are required
to be followed in some jurisdictions. For example, all public european companies are required to use
IASB standards when preparing financial statements. In fact, both the FASB and the IASB believe that
the IFRS have the best potential to provide a common platform on which companies can report and
investors can compare financial information. The purely political approach is used in France and West
Germany. The private, professional approach is employed in Australia, Canada, and the United
Kingdom.

Publicly reported accounting numbers influence the distribution of scarce resources. Resources are
channeled where needed at returns commensurate with perceived risk. Thus, reported accounting
numbers have economic effects in that resources are transferred among entities and individuals as a
consequence of these numbers. It is not surprising then that individuals affected by these numbers
will be extremely interested in any proposed changes in the financial reporting environment.

CA 1-10

(@)

President Sarkozy is putting pressure on the IASB to craft fair value standards that favor banks.
However, by introducing politics into the standard-setting process will likely lead to the following
consequences:

Too many alternatives.

Lack of clarity that will lead to inconsistent application.
Lack of disclosure that reduces transparency.

Not comprehensive in scope.

o=
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CA 1-10 (Continued)

When the resulting standards have these attributes, they will be of lower quality and the credibility
of the standard-setting process will be questioned. At the extreme, market participants will have
less confidence in accounting information and capital markets will be less liquid—cost of capital
will be higher. Another indication of the problem of government intervention is shown in the
accounting standards used by some countries around the world. Completeness and transparency
of information needed by investors and creditors is not available in order to meet or achieve other
objectives. In the fair value case, the IASB did respond by accelerating its process to develop a
new standard, which provided some exceptions to the fair value accounting that benefited some
banks and insurance companies.

Accounting reports have consequences for the companies that prepare them and the users of
those reports—investors, creditors, government bodies, and so on. Considering the economic
consequences of accounting standards, it is not surprising that special interest groups become
vocal and critical (some supporting, some opposing) when rules are being formulated.

The FASB’s derivative accounting pronouncement is no exception. Many from the banking
industry, for example, criticized the rule as too complex and leading to unnecessary earnings
volatility. They also indicated that the proposal may discourage prudent risk management activities
and in some cases could present misleading financial information. As a result, elected officials are
often approached to put pressure on the standard-setters (IASB and FASB to change its rulings. In
the derivative controversy, Rep. Richard Baker introduced a bill which would force the SEC to
formally approve each standard issued by the FASB. Not only would this process delay adoption,
but could lead to additional politicalization of the rule-making process. Dingell commented that
Congress should stay out of the rule-making process and defended the FASB’s approach to
establishing accounting standards.

CA 1-11

(@)

Inclusion or omission of information that materially affects net income harms particular stakeholders.
Accountants must recognize that their decision to implement (or delay) reporting requirements will
have immediate consequences for some stakeholders.

Yes. Because the IASB rule results in a fairer representation, it should be implemented as soon as
possible—regardless of its impact on net income.

The accountant’s responsibility is to provide financial statements that present fairly the financial
condition of the company. By advocating early implementation, Weller fulfills this task.

Potential lenders and investors, who read the financial statements and rely on their fair
representation of the financial condition of the company, have the most to gain by early
implementation—they would be most directly harmed by deferral of implementation. At the same
time, a stockholder who is considering the sale of shares may be harmed by early implementation
that lowers net income (and may lower the value of the shares). If employee bonuses are based
on the reported income number, the employees could receive lower bonuses with early
implementation.

CA 1-12

(@)

The ethical issue in this case relates to making questionable entries to meet expected earnings
forecasts. As indicated in this chapter, businesses’ concentration on “maximizing the bottom line,”
“facing the challenges of competition,” and “stressing short-term results” places accountants in an
environment of conflict and pressure.
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CA 1-12 (Continued)

(b)

Given that Normand has pleaded guilty, he certainly acted improperly. Doing the right thing, making
the right decision, is not always easy. Right is not always obvious, and the pressures to “bend the
rules,” “to play the game,” “to just ignore it” can be considerable.

No doubt, Normand was in a difficult position. | am sure that he was concerned that if he failed to
go along, it would affect his job performance negatively or that he might be terminated. These job
pressures, time pressures, peer pressures often lead individuals astray. Can it happen to you?
One individual noted that at a seminar on ethics sponsored by the CMA Society of Southern
California, attendees were asked if they had ever been pressured to make questionable entries.
This individual noted that to the best of his recollection, everybody raised a hand, and more than
one had eventually chosen to resign.

Major stakeholders are: (1) Troy Normand, (2) present and potential stockholders and creditors of
WorldCom, (3) employees, and (4) family. Recognize that WorldCom is one of the largest
bankruptcy in United States history, so many individuals are affected.

CA 1-13

(@)

(b)

AICPA. American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The national organization of practicing
certified public accountants.

APB. Accounting Principles Board. A committee of public accountants, industry accountants and
academicians which issued 31 Opinions between 1959 and 1973. The APB replaced the CAP
and was itself replaced by the FASB. Its opinions, unless superseded, remain a primary source
of GAAP.

FAF. Financial Accounting Foundation. An organization whose purpose is to select members of
the FASB and its Advisory Councils, fund their activities, and exercise general oversight.

FASAC. Financial Accounting Standards Advisory Council. An organization whose purpose is to
consult with the FASB on issues, project priorities, and select task forces.

GAAP. Generally accepted accounting principles. A common set of standards, principles, and
procedures which have substantial authoritative support and have been accepted as appropriate
because of universal application.

CPA. Certified public accountant. An accountant who has fulfilled certain education and experience
requirements and passed a rigorous examination. Most CPAs offer auditing, tax, and management
consulting services to the general public.

FASB. Financial Accounting Standards Board. The primary body which currently establishes and
improves financial accounting and reporting standards for the guidance of issuers, auditors, users,
and others.

SEC. Securities and Exchange Commission. An independent regulatory agency of the United
States government which administers the Securities Acts of 1933 and 1934 and other acts.

IASB. International Accounting Standards Board. An international group, formed in 2001, that is
actively developing and issuing accounting standards that will have international appeal and support.
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The “due process” system involves the following:

Identifying topics and placing them on the Board’s agenda.

Research and analysis is conducted and preliminary views of pros and cons issued.

A public hearing is often held.

Board evaluates research and public responses and issues exposure draft.

Board evaluates responses and changes exposure draft, if necessary. Final statement is then
issued.

okrown=

Economic consequences mean the impact of accounting reports on the wealth positions of issuers
and users of financial information and the decision-making behavior resulting from that impact.

Economic consequences indicated in the letter are: (1) concerns related to the potential impact on
the capital markets, (2) the weakening of companies’ ability to manage risk, and (3) the adverse
control implications of implementing costly and complex new rules imposed at the same time as
other major initiatives, including the Year 2000 issues and a single European currency.

The principal point of this letter is to delay the finalization of the derivatives standard. As indicated in
the letter, the authors of this letter urge the FASB to expose its new proposal for public comment,
following the established due process procedures that are essential to acceptance of its standards
and providing sufficient time for affected parties to understand and assess the new approach.
(Authors note: The FASB indicated in a follow-up letter that all due process procedures had been
followed and all affected parties had more than ample time to comment. In addition, the FASB issued
a follow-up standard, which delayed the effective date of the standard, in part to give companies more
time to develop the information systems needed for implementation of the standard.)

The reason why the letter was sent to Congress was to put additional pressure on the FASB to delay
or drop the issuance of a rule on derivatives. Unfortunately, in too many cases, when the business
community does not like the answer proposed by the FASB, it resorts to lobbying members of
Congress. The lobbying efforts usually involve developing some type of legislation that will negate
the rule. In some cases, efforts involve challenging the FASB’s authority to develop rules in certain
areas with additional Congressional oversight.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING PROBLEM

(a) The two organizations involved in international standard-setting are
International Organization of Securities Commissions (I0SCO) and the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

(b) Different authoritative literature pertaining to methods recording account-
ing transactions exists today. Some authoritative literature has received
more support from the profession than other literature. The literature
that has substantial authoritative support is the one most supported
by the profession and should be followed when recording accounting
transactions. These standards and procedures are called international
financial reporting standards (IFRS).
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INTERNATIONAL REPORTING CASE

(a)

(b)

(c)

The International Accounting Standards Board is an independent, pri-
vately funded accounting standards setter based in London, UK. The
Board is committed to developing, in the public interest, a single set of
high quality, understandable and enforceable global accounting standards
that require transparent and comparable information in general purpose
financial statements. In addition, the Board cooperates with national
accounting standards setters to achieve convergence in accounting
standards around the world.

In summary, the following groups might benefit from the use of Inter-

national Accounting Standards:

¢ Investors, investment analysts and stockbrokers: to facilitate inter-
national comparisons for investment decisions.

o Credit grantors: for similar reasons to bullet point above.

¢ Multinational companies: as preparers, investors, appraisers of pro-
ducts or staff, and as movers of staff around the globe; also, as raisers
of finance on international markets (this also applies to some comp-
anies that are not multinationals).

e Governments: as tax collectors and hosts of multinationals; also inter-
ested are securities markets regulators and governmental and non-
governmental rule makers.

The fundamental argument against convergence is that, to the extent
that international differences in accounting practices result from under-
lying economic, legal, social, and other environmental factors, convergence
may not be justified. Different accounting has grown up to serve the
different needs of different users; this might suggest that the existing ac-
counting practice is “correct” for a given nation and should not be changed
merely to simplify the work of multinational companies or auditors.
There does seem to be strength in this point particularly for smaller com-
panies with no significant multinational activities or connections. To foist
upon a small private family company in Luxembourg lavish disclosure
requirements and the need to report a “true and fair” view may be an
expensive and unnecessary piece of convergence.
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INTERNATIONAL REPORTING CASE (Continued)

The most obvious obstacle to convergence is the sheer size and
deeprootedness of the differences in accounting. These differences
have grown up over the previous century because of differences in
users, legal systems, and so on. Thus, the differences are structural
rather than cosmetic, and require revolutionary action to remove them.
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ACCOUNTING, ANALYSIS AND PRINCIPLES

ACCOUNTING

(a)

(b)

The requirements will depend on the jurisdiction in which they intend
to sell the securities. All U.S.-based companies are required to use
FASB standards when preparing financial statements and related
financial information. The International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB) issues international financial reporting standards (IFRS) which
are used on most foreign exchanges. Both the FASB and the IASB
standards require companies to prepare a full set of financial
statements and related disclosures so investors can evaluate and
compare investments.

The two entities that are primarily responsible for establishing IFRS are
IOSCO (International Organization of Securities Commissions) and the
IASB (International Accounting Standards Board).

The I0SCO does not set accounting standards, but ensures that the
global markets can operate in an efficient and effective manner.
Conversely, the IASB’s mission is to develop a single set of high
quality, understandable and international financial reporting standards
(IFRSs) for general purpose financial statements.

ANALYSIS

(a)

(b)

Decision-usefulness involves providing investors interested in financial
reporting information that is useful for making decisions.

The financial statements provide information on company performance
(income statement), financial position — assets owned and liabilities
incurred (statement of financial position) and cash flows (statement of
cash flows). Investors and creditors use this information to form their
own expectations about a company’s future cash flows. These
assessments are the basis of the decision about an investment in the
company.

1-20
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ACCOUNTING, ANALYSIS AND PRINCIPLES (Continued)

PRINCIPLES

The hierarchy of IFRS to determine what recognition, valuation, and disclosure

requirements should be used are:

1. International Financial Reporting Standards;

2. International Accounting Standards; and

3. Interpretations from the International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee

Any company indicating that it is preparing its financial statements in
conformity with IFRS must use all of these standards and interpretations.
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PROFESSIONAL RESEARCH

The following responses are drawn from Framework for the Preparation
and Presentation of Financial Statements (IASB Framework approved by
the IASC Board in April 1989 for publication in July 1989, and adopted by
the IASB in April 2001.)

(a)

(b)

(c)

As indicated in paragraph 12 of the Framework, “The objective of
financial statements is to provide information about the financial
position, performance and changes in financial position of an entity
that is useful to a wide range of users in making economic decisions.”

According to paragraph 21 of the Framework, notes and supplementary
schedules serve in this role. For example, they may contain additional
information that is relevant to the needs of users about the items in the
statement of financial position and income statement. They may include
disclosures about the risks and uncertainties affecting the entity and any
resources and obligations not recognised in the statement of financial
position (such as mineral reserves). Information about geographical and
industry segments and the effect on the entity of changing prices may
also be provided in the form of supplementary information.

As indicated in paragraphs 13 and 14, financial statements prepared to
meet the objective of financial reporting meet the common needs of most
users. However, financial statements do not provide all the information
that users may need to make economic decisions since they largely
portray the financial effects of past events and do not necessarily provide
non-financial information. In addition, financial statements also show the
results of the stewardship of management, or the accountability of
management for the resources entrusted to it. Those users who wish to
assess the stewardship or accountability of management do so in order
that they may make economic decisions; these decisions may include,
for example, whether to hold or sell their investment in the entity or
whether to reappoint or replace the management.

1-22
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PROFESSIONAL SIMULATION

(a)

(b)

The IASB issues three major types of pronouncements:
1. International financial reporting standards;

2. Framework for financial reporting; and

3. International financial reporting interpretation

IASB standards are financial accounting standards issued by the IASB
and are referred to as International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).
The IASB Framework for financial reporting sets forth fundamental
objectives and concepts that the Board uses in developing future
standards of financial reporting. The intent of the Framework is to form
a cohesive set of interrelated concepts that will serve as tools for
solving existing and emerging problems in a consistent manner.

The hierarchy of IFRS to determine what recognition, valuation, and

disclosure requirements should be used are

1. International Financial Reporting Standards;

2. International Accounting Standards; and

3. Interpretations from the International Financial Reporting Interpre-
tations Committee

Any company indicating that it is preparing its financial statements in
conformity with IFRS must use all of these standards and interpretations.
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CHAPTER 2

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting

ASSIGNMENT CLASSIFICATION TABLE (BY TOPIC)

Brief Concepts
Topics Questions Exercises Exercises  for Analysis
1.  Conceptual framework— 1 1,2
general.
2. Objective of financial 2,6 1,2 3
reporting.
3. Qualitative characteristics 3,4,5,7 1,2,3,4 1,2,3,4 4,9
of accounting.
4.  Elements of financial 8,9, 21 5,6 5
statements.
5. Basic assumptions. 10, 11,12 7,8,13 6,7
6. Basic principles:
a. Measurement. 13, 14,15 9,10,13 6,7,9,10 5,6
b. Revenue recognition. 16,17,18, 19, 9 7,9,10 5,6
c. Expense recognition. 20 9,13 6,7,9,10 5,6,7,8,10
d. Full disclosure. 22,23 9,13 6,7,8,9, 10
7. International standards— 27, 28, 29 9,10
comprehensive.
8. Constraints. 24, 25, 26 11,12,13,14 3,6,7 11
9. Comprehensive assignments 27, 28, 29 14 6,7,9,10

on assumptions, principles,
and constraints.
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ASSIGNMENT CLASSIFICATION TABLE (BY LEARNING OBJECTIVE)

Learning Objectives Brief Exercises Exercises

1.  Describe the usefulness of a conceptual framework.

2.  Describe efforts to construct a conceptual framework.

3. Understand the objective of financial reporting. 1,2

4. Identify the qualitative characteristics of accounting 1,2,3,4 1,2,3,4
information.

5.  Define the basic elements of financial statements. 5,6 5

6. Describe the basic assumptions of accounting. 7,8,13 6,7

7.  Explain the application of the basic principles of 9,10, 13 6,7,8,9,10
accounting.

8.  Describe the impact that constraints have on reporting 11,12, 13, 14 6,7
accounting information.
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ASSIGNMENT CHARACTERISTICS TABLE

Level of Time
ltem Description Difficulty (minutes)
E2-1 Usefulness, objective of financial reporting. Moderate 10-15
E2-2 Usefulness, objective of financial reporting, qualitative Moderate 10-15

characteristics.
E2-3 Qualitative characteristics. Moderate 15-20
E2-4 Qualitative characteristics. Simple 15-20
E2-5 Elements of financial statements. Simple 10-15
E2-6 Assumptions, principles, and constraints. Simple 15-20
E2-7 Assumptions, principles, and constraints. Moderate 20-25
E2-8 Full disclosure principle. Complex 20-25
E2-9 Accounting principles—comprehensive. Moderate 20-25
E2-10 Accounting principles—comprehensive. Moderate 20-25
CA2-1 Conceptual framework—general. Simple 20-25
CA2-2 Conceptual framework—general. Simple 25-35
CA2-3 Objective of financial reporting. Moderate 25-35
CA2-4 Qualitative characteristics. Moderate 30-35
CA2-5 Revenue recognition principle. Complex 25-30
CA2-6 Revenue and expense recognition principles. Moderate 30-35
CA2-7 Expense recognition principle. Complex 20-25
CA2-8 Expense recognition principle. Moderate 20-30
CA2-9 Qualitative characteristics. Moderate 20-30
CA2-10 Expense recognition principle. Moderate 20-25
CA2-11 Cost-Benefit. Moderate 30-35
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ANSWERS TO QUESTIONS

A conceptual framework is a coherent system of concepts that flow from an objective. The
objective identifies the purpose of financial reporting. The other concepts provide guidance on
(1) identifying the boundaries of financial reporting, (2) selecting the transactions, other events, and
circumstances to be represented, (3) how they should be recognized and measured, and (4) how
they should be summarized and reported. A conceptual framework is necessary in financial
accounting for the following reasons:

(1) It will enable the IASB to issue more useful and consistent standards in the future.

(2) New issues will be more quickly solvable by reference to an existing framework of basic theory.
(3) It will increase financial statement users’ understanding of and confidence in financial reporting.
(4) It will enhance comparability among companies’ financial statements.

The primary objective of financial reporting is as follows:

The objective of general purpose financial reporting is to provide financial information about the
reporting entity that is useful to present and potential equity investors, lenders, and other
creditors in making decisions in their capacity as capital providers. Information that is decision
useful to capital providers may also be useful to other users of financial reporting who are not
capital providers.

“Qualitative characteristics of accounting information” are those characteristics which contribute to
the quality or value of the information. The fundamental qualitative characteristics are relevance
and faithful representation.

Relevance and faithful representation are the two fundamental qualities that make accounting
information useful for decision-making. To be relevant, accounting information must be capable of
making a difference in a decision. Information with no bearing on a decision is irrelevant. Financial
information is capable of making a difference when it has predictive value, confirmatory value, or
both. Faithful representation means that the item is representative of the real-world phenomenon
that it purports to represent. Faithful representation is a necessity because most users have
neither the time nor the expertise to evaluate the factual content of the information. In other words,
faithful representation means that the numbers and descriptions match what really existed or
happened. To be a faithful representation, information must be complete, neutral, and free of
material error.

The enhancing qualitative characteristics are comparability, verifiability, timeliness, and understandability.
These characteristics enhance the decision usefulness of financial reporting information that is
relevant and faithfully represented. Enhancing qualitative characteristics are complementary to the
fundamental qualitative characteristics. Enhancing qualitative characteristics distinguish more-
useful information from less-useful information.

In providing information to users of financial statements, the Board relies on general-purpose
financial statements. The intent of such statements is to provide the most useful information
possible at minimal cost to various user groups. Underlying these objectives is the notion that
users need reasonable knowledge of business and financial accounting matters to understand
the information contained in financial statements. This point is important: it means that in the
preparation of financial statements a level of reasonable competence can be assumed; this has an
impact on the way and the extent to which information is reported.

Comparability facilitates comparisons between information about two different enterprises at a
particular point in time. Consistency facilitates comparisons between information about the same
enterprise at two different points in time.
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Questions Chapter 2 (Continued)

8.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

At present, the accounting literature contains many terms that have peculiar and specific meanings.
Some of these terms have been in use for a long period of time, and their meanings have changed
over time. Since the elements of financial statements are the building blocks with which the
statements are constructed, it is necessary to develop a basic definitional framework for them.

The elements are assets, liabilities, and equity (moment in time elements) and income and expenses
(period of time elements). The first class (moment in time), affected by elements of the second class
(period of time), provides at any time the cumulative result of all changes. This interaction is referred
to as “articulation.” That is, key figures in one financial statement correspond to balances in another.

The five basic assumptions that underlie the financial accounting structure are:
(1) An economic entity assumption.

(2) A going concern assumption.
(3) A monetary unit assumption.
(4) A periodicity assumption.

(5) Accrual-basis assumption.

(a) In accounting it is generally agreed that any measures of the success of a company for
periods less than its total life are at best provisional in nature and subject to correction.
Measurement of progress and status for arbitrary time periods is a practical necessity to serve
those who must make decisions. It is not the result of postulating specific time periods as
measurable segments of total life.

(b) The practice of periodic measurement has led to many of the most difficult accounting prob-
lems such as inventory pricing, depreciation of long-term assets, and the necessity for
revenue recognition tests. The accrual system calls for associating related revenues and
expenses. This becomes very difficult for an arbitrary time period with incomplete transactions
in process at both the beginning and the end of the period. A number of accounting practices
such as adjusting entries or the reporting of corrections of prior periods result directly from
efforts to make each period’s calculations as accurate as possible and yet recognizing that
they are only provisional in nature.

The monetary unit assumption assumes that the unit of measure (the dollar) remains reasonably
stable so that Euros, Yen, or dollars of different years can be added without any adjustment. When
the value of the currency fluctuates greatly over time, the monetary unit assumption loses its
validity.

The IASB indicated that it expects the currency unadjusted for inflation or deflation to be used to
measure items recognized in financial statements. Only if circumstances change dramatically will
the Board consider a more stable measurement unit.

Some of the arguments which might be used are outlined below:

(1) Cost is definite and reliable; other values would have to be determined somewhat arbitrarily
and there would be considerable disagreement as to the amounts to be used.

(2) Amounts determined by other bases would have to be revised frequently.

(3) Comparison with other companies is aided if cost is employed.

(4) The costs of obtaining fair values could outweigh the benefits derived.

Fair value is defined as “the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.” Fair value is
therefore a market-based measure.
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Questions Chapter 2 (Continued)

15.

16.

17.

18.

The fair value option gives companies the option to use fair value (referred to the fair value option
as the basis for measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities.) The Board believes that fair
value measurement for financial assets and financial liabilities provides more relevant and
understandable information than historical cost. It considers fair value to be more relevant because
it reflects the current cash equivalent value of financial assets and financial liabilities. As a result
companies now have the option to record fair value in their accounts for most financial assets and
financial liabilities, including such items as receivables, investments, and debt securities.

Revenue is to be recognized when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity
and reliable measurement of the amount of the revenue is possible.

The adoption of the sale basis is the accountant’s practical solution to the extremely difficult
problem of measuring revenue under conditions of uncertainty as to the future. The revenue is
equal to the amount of cash that will be received due to the operations of the current accounting
period, but this amount will not be definitely known until such cash is collected. The accountant,
under these circumstances, insists on having “objective evidence,” that is, evidence external to the
firm itself, on which to base an estimate of the amount of cash that will be received. The sale is
considered to be the earliest point at which this evidence is available in the usual case. Until the
sale is made, any estimate of the value of inventory is based entirely on the opinion of the manage-
ment of the firm. When the sale is made, however, an outsider, the buyer, has corroborated the
estimate of management and a value can now be assigned based on this transaction. The sale also
leads to a valid claim against the buyer and gives the seller the full support of the law in enforcing
collection. In a highly developed economy where the probability of collection is high, this gives
additional weight to the sale in the determination of the amount to be collected. Ordinarily there is
a transfer of control as well as title at the sales point. This not only serves as additional objective
evidence but necessitates the recognition of a change in the nature of assets. The sale, then, has
been adopted because it provides the accountant with objective evidence as to the amount of
revenue that will be collected, subject of course to the bad debts estimated to determine ultimate
collectibility.

Revenue is to be recognized when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity
and reliable measurement of the amount of the revenue is possible. The most common time at
which these two conditions are met is when the product or merchandise is delivered or services
are rendered to customers. Therefore, revenue for Selane Eatery should be recognized at the time
the luncheon is served.

Each deviation depends on either the existence of earlier objective evidence other than the sale or

insufficient evidence of sale. Objective evidence is the key.

(a) In the case of installment sales the probability of uncollectibility may be great due to the nature
of the collection terms. The sale itself, therefore, does not give an accurate basis on which to
estimate the amount of cash that will be collected. It is necessary to adopt a basis which will
give a reasonably accurate estimate. The installment sales method is a modified cash basis;
income is recognized as cash is collected. A cash basis is preferable when no earlier estimate
of revenue is sufficiently accurate.

(b) The opposite is true in the case of certain agricultural products. Since there is a ready buyer
and a quoted price, a sale is not necessary to establish the amount of revenue to be received.
In fact, the sale is an insignificant part of the whole operation. As soon as it is harvested, the
crop can be valued at its selling price less the cost of transportation to the market and this
valuation gives an extremely accurate measure of the amount of revenue for the period without
the need of waiting until the sale has been made to measure it. In other words, it is probable
that future economic benefits will flows to the entity and reliable measurement of the revenue
is possible, and therefore revenue should be recognized.
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Questions Chapter 2 (Continued)

19.

20.

21,

22,

(c) In the case of long-term contracts, the use of the “sales basis” would result in a distortion of
the periodic income figures. A shift to a “percentage of completion basis” is warranted if objec-
tive evidence of the amount of revenue earned in the periods prior to completion is available.
The accountant finds such evidence in the existence of a firm contract, from which the
ultimate realization can be determined, and estimates of total cost which can be compared
with cost incurred to estimate percentage-of-completion for revenue measurement purposes.
In general, when estimates of costs to complete and extent of progress toward completion of
long-term contracts are reasonably dependable, the percentage-of-completion method is
preferable to the completed-contract method.

The president means that the “gain” should be recorded in the books. This item should not be
entered in the accounts, however, because a reliable measurement of the revenue is
questionable.

The cause and effect relationship can seldom be conclusively demonstrated, but many costs
appear to be related to particular revenues and recognizing them as expenses accompanies
recognition of the revenue. Examples of expenses that are recognized by associating cause and
effect are sales commissions and cost of products sold or services provided.

Systematic and rational allocation means that in the absence of a direct means of associating
cause and effect, and where the asset provides benefits for several periods, its cost should be
allocated to the periods in a systematic and rational manner. Examples of expenses that are
recognized in a systematic and rational manner are depreciation of plant assets, amortization of
intangible assets, and allocation of rent and insurance.

Some costs are immediately expensed because the costs have no discernible future benefits or
the allocation among several accounting periods is not considered to serve any useful purpose.
Examples include officers’ salaries, most selling costs, amounts paid to settle lawsuits, and costs
of resources used in unsuccessful efforts.

An item that meets the definition of an element should be recognized if: (a) it is probable that any
future economic benefit associated with the item will flow to or from the entity; and (b) the item has
a cost or value that can be measured with reliability.

(a) To be recognized in the main body of financial statements, an item must meet the definition of
an element. In addition the item must have been measured, recorded in the books, and passed
through the double-entry system of accounting.

(b) Information provided in the notes to the financial statements amplifies or explains the items
presented in the main body of the statements and is essential to an understanding of the per-
formance and position of the enterprise. Information in the notes does not have to be quanti-
fiable, nor does it need to qualify as an element.

(c) Supplementary information includes information that presents a different perspective from that
adopted in the financial statements. It also includes management’s explanation of the financial
information and a discussion of the significance of that information.
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Questions Chapter 2 (Continued)

23.

24,

25.

26.

The general guide followed with regard to the full disclosure principle is to disclose in the financial
statements any facts of sufficient importance to influence the judgment of an informed reader.
The fact that the amount of outstanding common shares doubled in January of the subsequent
reporting period probably should be disclosed because such a situation is of importance to present
shareholders. Even though the event occurred after December 31, 2011, it should be disclosed on
in the notes to the financial statements as of December 31, 2011, in order to make adequate
disclosure. (The major point that should be emphasized throughout the entire discussion on full
disclosure is that there is normally no “black” or “white” but varying shades of grey and it takes
experience and good judgment to arrive at an appropriate answer.)

Accounting information is subject to two constraints: cost/benefit considerations and materiality.
Information is not worth providing unless the benefits it provides exceed the costs of preparing it.
Information that is immaterial is irrelevant, and consequently, not useful. If its inclusion or omission
would have no impact on a decision maker, the information is immaterial. However, if it is material,
it should be reported.

The costs of providing accounting information are paid primarily to highly trained accountants who
design and implement information systems, retrieve and analyze large amounts of data, prepare
financial statements in accordance with authoritative pronouncements, and audit the information
presented. These activities are time-consuming and costly. The benefits of providing accounting
information are experienced by society in general, since informed financial decisions help allocate
scarce resources to the most effective enterprises. Occasionally new accounting standards require
presentation of information that is not readily assembled by the accounting systems of most
companies. A determination should be made as to whether the incremental or additional costs of
providing the proposed information exceed the incremental benefits to be obtained. This deter-
mination requires careful judgment since the benefits of the proposed information may not be
readily apparent.

The concept of materiality refers to the relative significance of an amount, activity, or item to
informative disclosure and a proper presentation of financial position and the results of operations.
Materiality has qualitative and quantitative aspects; both the nature of the item and its relative size
enter into its evaluation.

An accounting misstatement is said to be material if knowledge of the misstatement will affect the
decisions of the average informed reader of the financial statements. Financial statements are
misleading if they omit a material fact or include so many immaterial matters as to be confusing. In
the examination, the auditor concentrates efforts in proportion to degrees of materiality and relative
risk and disregards immaterial items.

The relevant criteria for assessing materiality will depend upon the circumstances and the nature
of the item and will vary greatly among companies. For example, an error in classifying equipment
will be more important than if the misclassification was to the inventory account, compared to mis-
classifying the same amount to land, because the former error would affect working capital ratios.

The effect upon net income (or earnings per share) is the most commonly used measure of
materiality. This reflects the prime importance attached to net income by investors and other users
of the statements. The effects upon assets and equities are also important as are misstatements
of individual accounts and subtotals included in the financial statements. The auditor will note the
effects of misstatements on key ratios such as gross profit, the current ratio, or the debt/equity
ratio and will consider such special circumstances as the effects on debt agreement covenants
and the legality of dividend payments.
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Questions Chapter 2 (Continued)

27.

28.

29.

There are no rigid standards or guidelines for assessing materiality. The lower bound of materiality
has been variously estimated at 5% to 20% of net income, but the determination will vary based
upon the individual case and might not fall within these limits. Certain items, such as a questionable
loan to a company officer, may be considered material even when minor amounts are involved. In
contrast a large misclassification among expense accounts may not be deemed material if there is
no misstatement of net income.

Both the IASB and FASB have similar measurement principles, based on historical cost and fair
value. However U.S. GAAP has a concept statement to guide estimation of fair values when market-
related data is not available. (Statement of Financial Accounting Concepts No. 7, “Using Cash Flow
Information and Present Value in Accounting.”) The IASB is considering a proposal to provide
expanded guidance on estimating fair values (“Discussion Paper on Fair Value Measurement,”
(London U.K.: IASB), November 2006).

The phases of the conceptual framework project are:
(a) Objective and qualitative characteristics.
b) Elements and recognition

) Measurement

) Reporting entity

) Presentation and disclosure

Purpose and status

) Application to not-for-profit entities
) Remaining issues

AN N N N N S~
>0 Q0

= (o]

A final document is expected in 2010 for Phase A and Phase D.

As indicated, the measurement project relates to both initial measurement and subsequent
measurement. Thus, the continuing controversy related to historical cost and fair value accounting
suggests that this issue will be controversial. The reporting entity project that addresses which
entities should be included in consolidated statements and how to implement such consolidations
will be a difficult project. Other difficult issues relate to the trade off between highly relevant infor-
mation that is difficult to verify. Or how do we define control when we are developing a definition of
an asset? Or is a liability the future sacrifice itself or the obligation to make the sacrifice?

Copyright © 2011 John Wiley & Sons, Inc.  Kieso, IFRS, 1/e, Solutions Manual  (For Instructor Use Only) 2-9



SOLUTIONS TO BRIEF EXERCISES

BRIEF EXERCISE 2-1

(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)

Comparability
Timeliness
Predictive value
Relevance
Neutrality

BRIEF EXERCISE 2-2

(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)

Faithful representation
Confirmatory value
Free from error
Completeness
Understandability

BRIEF EXERCISE 2-3

(a)

(b)

(c)

If the company changed its method for inventory valuation, the consis-
tency, and therefore the comparability, of the financial statements have
been affected by a change in the method of applying the accounting
principles employed. The change would require comment in the auditor’s
report in an explanatory paragraph.

If the company disposed of one of its two subsidiaries that had been
included in its consolidated statements for prior years, no comment as
to consistency needs to be made in the CPA’s audit report. The compara-
bility of the financial statements has been affected by a business trans-
action, but there has been no change in any accounting principle
employed or in the method of its application. (The transaction would
probably require informative disclosure in the financial statements.)

If the company reduced the estimated remaining useful life of plant
property because of obsolescence, the comparability of the financial
statements has been affected. The change is a matter of consistency;
it is a change in accounting estimate which leads to a change in
accounting principles employed or in their method of application. The
change would require comment in the auditor’s report in an explanatory
paragraph.

2-10
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BRIEF EXERCISE 2-3 (Continued)

(d)

If the company is using a different inventory valuation method from
all other companies in its industry, no comment as to consistency
need be made in the CPA’s audit report. Consistency refers to a given
company following consistent accounting principles from one period to
another; it does not refer to a company following the same accounting
principles as other companies in the same industry.

BRIEF EXERCISE 2-4

(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)

Verifiability
Comparability
Consistency
Timeliness

BRIEF EXERCISE 2-5

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Should be debited to the Land account, as it is a cost incurred in
acquiring land.

As an asset, preferably to a Land Improvements account. The driveway
will last for many years, and therefore it should be capitalized and
depreciated.

Probably an asset, as it will last for a number of years and therefore
will contribute to operations of those years.

If the fiscal year ends December 31, this will all be an expense of the
current year that can be charged to an expense account. If statements
are to be prepared on some date before December 31, part of this cost
would be expense and part asset. Depending upon the circumstances,
the original entry as well as the adjusting entry for statement purposes
should take the statement date into account.

Should be debited to the building account; depreciation expense
during the life of building will include these costs.

As an expense, as the service has already been received; the contri-
bution to operations occurred in this period.
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BRIEF EXERCISE 2-6

(a) Equity
(b) Income
(c) Equity
(d) Assets

(e) Expenses
(f) Expenses

(g) Liabilities
(h) Equity

(i) Income
() Equity

BRIEF EXERCISE 2-7

(@) Fair value, or net realizable value, if the land was sold.

(b) Would not be disclosed. Depreciation would be inappropriate if the
going concern assumption no longer applies.

(c) Fair value, or selling price less costs to complete.

(d) Fair value (i.e., redeemable value), if the insurance coverage was

transferred to another party.

Note: In each of these cases, historical cost or fair value valuation might be
abandoned if it can not be assumed that the company will not continue

on indefinitely.

BRIEF EXERCISE 2-8

(a) Periodicity

(b) Monetary unit
(c) Going concern
(d) Economic entity

BRIEF EXERCISE 2-9

(a) Revenue recognition
(b) Expense recognition
(c) Full disclosure

(d) Cost principle
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BRIEF EXERCISE 2-10
Investment 1—Least verifiable.

Investment 2—Most verifiable.
Investment 3—Intermediate verifiability

BRIEF EXERCISE 2-11
(@) Materiality

(b) Cost-benefit relationship
(c) Materiality

BRIEF EXERCISE 2-12

Companies and their auditors for the most part have adopted the general
rule of thumb that anything under 5% of net income is considered not material.
Recently, the SEC in the United States has indicated that it is okay to use
this percentage for the initial assessment of materiality, but other factors
must be considered. For example, companies can no longer fail to record
items in order to meet consensus analyst’s earnings numbers; preserve a
positive earnings trend; convert a loss to a profit or vice versa; increase
management compensation, or hide an illegal transaction like a bribe. In
other words, both quantitative and qualitative factors must be considered

in determining when an item is material.

(a) Because the change was used to create a positive trend in earnings,

the change is considered material.

(b) Each item must be considered separately and not netted. Therefore

each transaction is considered material.

(c) In general, companies that follow an “expense all capital items below
a certain amount” policy are not in violation of the materiality concept.
Because the same practice has been followed from year to year,

Damon’s actions are acceptable.
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BRIEF EXERCISE 2-13

(@) Accrual basis

(b) Full disclosure

(c) Expense recognition principle
(d) Cost principle

BRIEF EXERCISE 2-14

Costs; costs

General purpose financial reporting
Complete

Understandability

Comparability

Confirmatory value

SN~
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SOLUTIONS TO EXERCISES

EXERCISE 2-1 (10-15 minutes)

(a)
(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

True

False. General purpose financial reporting helps users who lack the
ability to demand all the financial information they need from an entity
and therefore must rely, at least partly, on the information provided in
financial reports. Managers and company insiders generally do not
meet these criteria.

False. Accounting standards based on individual conceptual frameworks
generally will not result in consistent and comparable accounting
reports. Rather, standard-setting that is based on personal conceptual
frameworks will lead to different conclusions about identical or similar
issues than it did previously. As a result, standards will not be con-
sistent with one another and past decisions may not be indicative of
future ones.

False. The objective of general purpose financial reporting is to
provide financial information about the reporting entity that is useful to
present and potential equity investors, lenders, and other creditors in
making decisions in their capacity as capital providers. However, that
information may also be useful to other users of financial reporting
who are not capital providers.

False. An implicit assumption is that users need reasonable knowledge
of business and financial accounting matters to understand the
information contained in financial statements. This point is important.
It means that financial statement preparers assume a level of com-
petence on the part of users. This assumption impacts the way and the
extent to which companies report information.

True.
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EXERCISE 2-2 (10-15 minutes)

(a)

(b)
(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

False. The fundamental qualitative characteristics that make accounting
information useful are relevance and faithful representation.

True.

False. The Framework does not include prudence or conservatism as
desirable qualities of financial reporting information. The framework
indicates that prudence or conservatism generally is in conflict with
the quality of neutrality. This is because by being prudent or con-
servative likely leads to a bias in the reported financial position and
financial performance. In fact, introducing biased understatement of
assets (or overstatement of liabilities) in one period frequently leads to
overstating financial performance in later periods—a result that cannot
be described as prudent. This is inconsistent with neutrality, which
encompasses freedom from bias.

False. To be a faithful representation, information must be complete,
neutral, and free of material error.

False. While comparability does pertain to the reporting of information in
a similar manner for different companies, it also refers to the consistency
of information, which is present when a company applies the same
accounting treatment to similar events, from period to period. Through
such application the company shows consistent use of accounting
standards and this permits valid comparisons from one period to
the next.

False. Verifiability is an enhancing characteristic for both relevance
and faithful representation. Verifiability occurs when independent
measurers, using the same methods obtain similar results.

True.
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EXERCISE 2-3 (15-20 minutes)

(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)

Confirmatory Value.
Cost/Benefit and Materiality.
Neutrality.

Consistency (note the overall
qualitative characteristic is
comparability; consistency is
considered part of
comparability).

EXERCISE 2-4 (15-20 minutes)

(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
(f)

Comparability.
Confirmatory Value.
Comparability.
Neutrality.
Verifiability.
Relevance.

EXERCISE 2-5 (10-15 minutes)

(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
()

(9)
(h)
(i)

Liabilities.

Equity.

Equity.

Income.

Assets.

Income, expenses.
Equity.

Income.

Equity.

(e)
(f)
(9)
(h)
()]
)]

(9)

(h)
(i)
)

Neutrality.

Relevance and Faithful Representation.
Timeliness.

Relevance.

Comparability.

Verifiability.

Comparability (Consistency),
Verifiability, Timeliness, and
Understandability.

Faithful Representation.

Relevance and Faithful Representation.
Timeliness.
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EXERCISE 2-6 (15-20 minutes)

(a) 8. Expense recognition principle.
(b) 6. Cost principle.

(c) 9. Full disclosure principle.

(d) 2. Going concern assumption.
(e) 10. Revenue recognition principle.
(f) 1. Economic entity assumption.
(9) 4. Periodicity assumption.

(h) 7. Fair value principle.

(i) 12. Materiality constraint.

(i) 3. Monetary unit assumption.

EXERCISE 2-7 (20-25 minutes)

(@) Historical cost principle. (k) Revenue and expense recogni-
(b) Accrual-basis assumption. tion principles.

(c) Full disclosure principle. () Economic entity assumption.
(d) Expense recognition principle. (m) Periodicity assumption.

(e) Materiality constraint. (n) Expense recognition principle.
(f) Fair value principle. (o) Materiality constraint.

(g) Economic entity assumption. (p) Historical cost principle.

(h) Full disclosure principle. (q) Accrual-basis assumption.

(i) Revenue recognition principle. (r) Expense recognition principle.
(i) Full disclosure principle.

EXERCISE 2-8

(a) It is well established in accounting that revenues, cost of goods sold
and expenses must be disclosed in an income statement. It might be
noted to students that such was not always the case. At one time, only
net income was reported but over time we have evolved to the present
reporting format.

(b) The proper accounting for this situation is to report the equipment as
an asset and the notes payable as a liability on the statement of
financial position. Offsetting is permitted in only limited situations
where certain assets are contractually committed to pay off liabilities,
or when a government grant is involved.
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EXERCISE 2-8 (Continued)

(c)

(d)

The basis upon which inventory amounts are stated (net realizable value)
and the method used in determining cost (Weighted Average, FIFO, etc.)
should also be reported. The disclosure requirement related to the
method used in determining cost should be emphasized, indicating that
where possible alternatives exist in financial reporting, disclosure in some
format is required.

Comparability requires that disclosure of changes in accounting princi-
ples be made in the financial statements. To do otherwise would result
in financial statements that are misleading. Financial statements are
more useful if they can be compared with similar reports for prior years.

EXERCISE 2-9

(a)

(b)

(c)

This entry violates the economic entity assumption. This assumption
in accounting indicates that economic activity can be identified with a
particular unit of accountability. In this situation, the company erred
by charging this cost to the wrong economic entity.

The cost principle indicates that assets and liabilities are accounted
for on the basis of cost. If we were to select sales value, for example,
we would have an extremely difficult time in attempting to establish a
sales value for a given item without selling it. It should further be
noted that the revenue recognition principle provides the answer to
when revenue should be recognized. Revenue should
be recognized when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow
to the entity and reliable measurement of the amount of revenue is
possible. In this situation, an earnings process has definitely not taken
place.

Probably the company should not record this loss. The expense
recognition principle indicates that expenses should be allocated to the
appropriate periods involved. In this case, there appears to be a high
uncertainty that the company will have to pay. IAS 37 requires that a
loss should be accrued only (1) when it is probable that the company
would lose the suit and (2) the amount of the loss can be reasonably
estimated. (Note to instructor: The student will probably be unfamiliar
with this standard. The purpose of this question is to develop some
decision framework when the probability of a future event must be
assumed.)
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EXERCISE 2-9 (Continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

At the present time, accountants generally do not recognize price-
level adjustments in the accounts. Hence, it is misleading to deviate
from the cost principle because conjecture or opinion can take place.
It should also be noted that depreciation is not so much a matter of
valuation as it is a means of cost allocation. Assets are not depreciated
on the basis of a decline in their fair value, but are depreciated on the
basis of systematic charges of expired costs against revenues.

Most accounting methods are based on the assumption that the busi-
ness enterprise will have a long life. Acceptance of this assumption
provides credibility to the historical cost principle, which would be of
limited usefulness if liquidation were assumed. Only if we assume some
permanence to the enterprise is the use of depreciation and amortization
policies justifiable and appropriate. Therefore, it is incorrect to assume
liquidation as Gonzales, Inc. has done in this situation. It should be
noted that only where liquidation appears imminent is the going concern
assumption inapplicable.

The answer to this situation is the same as (b).

EXERCISE 2-10

(a)

(b)

Depreciation is an allocation of cost, not an attempt to value assets.
As a consequence, even if the value of the building is increasing,
costs related to this building should be matched with revenues on the
income statement, not as a charge against retained earnings.

A gain should not be recognized until the inventory is sold. Accoun-
tants follow the cost approach and write-ups of assets are not
permitted. It should also be noted that the revenue recognition
principle states that revenue should not be recognized until the
benefits will flow to the company and can be measured reliably.
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EXERCISE 2-10 (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Assets should be recorded at the fair value of what is given up or the
fair value of what is received, whichever is more clearly evident. It
should be emphasized that it is not a violation of the cost principle to
use the fair value of the shares. Recording the asset at the par value of
the shares has no conceptual validity. Par value is merely an arbitrary
amount usually set at the date of incorporation.

The gain should be recognized at the point of sale. Deferral of the
gain should not be permitted. Revenue should be recognized when
it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity
and reliable measurement of the revenue is possible. To explore this
question at greater length, one might ask what justification other than
the controller’'s might be used to justify the deferral of the gain. For
example, the rationale provided in IFRS, noncompletion of the earnings
process, might be discussed.

It appears from the information that the sale should be recorded in
2012 instead of 2011. Regardless of whether the terms are f.o.b.
shipping point or f.0.b. destination, the point is that the inventory was
sold in 2012. It should be noted that if the company is employing a
perpetual inventory system in dollars and quantities, a debit to Cost
of Goods Sold and a credit to Inventory is also necessary in 2012.
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TIME AND PURPOSE OF CONCEPTS FOR ANALYSIS

CA 2-1 (Time 20—25 minutes)
Purpose—to provide the student with the opportunity to comment on the purpose of the conceptual
framework.

CA 2-2 (Time 25-35 minutes)

Purpose—to provide the student with the opportunity to identify and discuss the benefits of the con-
ceptual framework. In addition, the most important quality of information must be discussed, as well as
other key characteristics of accounting information.

CA 2-3 (Time 25-35 minutes)

Purpose—to provide the student with some familiarity with the objective of financial reporting. The
student is asked to indicate the objective of accounting, and to discuss how this statement might help to
establish accounting standards.

CA 2-4 (Time 30-35 minutes)

Purpose—to provide the student with some familiarity with the qualitative characteristics. The student is
asked to describe various characteristics of useful accounting information and to identify possible trade-
offs among these characteristics.

CA 2-5 (Time 25-30 minutes)

Purpose—to provide the student with the opportunity to indicate and discuss different points at which
revenues can be recognized. The student is asked to discuss the “crucial event” that triggers revenue
recognition.

CA 2-6 (Time 30—35 minutes)

Purpose—to provide the student with familiarity with an economic concept of income as opposed to the
IFRS approach. Also, factors to be considered in determining when net revenue should be recognized
are emphasized.

CA 2-7 (Time 20—25 minutes)

Purpose—to provide the student with an opportunity to assess different points to report costs as
expenses. Direct cause and effect, indirect cause and effect, and rational and systematic approaches
are developed.

CA 2-8 (Time 20—-30 minutes)

Purpose—to provide the student with a realistic case involving association of costs with revenues. The
advantages of expensing costs as incurred versus spreading costs are examined. Specific guidance is
asked on how allocation over time should be reported.

CA 2-9 (Time 20-30 minutes)

Purpose—to provide the student with the opportunity to discuss the relevance and faithful representation
of financial statement information. The student must write a letter on this matter so the case does
provide a good writing exercise for the students.

CA 2-10 (Time 20—25 minutes)
Purpose—to provide the student with the opportunity to discuss the ethical issues related to expense
recognition.

CA 2-11 (Time 30—-35 minutes)
Purpose—to provide the student with the opportunity to discuss the cost/benefit constraint.
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SOLUTIONS TO CONCEPTS FOR ANALYSIS

CA 2-1

(@)

A conceptual framework establishes the concepts that underlie financial reporting. A conceptual
framework is a coherent system of concepts that flow from an objective. The objective indentifies
the purpose of financial reporting. The other concepts provide guidance on (1) identifying the
boundaries of financial reporting (2) selecting the transactions, other events, and circumstances to
be represented. (3) how they should be recognized and measured, and (4) how they should be
summarized and reported.

A conceptual framework is necessary so that standard setting is useful, i.e., standard setting
should build on and relate to an established body of concepts and objectives. A well-developed
conceptual framework should enable the IASB to issue more useful and consistent standards in
the future.

Specific benefits that may arise are:

(1) A coherent set of standards and rules should result.

(2) New and emerging practical problems should be more quickly solved by reference to an
existing framework.

3) It should increase financial statement users’ understanding of and confidence in financial reporting.

4) It should enhance comparability among companies’ financial statements.

5) It should help determine the bounds for judgment in preparing financial statements.

6) It should provide guidance to the body responsible for establishing accounting standards.

o~~~ o~

CA 2-2

(@)

IASB’s framework should provide benefits to the accounting community such as:

(1) guiding the IASB in establishing accounting standards on a consistent basis.

(2) determining bounds for judgment in preparing financial statements by prescribing the nature,
functions and limits of financial accounting and reporting.

(3) increasing users’ understanding of and confidence in financial reporting.

The Framework identifies the most important quality for accounting information as usefulness for
decision making. Relevance and faithful representation are the fundamental qualities leading to this
decision usefulness. Usefulness is the most important quality because, without usefulness, there
would be no benefits from information to set against its costs.

The qualitative characteristics can be distinguished as fundamental or enhancing characteristics,
depending on how they affect the usefulness of information. Each quality is described briefly below.

Fundamental Qualities

Relevance To be relevant, accounting information must be capable of making a difference in a
decision. Information with no bearing on a decision is irrelevant. Financial information is capable of
making a difference when it has predictive value, confirmatory value, or both.

Faithful Representation For accounting information to be useful, it must be a faithful represen-
tation of the real-world phenomenon that it purports to represent. Faithful representation is a
necessity because most users have neither the time nor the expertise to evaluate the factual
content of the information. To be a faithful representation, information must be complete, neutral,
and free of material error.
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CA 2-2 (Continued)

Enhancing Qualities

Comparability. Information that is measured and reported in a similar manner for different
companies is considered comparable. Comparability enables users to identify the real similarities
and differences in economic events between companies. Another type of comparability, consistency,
is present when a company applies the same accounting treatment to similar events, from period
to period, the company shows consistent use of accounting standards.

Verifiability. Occurs when independent measurers, using the same methods obtain similar results.

Timeliness. Timeliness means having information available to decision makers before it loses its
capacity to influence decisions. Having relevant information available sooner can enhance its
capacity to influence decisions, and a lack of timeliness can rob information of its usefulness.

Understandability. Decision makers vary widely in the types of decisions they make, how they
make decisions, the information they already possess or can obtain from other sources, and their
ability to process the information. For information to be useful there must be a connection (linkage)
between these users and the decisions they make. This link, understandability, is the quality of
information that lets reasonably informed users see its significance. Understandability is enhanced
when information is classified, characterized, and presented clearly and concisely. Comparability
also can enhance understandability.

CA 2-3

(@)

The objective of general purpose financial reporting is to provide financial information about the
reporting entity that is useful to present and potential equity investors, lenders, and other
creditors in making decisions in their capacity as capital providers. Information that is
decision useful to capital providers may also be useful to other users of financial reporting who are
not capital providers. However, an implicit assumption is that users need reasonable knowledge of
business and financial accounting matters to understand the information contained in financial
statements. This point is important. It means that financial statement preparers assume a level
of competence on the part of users. This assumption impacts the way and the extent to which
companies report information.

The purpose of Framework is to set forth fundamentals on which financial accounting and
reporting standards may be based. Without an objective that everyone can agree to, inconsistent
standards will be developed. For example, some believe that accountability should be the primary
objective of financial reporting. Others argue that prediction of future cash flows is more important.
It follows that individuals who believe that accountability is the primary objective may arrive at different
financial reporting standards than others who argue for prediction of cash flow. Only by
establishing some consistent starting point can accounting ever achieve some underlying
consistency in establishing accounting principles.

It should be emphasized to the students that the Board itself is likely to be the major user and thus
the most direct beneficiary of the guidance provided by this pronouncement. However, knowledge
of the objectives and concepts the Board uses should enable all who are affected by or interested
in financial accounting standards to better understand the content and limitations of information
provided by financial accounting and reporting, thereby furthering their ability to use that informa-
tion effectively and enhancing confidence in financial accounting and reporting. That knowledge, if
used with care, may also provide guidance in resolving new or emerging problems of financial
accounting and reporting in the absence of applicable authoritative pronouncements.
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(@) (1) Relevance is one of the two fundamental decision-specific characteristics of useful
accounting information. Relevant information is capable of making a difference in a decision.
Relevant information helps users to make predictions about the outcomes of past, present,
and future events, or to confirm or correct prior expectations.

(2) Faithful representation is one of the two fundamental decision-specific characteristics of
useful accounting information. Faithfully represented information can be depended upon to
represent the conditions and events that it is intended to represent. Faithful representation
stems from completeness, neutrality, and lack of error.

(3) Understandability is an enhancing characteristic of information. Information is understandable
when it permits reasonably informed users to perceive its significance. Understandability is a
link between users, who vary widely in their capacity to comprehend or utilize the information,
and the decision-specific qualities of information.

(4) Comparability means that information about companies has been prepared and presented in a
similar manner. Comparability enhances comparisons between information about two different
companies at a particular point in time.

(5) Neutrality means that a company cannot select information to favor one set of parties over
another. Reporting unbiased information must be the overriding consideration. If financial
reporting is biased, financial reports will lose their credibility.

(b) (Note to instructor: There are a multitude of answers possible here. The suggestions below are
intended to serve as examples.)

(1) Forecasts of future operating results and projections of future cash flows may be highly relevant
to some decision makers. However, they would not be as representationally faithful as historical
cost information about past transactions.

(2) Proposed new accounting methods may be more relevant to many decision makers than exist-
ing methods. However, if adopted, they would impair consistency and make trend comparisons
of an company’s results over time difficult or impossible.

(3) There presently exists much diversity among acceptable accounting methods and procedures.
In order to facilitate comparability between companies, the use of only one accepted account-
ing method for a particular type of transaction could be required. However, consistency would
be impaired for those firms changing to the new required methods.

(4) Occasionally, relevant information is exceedingly complex. Judgment is required in determining
the optimum trade-off between relevance and understandability. Information about the impact of
general and specific price changes may be highly relevant but not understandable by all users.

(c) Although trade-offs result in the sacrifice of some desirable quality of information, the overall result
should be information that is more useful for decision making.

CA 2-5

(a) The various accepted times of recognizing revenue in the accounts are as follows:
(1) Time of sale. This time is currently acceptable when the costs and expenses related to the
particular transaction are reasonably determinable at the time of sale and when the collection
of the sales price is reasonably certain.
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CA 2-5 (Continued)

(b)

(@)

3)
(4)

(1)

At completion. This time is currently acceptable in extractive industries where the salability of
the product at a quoted price is likely and in the agricultural industry where there is a quoted
price for the product and only low additional costs of delivery to the market remain.

During production. This time is currently acceptable when the revenue is known from the
contract and total cost can be estimated to determine percentage of completion.

At collection. This time is currently acceptable when collections are received in installments,
when there are substantial “after costs” that unless anticipated would have the effect of
overstating income on a sales basis in the period of sale, and when collection risks are high.

The “crucial event’—that is, the most difficult task in the cycle of a complete transaction—in the
process of earning revenue may or may not coincide with the rendering of service to the
subscriber. The new director suggests that they do not coincide in the magazine business and
that revenue from subscription sales and advertising should be recognized in the accounts
when the difficult task of selling is accomplished and not when the magazines are published to
fill the subscriptions or to carry the advertising.

The director's view that there is a single crucial event in the process of earning revenue in the
magazine business is questionable even though the amount of revenue is determinable when
the subscription is sold. Although the firm cannot prosper without good advertising contracts and
while advertising rates depend substantially on magazine sales, it also is true that readers will
not renew their subscriptions unless the content of the magazine pleases them. Unless subscrip-
tions are obtained at prices that provide for the recovery in the first subscription period of all
costs of selling and filling those subscriptions, the editorial and publishing activities are as crucial
as the sale in the earning of the revenue. Even if the subscription rate does provide for the
recovery of all associated costs within the first period, however, the editorial and publishing
activities still would be important since the firm has an obligation (in the amount of the present
value of the costs expected to be incurred in connection with the editorial and publication
activities) to produce and deliver the magazine. Not until this obligation is fulfilled should the
revenue associated with it be recognized in the accounts since the revenue is the result of
accomplishing two difficult economic tasks (selling and filling subscriptions) and not just the first
one. The director's view also presumes that the cost of publishing the magazines can be
computed accurately at or close to the time of the subscription sale despite uncertainty about
possible changes in the prices of the factors of production and variations in efficiency. Hence,
only a portion—not most—of the revenue should be recognized in the accounts at the time the
subscription is sold.

Recognizing in the accounts all the revenue in equal portions with the publication of the
magazine every month is subject to some of the same criticism from the standpoint of theory
as the suggestion that all or most of the revenue be recognized in the accounts at the time the
subscription is sold. Although the journalistic efforts of the magazine are important in the pro-
cess of earning revenue, the firm could not prosper without magazine sales and the advertising
that results from paid circulation. Hence, some revenue should be recognized in the accounts
at the time of the subscription sale.

This alternative, even though it does not recognize revenue in the accounts quite as fast as it is
earned, is preferable to the first alternative because a greater proportion of the process of
earning revenue is associated with the monthly publication of the magazine than with the
subscription sale. For this reason, and because the task of estimating the amount of revenue
associated with the subscription sale often has been considered subjective, recognizing
revenue in the accounts with the monthly publication of the magazine has received support
even though it does not meet the tests of revenue recognition as well as the next alternative.
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CA 2-5 (Continued)

(3) Recognizing in the accounts a portion of the revenue at the time a cash subscription is
obtained and a portion each time an issue is published meets the tests of revenue recognition
better than the other two alternatives. A portion of the net income is recognized in the accounts
at the time of each major or crucial event. Each crucial event is clearly discernible and is a time
of interaction between the publisher and subscriber. A legal sale is transacted before any
revenue is recognized in the accounts. Prior to the time the revenue is recognized in the
accounts, it already has been received in distributable form. Finally, the total revenue is
measurable with more than the usual certainty, and the revenue attributable to each crucial
event is determinable using reasonable (although sometimes conceptually unsatisfactory)
assumptions about the relationship between revenue and costs when the costs are indirect.

(Note to instructor: CA 2-5 might also be assigned in conjunction with Chapter 18.)

CA 2-6

(@)

The economist views business income in terms of wealth of the entity as a whole resulting from an
accretion attributable to the whole process of business activity. The accountant must measure the
“wealth” of the entity in terms of its component parts, that is, individual assets and liabilities. The
events must be identified which cause changes in financial condition of the entity and the resulting
changes should be assigned to specific accounting periods. To achieve this identification of such
events, accountants employ the revenue recognition principle in the measurement of periodic
income.

Revenue recognition results from the accomplishment of economic activity involving the transfer of
goods and services giving rise to a claim. To warrant recognition there must be a change in assets
that is capable of being objectively measured and that involves an exchange transaction. This
refers to the presence of an arm’s-length transaction with a party external to the entity. The
existence and terms of the transaction may be defined by operation of law, by established trade
practice, or may be stipulated in a contract.

In general, an item that meets the definition of an element should be recognized if: (a) it is
probable that any future economic benefit associated with the item will flow to or from the entity;
and (b) the item has a cost or value that can be measured with reliability. With respect to revenue,
it is recognized when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the company and
reliable measurement of the amount of revenue is possible.

Events that can give rise to recognition of revenue are: the completion of a sale; the performance
of a service; the production of a standard interchangeable good with a guaranteed market, a deter-
minable market value and only minor costs of marketing, such as precious metals and certain
agricultural commodities; and the progress of a construction project, as in shipbuilding. The passing
of time may be the “event” that establishes the recognition of revenue, as in the case of interest
revenue or rental income.

As a practical consideration, there must be a reasonable degree of certainty in measuring the
amount of revenue recognized. Problems of measurement may arise in estimating the degree
of completion of a contract, the amortized cost or fair value of a receivable or the value of a
nonmonetary asset received in an exchange transaction. In some cases, while the revenue may
be readily measured, it may be impossible to estimate reasonably the related expenses. In such
instances revenue recognition must be deferred until proper periodic income measurement can be
achieved.
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CA 2-6 (Continued)

(c)

No. The factor apparently relied upon by Lopez Associates is that revenue is recognized as the
services giving rise to it are performed. The firm has completed the construction of the building,
obtained financing for the project, and secured tenants for most of the space. Management of the
project is yet to be rendered and Lopez did not accrue revenue for this service. However, another
factor must be considered. Since the fee for Lopez’s services has as its source the future profits of
the project, on May 31, 2011, there is no way to measure objectively the amount of the fee. Setting
the amount at the commercial value of the services might be a reasonable approach were it not
for the contingent nature of the source of the fees. That an asset, contracts receivable, exists as a
result of this activity is outweighed by the inability to measure it objectively. Revenue recognition at
this time is unwarranted because of the contingent nature of the revenue and the likelihood of
overstating the assets. Thus, revenue recognition at this point would not be in accordance with
international financial reporting standards.

Because revenue cannot be recognized, the related expenses should be deferred so that they can
be amortized over the respective periods of revenue recognition. With a reasonable expectation of
future benefit, the deferred costs conform to the accounting concept of assets.

CA 2-7

(@)

Some costs are recognized as expenses on the basis of a presumed direct association with
specific revenue. This presumed direct association has been identified as the expense recognition
principle, or in this case as “associating cause and effect’ (“matching concept.”)

Direct cause-and-effect relationships can seldom be conclusively demonstrated, but many costs
appear to be related to particular revenue, and recognizing them as expenses accompanies
recognition of the revenue. Generally, the expense recognition principle requires that the revenue
recognized and the expenses incurred to produce the revenue be given concurrent periodic recog-
nition in the accounting records. Only if effort is properly related to accomplishment will the results,
called earnings, have useful significance concerning the efficient utilization of business resources.
Thus, applying the expense recognition principle is a recognition of the cause-and-effect relationship
that exists between expense and revenue.

Examples of expenses that are usually recognized by associating cause and effect are sales
commissions, freight-out on merchandise sold, and cost of goods sold or services provided.

Some costs are assigned as expenses to the current accounting period because

(1) their incurrence during the period provides no discernible future benefits;

(2) they are measures of assets recorded in previous periods from which no future benefits are
expected or can be discerned;

(3) they must be incurred each accounting year, and no build-up of expected future benefits occurs;

(4) by their nature they relate to current revenues even though they cannot be directly associated
with any specific revenues;

(5) the amount of cost to be deferred can be measured only in an arbitrary manner or great
uncertainty exists regarding the realization of future benefits, or both;

(6) and uncertainty exists regarding whether allocating them to current and future periods will
serve any useful purpose.

Thus, many costs are called “period costs” and are treated as expenses in the period incurred
because they have neither a direct relationship with revenue earned nor can their occurrence be
directly shown to give rise to an asset. The application of this principle of expense recognition results
in charging many costs to expense in the period in which they are paid or accrued for payment.
Examples of costs treated as period expenses would include officers’ salaries, advertising, research
and development, and auditors’ fees.
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CA 2-7 (Continued)

(c)

A cost should be capitalized, that is, treated as a measure of an asset when it is expected that the
asset will produce benefits in future periods. The important concept here is that the incurrence of
the cost has resulted in the acquisition of an asset, a future service potential. If a cost is incurred
that resulted in the acquisition of an asset from which benefits are not expected beyond the current
period, the cost may be expensed as a measure of the service potential that expired in producing
the current period’s revenues. Not only should the incurrence of the cost result in the acquisition of
an asset from which future benefits are expected, but also the cost should be measurable with a
reasonable degree of objectivity, and there should be reasonable grounds for associating it with
the asset acquired. Examples of costs that should be treated as measures of assets are the costs
of merchandise on hand at the end of an accounting period, costs of insurance coverage relating
to future periods, and the cost of self-constructed plant or equipment.

In the absence of a direct basis for associating asset cost with revenue and if the asset provides
benefits for two or more accounting periods, its cost should be allocated to these periods (as an
expense) in a systematic and rational manner. Thus, when it is impractical, or impossible, to find a
close cause-and-effect relationship between revenue and cost, this relationship is often assumed
to exist. Therefore, the asset cost is allocated to the accounting periods by some method. The
allocation method used should appear reasonable to an unbiased observer and should be followed
consistently from period to period. Examples of systematic and rational allocation of asset cost
would include depreciation of fixed assets, amortization of intangibles, and allocation of rent and
insurance.

A cost should be treated as a loss when no revenue results. The matching of losses to specific
revenue should not be attempted because, by definition, they are expired service potentials not
related to revenue produced. That is, losses result from events that are not anticipated as
necessary in the process of producing revenue.

There is no simple way of identifying a loss because ascertaining whether a cost should be a loss
is often a matter of judgment. The accounting distinction between an asset, expense, loss, and
prior period adjustment is not clear-cut. For example, an expense is usually voluntary, planned,
and expected as necessary in the generation of revenue. But a loss is a measure of the service
potential expired that is considered abnormal, unnecessary, unanticipated, and possibly nonrecur-
ring and is usually not taken into direct consideration in planning the size of the revenue stream.

CA 2-8

(@)

The preferable treatment of the costs of the sample display houses is expensing them over more
than one period. These sample display houses are assets because they represent rights to future
service potentials or economic benefits.

According to the expense recognition principle, the costs of service potentials should be amortized
as the benefits are received. Thus, costs of the sample display houses should be matched with the
revenue from the sale of the houses which is receivable over a period of more than one year. As
the sample houses are left on display for three to seven years, Daniel Barenboim apparently
expects to benefit from the displays for at least that length of time.
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CA

2-8 (Continued)

The alternative of expensing the costs of sample display houses in the period in which the
expenditure is made is based primarily upon the uncertainty of measurement. These costs are of a
promotional nature. Promotional costs often are considered expenses of the period in which the
expenditures occur due to the uncertainty in determining the time periods benefited. It is likely that
no decision is made concerning the life of a sample display house at the time it is erected. Past
experience may provide some guidance in determining the probable life. A decision to tear down
or alter a house probably is made when sales begin to lag or when a new model with greater
potential becomes available.

There is uncertainty not only as to the life of a sample display house but also as to whether a
sample display house will be torn down or altered. If it is altered rather than torn down, a portion of
the cost of the original house may be attributable to the new model.

If all of the shell houses are to be sold at the same price, it may be appropriate to allocate the
costs of the display houses on the basis of the number of shell houses sold. This allocation would
be similar to the units-of-production method of depreciation and would result in a good matching of
costs with revenues. On the other hand, if the shell houses are to be sold at different prices, it may
be preferable to allocate costs on the basis of the revenue contribution of the shell houses sold.

There is uncertainty regarding the number of homes of a particular model which will be sold as a
result of the display sample. The success of this amortization method is dependent upon accurate
estimates of the number and selling price of shell houses to be sold. The estimate of the number
of units of a particular model which will be sold as a result of a display model should include
not only units sold while the model is on display but also units sold after the display house is torn
down or altered.

Cost amortization solely on the basis of time may be preferable when the life of the models can be
estimated with a great deal more accuracy than can the number of units which will be sold. If unit
sales and selling prices are uniform over the life of the sample, a satisfactory matching of costs
and revenues may be achieved if the straight-line amortization procedure is used.
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CA 2-9

Date

Dear Uncle Carlos,

| received the information on Neville Corp. and appreciate your interest in sharing this venture with me.
However, | think that basing an investment decision on these financial statements would be unwise
because they are neither relevant nor a faithful presentation.

One of the most important characteristics of accounting information is that it is relevant, i.e., it will make
a difference in my decision. To be relevant, this information must have predictive value, confirmatory
value, or both. Being timely is also important. Because Neville’s financial statements are a year old,
they have lost their ability to influence my decision: a lot could have changed in that one year.

As indicated, one element of relevance is predictive value. Neville’s accounting information proves
irrelevant. Shown without reference to other years’ profitability, it cannot help me predict future profit-
ability because | cannot see any trends developing. Closely related to predictive value is confirmatory
value. These financial statements do not provide feedback on any strategies which the company may
have used to increase profits.

These financial statements also are not faithfully presented. In order to be so, their assertions must be
verifiable by several independent parties. Because no independent auditor has verified these amounts,
there is no way of knowing whether or not they are represented faithfully. For instance, | would like to
believe that this company earned €2,424,240, and that it had a very favorable debt-to-equity ratio.
However, unaudited financial statements do not give me any reasonable assurance about these claims.

Finally, the fact that Mrs. Neville herself prepared these statements indicates a lack of neutrality.
Because she is not a disinterested third party, | cannot be sure that she did not prepare the financial
statements in favor of her husband’s business.

| do appreciate the trouble you went through to get me this information. Under the circumstances,
however, | do not wish to invest in the Neville bonds and would caution you against doing so. Before
you make a decision in this matter, please call me.

Sincerely,

Your Nephew
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CA 2-10

The stakeholders are investors, creditors, etc.; i.e., users of financial statements, current and future.
Honesty and integrity of financial reporting, job protection, profit.

Applying the expense recognition principle and recording expense during the plant’s life, or not
applying it. That is, record the mothball costs in the future.

The major question may be whether or not the expense of mothballing can be estimated properly
so that the integrity of financial reporting is maintained. Applying the expense recognition principle
will result in lower profits and possibly higher rates for consumers. Could this cost anyone his or
her job? Will investors and creditors have more useful information? On the other hand, failure to
apply the matching principle means higher profits, lower rates, and greater potential job security.

Students’ recommendations will vary.
Note: Other stakeholders possibly affected are present and future consumers of electric power.

Delay in allocating the expense will benefit today’s consumers of electric power at the expense of
future consumers.

CA 2-11

1.

Information about competitors might be useful for benchmarking the company’s results but if
management does have expertise in providing the information, it could lack reliability. In addition, it is
likely very costly for management to gather sufficiently reliable information of this nature.

While users of financial statements might benefit from receiving internal information, such as
company plans and budgets, competitors might also be able to use this information to gain a
competitive advantage relative to the disclosing company.

In order to produce forecasted financial statements, management would have to make numerous
assumptions and estimates, which would be costly in terms of time and data collection. Because of
the subjectivity involved, the forecasted statements would lack reliability, thereby detracting from
any potential benefits. In addition, while management’s forecasts of future profitability or statement
of financial position amounts could be of benefit, companies could be subject to shareholder
lawsuits, if the amounts in the forecasted statements are not realized.

It would be excessively costly for companies to gather and report information that is not used in
managing the business.

Flexible reporting allows companies to “fine-tune” their financial reporting to meet the information
needs of its varied users. In this way, they can avoid the cost of providing information that is not
demanded by its users.

Similar to number 3, concerning forecasted financial statements, if managers report forward-
looking information, the company could be exposed to liability if investors unduly rely on the
information in making investment decisions. Thus, if companies get protection from unwarranted
lawsuits (called a safe harbor), then they might be willing to provide potentially beneficial forward-
looking information.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING PROBLEM

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

According to Note 1—Accounting Policies, “Revenue comprises sales of
goods to customers outside the Group less an appropriate deduction for
actual and expected returns, discounts and loyalty scheme voucher
costs, and is stated net of Value Added Tax and other sales taxes. Sales
of furniture and online sales are recorded on delivery to the customer.”

Most of the information presented in M&S’s financial statements is
reported on an historical cost basis. Examples are: Property, Plant, and
Equipment, Intangible Assets, Investment Properties, and Inventories
(subject to net realizable value). Regarding the use of fair value, some
investments and other financial assets are reported at fair value. In
addition, the fair value of the company’s financial instruments and the
market value of pension assets are disclosed.

Examination of the auditor’s report. Also, M&S discusses a number of
new accounting pronouncements issued or effective during the fiscal
year (e.g., IFRS 7, IFRIC 11, IFRIC 14). M&S indicates that they have had
or are expected to have a material impact on the financial statements.

According to the discussion of “Critical accounting estimates and
judgements’:

Refunds and loyalty scheme accruals

Accruals for sales returns and loyalty scheme redemption are estimated
on the basis of historical returns and redemptions and these are recorded
so as to allocate them to the same period as the original revenue is
recorded. These provisions are reviewed regularly and updated to reflect
management’s latest best estimates, however, actual returns and redemp-
tions could vary from these estimates.

Companies include an expanded discussion of items like Refunds and
loyalty schemes because the preparation of financial statements
requires estimates and assumptions. However, actual results may differ
from these estimates and these estimates and assumptions have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount
of assets and liabilities.
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COMPARATIVE ANALYSIS CASE

(a)

(b)

(c)

Cadbury’s financial statements are stated in units of pounds sterling
(£—United Kingdom currency). Nestle uses Swiss francs (CHF). Compa-
rability is not a concern when comparing results for each company
from one year to the next or when comparing Cadbury (Nestle) to
other U.K. (Swiss) companies. There are also no concerns if these
companies are compared on the basis of ratios (such as a debt to
total assets or return on total assets). This is because the amounts in the
numerator and denominator are on the same basis, thereby preserving
the relationships. However, when comparing gross amounts, currencies
must be translated to provide meaningful comparisons. For example,
Nestle reported total 2008 sales of CHF 107,552 million. To compare this
to Cadbury, which reported revenue sales of £ 5,384 million, using an
exchange rate of 1.56 CHF per £, Cadbury reports CHF 8,399 million
(5,384 X 1.56) of revenue in terms of Swiss francs.

Following demerger of its beverage businesses in 2008, Cadbury is
a focused confectionary business. This business is managed based
on four regions—Europe, BIMA (Britain, Ireland, Middle East, Africa),
Americas, and Asia Pacific. Nestle reports on the basis of two segment
formats—by Management Responsibility and Geographic Area (Europe;
Americas; Asia, Oceana, and Africa; Nestle Waters, Nestle Nutrition,
and Other Food and Beverages) and Product Group (Beverages; Milk
and milk products; Prepared dishes and cooking aids; Confectionery;
Petcare; and Pharmaceutical products).

For Nestle, Confectionery comprises 11.4% (CHF 12,248 million/CHF
107,552 million) of total sales. All of Cadbury’s revenues (£ 5,384
million or CHF 8,399 million) are in confectionery. Cadbury indicates it
is No. 2 in the world in confectionery sales (apparently behind Nestle).

For Cadbury, inventories are recorded at the lower of average cost
and estimated net realizable value. Cost comprises direct material and
labour costs together with the relevant factory overheads (including
depreciation) on the basis of normal activity levels. Amounts are
removed from inventory based on the average value of the items of
inventory removed.
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COMPARATIVE ANALYSIS CASE (Continued)

(d)

For Nestle, raw materials and purchased finished goods are valued at
purchase cost. Work in progress and manufactured finished goods
are valued at production cost. Production cost includes direct production
costs and an appropriate proportion of production overheads and
factory depreciation. Raw material inventories and purchased finished
goods are accounted for using the FIFO (first in, first out) method.
The weighted average cost method is used for other inventories. An
allowance is established when the net realizable value of any inventory
item is lower than the value calculated above.

While both companies value inventory at lower of cost or net realizable
value, Nestle values raw materials inventories using FIFO. Depending
on the age of inventories, comparisons based on inventory levels may
need to be adjusted for this difference.

Both companies (Cadbury in Note 39; Nestle in Note 1 and Note 32)
discuss changes in accounting standards that may affect their
reports. Cadbury reports no effects in 2008.

For Nestle, it indicates applying new accounting policies from 1 January
2008 onwards:

IFRIC 14-1AS 19—The limit on a defined benefit asset, minimum funding
requirements and their interaction. This interpretation requires
companies to determine the availability of refunds or reductions in
future contributions in accordance with the terms and conditions of
the plans and the statutory requirements of the plans of the respective
jurisdictions. The retrospective application of IFRIC 14 impacted the
2007 Consolidated Financial Statements (refer to Note 32).

Reclassification of Financial Assets—Amendments to IAS 39—Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and IFRS 7—Financial
Instruments: Disclosures. These amendments allow entities to reclassify
non-derivative financial assets from the fair value through profit or
loss category if the assets are no longer held for the purpose of selling
or repurchasing and if the entity has the intention and ability to hold
them for the foreseeable future or until maturity. The Group did not
reclassify any financial assets out of the fair value through profit or
loss category in 2008.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT ANALYSIS CASE—NOKIA

(a)

(b)

The IASB’s framework indicates that revenue is to be recognized
when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the
entity and reliable measurement of the amount of revenue is possible.
Based on these fundamental concepts of revenue recognition, criteria
are then established for various kinds of revenue transactions through
the development of related IFRS.

1. For revenue related to sales, Nokia indicates that the criteria are
met when it is probable that economic benefits associated with
the transaction will flow to the Group and the costs incurred or to
be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably
and when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have
transferred to the buyer. Thus, it would appear that sales of
products are recognized at point of sale.

2. Revenue from contracts is recognized on the percentage of com-
pletion basis, when the outcome of the contract can be estimated
reliably. Under this approach Nokia must reassess over the life of
the contract whether it is probable that future economic benefits
will flow to the entity and reliable measurement of the amount of
revenue is possible.

A number of estimates are required in applying these revenue recogni-
tion policies. For example, sales may materially change if manage-
ment’s assessment of such criteria was determined to be inaccurate.
Specifically, Nokia makes price protection adjustments based on
estimates of future price reductions and certain agreed customer
inventories at the date of the price adjustment. Possible changes in
these estimates could result in revisions to the sales in future periods. In
this case, the revenue amounts will not be faithful representations
and they will lack predictive value (not relevant).
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT ANALYSIS CASE—NOKIA (Continued)

(c)

With respect to revenue from contracts, recognized revenues and
profits are subject to revisions during the project in the event that the
assumptions regarding the overall project outcome are revised.
Current sales and profit estimates for projects may materially change
due to the early stage of a long-term project, new technology,
changes in the project scope, changes in costs, changes in timing,
changes in customers’ plans, realization of penalties, and other
corresponding factors. Again, the revenue amounts will not be faithful
representations and they will lack predictive value (not relevant).

Even if all phone-makers use the same policy, it still might be difficult
to compare their revenue numbers. As indicated in (b), management
makes a humber of judgments and estimates in determining whether
the criteria have been met. For example, if one company’s management
is more optimistic in estimating the costs to complete a contract,
it will recognize more revenue from a contract and it will recognize
the revenue earlier. This will result in revenue numbers that are not
comparable to another company with a similar contract but whose
management used less optimistic estimates.
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ACCOUNTING, ANALYSIS AND PRINCIPLES

ACCOUNTING
CADDIE SHACK COMPANY
Statement of Financial Position
May 31, 2010
Assets Owners’ equity
Building $ 6,000 Contributed capital $20,000
Equipment 800 Retained earnings 1,650
Cash 15,100
Total assets $21,900 Liabilities
Advertising payable 150
Utilities payable 100

Total liabilities & equity $21,900

Accrual income = $4,700 — $1,000 — $750 — $400 — $100 = $2,450
Retained Earnings balance = $0 + $2,450 — $800 = $1,650

Murray’s might conclude that his business earned a profit of $2,450
because that is his accrual income for the month. The conclusion that his
business lost $4,900 might come from the change in the business’s cash
balance, which started at $20,000 and ended the month at $15,100.

ANALYSIS

The income measure of $2,450 is most relevant for assessing the future
profitability and hence the payoffs to the owners. For example, charging
the cost of the building and equipment to expense in the first month of
operations understates income in the first month. These costs should be
allocated to future periods of benefit through depreciation expense.
Similarly, although not paid, the utilities were used to generate revenues so
they should be recognized when incurred, not when paid.
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ACCOUNTING, ANALYSIS AND PRINCIPLES (Continued)

PRINCIPLES

IFRS income is the accrual income computed above as $2,450. The key
concept illustrated in the difference between the loss of $4,900 and profit of
$2,450 is the expense recognition principle, which calls for recognition of
expenses when incurred, not when paid. Excluding the cash withdrawal
from the measurement of income (the difference between income measures
in parts ¢ and d) is an application of the definition of basic elements. Cash
withdrawals are distributions to owners, not an element of income (expenses
or losses).
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PROFESSIONAL RESEARCH

Search Strings: “materiality”, “completeness”

(a) According to the Framework (para. 30): Information is defined to be
material if its omission or misstatement could influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

(b) (1) According to the Framework, (para. 29-30):

29 The relevance of information is affected by its nature and materiality.
In some cases, the nature of information alone is sufficient to deter-
mine its relevance. For example, the reporting of a new segment
may affect the assessment of the risks and opportunities facing the
entity irrespective of the materiality of the results achieved by
the new segment in the reporting period. In other cases, both the
nature and materiality are important, for example, the amounts of
inventories held in each of the main categories that are appropriate
to the business.

30 Information is material if its omission or misstatement could
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the
financial statements. Materiality depends on the size of the item
or error judged in the particular circumstances of its omission or
misstatement. Thus, materiality provides a threshold or cut-off point
rather than being a primary qualitative characteristic which information
must have if it is to be useful.

(2) With respect to Completeness (para. 30):

To be reliable, the information in financial statements must be complete
within the bounds of materiality and cost. An omission can cause
information to be false or misleading and thus unreliable and deficient
in terms of its relevance.

This statement indicates that excluding immaterial items will not affect
the completeness of the financial statements.
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PROFESSIONAL RESEARCH (Continued)
(c) According to the Framework (para. 22):
Accrual basis

In order to meet their objectives, financial statements are prepared on
the accrual basis of accounting. Under this basis, the effects of trans-
actions and other events are recognized when they occur (and not as
cash or its equivalent is received or paid) and they are recorded in the
accounting records and reported in the financial statements of the
periods to which they relate. Financial statements prepared on the accrual
basis inform users not only of past transactions involving the payment
and receipt of cash but also of obligations to pay cash in the future and
of resources that represent cash to be received in the future. Hence,
they provide the type of information about past transactions and other
events that is most useful to users in making economic decisions.
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PROFESSIONAL SIMULATION

Explanation

1. Most accounting methods are based on the assumption that the business
enterprise will have a long life. Acceptance of this assumption pro-
vides credibility to the historical cost principle, which would be of
limited usefulness if liquidation were assumed. Only if we assume
some permanence to the enterprise is the use of depreciation and
amortization policies justifiable and appropriate. Therefore, it is incorrect
to assume liquidation as the company has done in this situation. It
should be noted that only where liquidation appears imminent is the
going concern assumption inapplicable.

2. Probably the company is too conservative in its accounting for this
transaction. The expense recognition principle indicates that expenses
should be allocated to the appropriate periods involved. In this case,
there appears to be a high uncertainty that the company will have to
pay. International Accounting Standard No. 37 requires that a loss
should be accrued only (1) when it is probable that the company would
lose the suit and (2) the amount of the loss can be reasonably
estimated. (Note to instructor: The student will probably be unfamiliar
with this IAS. The purpose of this question is to develop some decision
framework when the probability of a future event must be assumed.)

3. This entry violates the economic entity assumption. This assumption
in accounting indicates that economic activity can be identified with a
particular unit of accountability. In this situation, the company erred by
charging this cost to the wrong economic entity.

Research

According to the Framework (para. 30): Information is defined to be material if
its omission or misstatement could influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of the financial statements. Materiality depends on
the size of the item or error judged in the particular circumstances of its
omission or misstatement. Thus, materiality provides a threshold or cut-off
point rather than being a primary qualitative characteristic which information
must have if it is to be useful.
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PROFESSIONAL SIMULATION (Continued)
Furthermore, a context for understanding Materiality is provided in para. 29:

29 The relevance of information is affected by its nature and materiality.
In some cases, the nature of information alone is sufficient to determine
its relevance. For example, the reporting of a new segment may affect
the assessment of the risks and opportunities facing the entity
irrespective of the materiality of the results achieved by the new
segment in the reporting period. In other cases, both the nature and
materiality are important, for example, the amounts of inventories held
in each of the main categories that are appropriate to the business.
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CHAPTER 3

The Accounting Information System

ASSIGNMENT CLASSIFICATION TABLE (BY TOPIC)

Topics Questions Ex:rrcl:tiasfes Exercises Problems
1. Transaction identification. 1,2,3,5 1,2 1,2,3,4,17 1
2. Nominal accounts. 4,7
3. Trial balance. 6, 10 2,3,4 1,2,7
4. Adjusting entries. 8,11,13, 14 3,4,5,6,7, 5,6,7,8, 1,2, 3,4,5,6,
8,9,10 9,10, 20 7,8,9, 11
5. Financial statements. 11,12, 15, 1,2,4,6
22,23
6. Closing. 12 11 13, 14, 16 1,4,8,9, 11
7. Inventory and cost 9 12,14, 15
of goods sold.
8. Comprehensive accounting 1, 2,6, 11
cycle.
*9. International convergence. 15,16, 17
*10. Cash vs. Accrual Basis. 18, 19, 20 12 18,19 10
*11. Reversing entries. 21 13 20
*12.  Worksheet. 22 21,22,23 11
*These topics are dealt with in an Appendix to the Chapter.
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ASSIGNMENT CLASSIFICATION TABLE (BY LEARNING OBJECTIVE)

Brief
Learning Objectives Exercises Exercises Problems
1. Understand basic accounting terminology.
2. Explain double-entry rules.
3. Identify steps in accounting cycle.
4. Record transactions in journals, post to ledger 1,2, 3, 4, 1,2,3,4,17 1,4,8,9
accounts, and prepare a trial balance. 5,6,7
5. Explain the reasons for preparing adjusting 3,4,5,6,7, 5,6,7,8, 2,3,4,5,6,
entries. 8,9,10 9,10, 20 7,8,9, 11
6. Prepare financial statements from the adjusted 11,12, 15 1,2,4,6,7,
trail balance. 8,9, 11
7. Prepare closing entries. 11 13, 14, 16 1,4,8,9, 11
*8. Differentiate the cash basis of accounting from 12 18, 19 10
the accrual basis of accounting.
*9. Identify adjusting entries that may be reversed. 13 20
*10. Prepare a 10-column worksheet. 21, 22,23 11

*These topics are dealt with in an Appendix to the Chapter.
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ASSIGNMENT CHARACTERISTICS TABLE

Level of Time
ltem Description Difficulty (minutes)
ES3-1 Transaction analysis—service company. Simple 15-20
E3-2 Corrected trial balance. Simple 10-15
E3-3 Corrected trial balance. Simple 15-20
E3-4 Corrected trial balance. Simple 10-15
E3-5 Adjusting entries. Moderate 10-15
E3-6 Adjusting entries. Moderate 15-20
E3-7 Analyze adjusted data. Complex 1520
E3-8 Adjusting entries. Moderate 10-15
E3-9 Adjusting entries. Moderate 15-20
E3-10 Adjusting entries. Complex 25-30
E3-11 Prepare financial statements. Moderate 20-25
E3-12 Prepare financial statements. Moderate 20-25
E3-13 Closing entries. Simple 10-15
E3-14 Closing entries. Moderate 10-15
E3-15 Missing amounts. Simple 10-15
E3-16 Closing entries for a corporation. Moderate 10-15
E3-17 Transactions of a corporation, including investment Moderate 10-15

and dividend.

*E3-18 Cash to accrual basis. Moderate 1520

*E3-19 Cash to accrual basis. Moderate 10-15

*E3-20 Adjusting and reversing entries. Complex 20-25

*E3-21 Worksheet. Simple 10-15

*E3-22 Worksheet and statement of financial position Moderate 20-25

presentation.

*E3-23 Partial worksheet preparation. Moderate 10-15
P3-1 Transactions, financial statements—service company. Moderate 25-35
P3-2 Adjusting entries and financial statements. Moderate 35-40
P3-3 Adjusting entries. Moderate 25-30
P3-4 Financial statements, adjusting and closing entries. Moderate 40-50
P3-5 Adjusting entries. Moderate 1520
P3-6 Adjusting entries and financial statements. Moderate 25-35
P3-7 Adjusting entries and financial statements. Moderate 25-35
P3-8 Adjusting and closing. Moderate 3040
P3-9 Adjusting and closing. Moderate 30-35

*P3-10 Cash and accrual basis. Moderate 35-40

*P3-11 Worksheet, statement of financial position, adjusting and Complex 40-50

closing entries.
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ANSWERS TO QUESTIONS

1. Examples are:

(a) Payment of an accounts payable.

(b) Collection of an accounts receivable from a customer.

(c) Transfer of an accounts payable to a note payable.

2. Transactions (a), (b), (d) are considered business transactions and are recorded in the accounting
records because a change in assets, liabilities, or equity has been effected as a result of a transfer of
values from one party to another. Transactions (c) and (e) are not business transactions because a
transfer of values has not resulted, nor can the event be considered financial in nature and capable of
being expressed in terms of money.

3. Transaction (a): Accounts Receivable (debit), Service Revenue (credit).

Transaction (b): Cash (debit), Accounts Receivable (credit).

Transaction (c): Office Supplies (debit), Accounts Payable (credit).

Transaction (d): Delivery Expense (debit), Cash (credit).

4. Revenue and expense accounts are referred to as temporary or nominal accounts because each
period they are closed out to Income Summary in the closing process. Their balances are reduced to
zero at the end of the accounting period; therefore, the term temporary or nominal is given to these
accounts.

5. Andrea is not correct. The double-entry system means that for every debit amount there must be a
credit amount and vice-versa. At least two accounts are affected. It does not mean that each trans-
action must be recorded twice.

6. Although it is not absolutely necessary that a trial balance be taken periodically, it is customary and
desirable. The trial balance accomplishes two principal purposes:

(1) It tests the accuracy of the entries in that it proves that debits and credits of an equal amount are in
the ledger.

(2) It provides a list of ledger accounts and their balances which may be used in preparing the
financial statements and in supplying financial data about the concern.

7. (a) Real account; statement of financial position.

(b) Real account; statement of financial position.

(c) Merchandise inventory is generally considered a real account appearing on the statement of financial
position. It has the elements of a nominal account when the periodic inventory system is used. It may
appear on the income statement when the multiple-step format is used under a periodic inventory
system.

(d) Real account; statement of financial position.

(e) Real account; statement of financial position.

() Nominal account; income statement.

(g) Nominal account; income statement.

(h) Real account; statement of financial position.

8. At December 31, the three days’ wages due to the employees represent a current liability. The related
expense must be recorded in this period to properly reflect the expense incurred.

9. (a) In a service company, revenues are service revenues and expenses are operating expenses. In a
merchandising company, revenues are sales revenues and expenses consist of cost of goods sold
plus operating expenses.

(b) The measurement process in a merchandising company consists of comparing the sales price of
the merchandise inventory to the cost of goods sold and operating expenses.
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Questions Chapter 3 (Continued)

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

No change.

Before closing, balances exist in these accounts; after closing, no balances exist.

Before closing, balances exist in these accounts; after closing, no balances exist.

Before closing, a balance exists in this account exclusive of any dividends or the net income or net
loss for the period; after closing, the balance is increased or decreased by the amount of net income
or net loss, and decreased by dividends declared.

(e) No change.

(a
(b
(c
(d

)
)
)
)

Adjusting entries are prepared prior to the preparation of financial statements in order to bring the
accounts up to date and are necessary (1) to achieve a proper matching of revenues and expenses in
measuring income and (2) to achieve an accurate presentation of assets, liabilities and equity.

Closing entries are prepared to transfer the balances of nominal accounts to capital (retained earnings)
after the adjusting entries have been recorded and the financial statements prepared. Closing entries
are necessary to reduce the balances in nominal accounts to zero in order to prepare the accounts for
the next period’s transactions.

Cost — Salvage Value = Depreciable Cost: $4,000 — $0 = $4,000. Depreciable Cost + Useful Life =
Depreciation Expense For One Year $4,000 + 5 years = $800 per year. The asset was used for
6 months (7/1 — 12/31), therefore 1/2-year of depreciation expense should be reported. Annual
depreciation X 6/12 = amount to be reported on 2010 income statement: $800 X 6/12 = $400.

December 31
INtErest RECEIVADIE. ...ttt e aeeaean 10,000
INTErESt REVENUE ...ttt e 10,000
(To record accrued interest revenue on loan)

Accrued expenses result from the same causes as accrued revenues. In fact, an accrued expense on
the books of one company is an accrued revenue to another company.

No, all international companies are not subject to the same internal control standards. All public com-
panies that list their securities on U.S. stock exchanges are subject to the internal control testing and
assurance provisions of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. International companies that list their
securities on non-U.S. exchanges are not subject to these rules and there is debate as to whether they
should have to comply.

There is concern that the cost of complying with the higher internal control provisions is making U.S.
markets less competitive as a place to list securities. This in turn could give U.S. investors less
investment opportunities. On the other hand, some argue that the enhanced internal control require-
ments in the U.S. increase the perceived reliability of companies’ financial statements and helps
reduce their cost of capital. Furthermore, the decline in public listings in the U.S. are more likely due to
other factors, such as growth in non-U.S. markets and general globalization. Thus, the jury is still out
on the net cost/benefit of Sarbanes-Oxley and its impact on international competitiveness.

As with accounting standards, there are differences in auditing standards across international jurisdictions.
In the U.S., auditors of public companies are regulated by the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (PCAOB). The PCAOB enforces the provisions of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act through its various
auditing standards. In the international domain, the auditing standards board is the International Auditing
and Assurance Standards Board (IAASB). The IAASB is working on a broad set of international
auditing standards but to date does not have a law like Sarbanes-Oxley to guide its work.

Note to instructors—Some instructors may wish to direct students to the IAASB web-site
http://www.ifac.org/iaasb/-to learn more about its work and to compare to the work of the PCAOB—
http://www.pcaobus.org/.
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Questions Chapter 3 (Continued)

*18.

*19.

*20.

*21.

*22.

Under the cash basis of accounting, revenue is recorded only when cash is received and expenses
are recorded only when paid. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenue is recognized when it is
earned and expenses are recognized when incurred, without regard to the time of the receipt or
payment of cash.

A cash-basis statement of financial position and income statement are incomplete and inaccurate in
comparison to accrual-basis financial statements. The accrual basis matches effort (expenses) with
accomplishment (revenues) in the income statement while the cash basis only presents cash receipts
and cash disbursements. The accrual basis statement of financial position contains receivables,
payables, accruals, prepayments, and deferrals while a cash basis statement of financial position shows
none of these.

Wages paid during the year will include the payment of any wages attributable to the prior year but
unpaid at the end of the prior year. This amount is an expense of the prior year and not of the current
year, and thus should be subtracted in determining wages expense. Similarly, wages paid during the
year will not include any wages attributable to hours worked during the current year but not actually
paid until the following year. This should be added in determining wages expense.

Although similar to the strict cash basis, the modified cash basis of accounting requires that expen-
ditures for capital items be charged against income over all the periods to be benefited. This is done
through conventional accounting methods, such as depreciation and amortization. Under the strict cash
basis, expenditures would be recognized as expenses in the period in which the corresponding cash
disbursements are made.

Reversing entries are made at the beginning of the period to reverse accruals and some deferrals.
Reversing entries are not required. They are made to simplify the recording of certain transactions that
will occur later in the period. The same results will be attained whether or not reversing entries are
recorded.

Disagree. A worksheet is not a permanent accounting record and its use is not required in the ac-
counting cycle. The worksheet is an informal device for accumulating and sorting information needed
for the financial statements. Its use is optional in helping to prepare financial statements.
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SOLUTIONS TO BRIEF EXERCISES

BRIEF EXERCISE 3-1

May 0 I 7= = o T 4,000
5] g E= T =T OF- T o] | - | 4,000
3  EqUIipmMeNnt.... s 1,100
Accounts Payable.........ccooenceenenrcececnnannas 1,100
13  Rent EXpense......cncsisssssmssmssssssssssssmsnsasas 400
07 =] o T 400
21 Accounts Receivable........cccoccvrrriemrvcmssssmesssessessnsens 500
Service ReVeNUE.......ccccvevmrrsmssssmssssssssssssssssssnnes 500
BRIEF EXERCISE 3-2
Aug 2 CaSNr s ——————— 12,000
Equipment ... innnenesssssssssssssssssssssssssnssnssnsas 2,500
Agazzi, Capital.......cccoromrrrmrmsrsnsnsmssmsnsassmsnsanas 14,500
AR~ V1o o 1= 500
Accounts Payable ... 500
0 12 07 V= o T 1,300
Accounts Receivable.........ccccvrmrrrmrsssmssssmssssnsssssnsens 670
Service ReVENUE.......cccceerrrmrserssmssmsssnssmsssnssanens 1,970
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BRIEF EXERCISE 3-2 (Continued)

15 Rent EXpense..... o cesecssessssssessssasssnsssnsanss 600

Cash ... ———— 600
19  Supplies EXPense.......cmrsmsmsmsmssssmsmssssesassnsassnsass 230

Supplies ($500 — $270) ......cccceeememrerresesmsararsesnans 230

BRIEF EXERCISE 3-3

July 1  Prepaid INSUrance........cocovremsmsmssmsmsmssnssssmssnsassnsanss 15,000
(- - o 1 15,000
Dec. 31 Insurance EXPense ........imimimimsessnssnssnssnssnssns 2,500
Prepaid Insurance
(€15,000 X 1/2 X 1/3)cccrcricccnnmncsnsnnsmsnsanscsanas 2,500

BRIEF EXERCISE 3-4

July 1 CasSh.r s 15,000
Unearned Insurance Revenue. .......cccccveceennee 15,000
Dec. 31 Unearned Insurance Revenue........cccoeceeremrrscmnnens 2,500
Insurance Revenue
(€15,000 X 1/2 X 1/3)ccrcrccccccmrscssnsnssmssnssssnsanes 2,500
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BRIEF EXERCISE 3-5

Feb. 1 Prepaid Insurance.........cocueremrsmssmrsmssnssnsas
LO7- 1=7 ¢ I
June 30 Insurance Expense........cminscnnans

Prepaid Insurance

(£72,000 X 5/24)..commeeeeererereeeeereenenn

BRIEF EXERCISE 3-6

Nov. 1 I 07 1= o T
Unearned Rent Revenue..................
Dec. 31 Unearned Rent Revenue..........ccceecmmrrennee

Rent Revenue

LD &T=) P

BRIEF EXERCISE 3-7

Dec. 31 Salaries EXpense.......mmemsmssmsassnssnsanas

Salaries Payable

(88,000 X 3/5) coveerereeeereressssssmeenneeee

Jan. 2 Salaries Payable.........ccccveenirimrnnsensesnnns
Salaries EXpense.........cornmmmsmssmssssassnssnans

72,000

15,000

2,400

1,600

4,800

8,000
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BRIEF EXERCISE 3-8

Dec. 31 Interest Receivable ... 300
Interest Revenue...... e 300
Feb B TR - T o N 12,400
Notes Receivable ........cccrvicrrvmsssesssmssssnessnnns 12,000
Interest Receivable......... e 300
Interest Revenue....... e 100

BRIEF EXERCISE 3-9

Aug. 31 Interest EXPeNnsSe.......ccmimmsmsessnsmsssssssssssssassnsanas 300
Interest Payable........ccrircrrnsnne 300

31 Accounts Receivable ........ccorrerrrrrrersessssscsesaenas 1,400
Service Revenue ........iverniesssessssssssssssssssnsnes 1,400

31 Salaries EXPense.......cmirsmsmmsmssmsassmsssssssmssnsassnsans 700
Salaries Payable.........cccocoovirensmrrinsersnscsnsnsanas 700

31 Bad Debt EXpense.......cocuvrimissmssessmssmssnssnssnssnssnsns 900
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts................. 900

BRIEF EXERCISE 3-10

Depreciation EXPense........ccccumimiemsmmsemssmssmsssssssssssssssssnssnssnssnssnsans 2,000
Accumulated Depreciation—Equipment..........ccccocenuune 2,000

o[0T o7 4 1= o] $30,000

Less: Accumulated Depreciation—Equipment.................... 2,000 $28,000
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BRIEF EXERCISE 3-11

Interest Revenue. ... siccmssciees s ssssssssesssssssessnneas
INCOMe SUMMALY ...

INCOME SUMMANY .....corierirnessesnsmssmss s smssnsasas
Cost of Goods Sold.........ccovrnmirsrsmrssmsessnsmsnsnsasanas
Operating EXpPenses........ocerimrsnsessmssnsassmssnsanans
Income Tax EXPeNnse ......ccooumsmsmsmsnsnsnssmssnssnsanas

INCOME SUMMANY ... smssnsanas
Retained Earnings........ccucuumsmsmsmssnssnsnssnssnssnsnsanas

Retained Earnings .........ccormvmsrnmsmssssmsssssssssssssssssssasnses
Dividends ...

*BRIEF EXERCISE 3-12

(@) Cash receipts....receccecrrcrcrseeer e

+ Increase in accounts receivable

($18,600 — $13,000) .....ccreercecemrmrremsmsmenrsesnanas
SEeIVICE FEVENUE ....oeoecceeemeerrerrnmmessesssssnmmsssesssssnnnsens

(b) Payments for operating expenses.........cccccuuucu

— Increase in prepaid expenses

($23,200 — $17,500) ....ccereercecemcnrresesmsmenssesnanas
Operating eXPeNnSes .......ccocrermrrersmrsmssmssmssmssnssnsans

..... 808,900
..... 13,500
..... 822,400
..... 780,300
..... 556,200

..... 189,000
..... 35,100

..... 42,100

..... 18,900

..... $142,000

..... 5,600
..... $147,600

..... $ 97,000

..... (5,700)
..... $ 91,300
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*BRIEF EXERCISE 3-13

(@) Salaries Payable.........ccocrnnnmsssmsmsssmsassnsssssmsassnsasssnsas 4,200
Salaries EXPense........couomrsmrmsessmsmsassmsssassmssnsasnss 4,200

(b) Salaries EXPense ......couommrmsmsmssmsmssssmsasssssssssmsassssassssnsas 7,000
- 1= o 1 7,000

(c) Salaries Payable..........irncrirnssesnssmssesssssnsnanas 4,200

Salaries EXPENSE ......ccccomrmsmsmssmsmsssmsssssssssssmsssssssssssmsassnses 2,800
- - o 7,000
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SOLUTIONS TO EXERCISES

EXERCISE 3-1 (15-20 minutes)

Apr. P2 O T o 30,000
[=Co TUTT o130 T=T o) 14,000
Christine Ewing, Capital.........ccccoonsrsnrnsessnsanacs 44,000

2 No entry—not a transaction.

3 SUPPLIES cerrerermsmrmsmssssmsmsssmssssmsassssmsssmsassnsmssssmsassnsassnas 700
Accounts Payable..........cccoimiemssncsnrsnrnsnnnnae 700

7 Rent EXPeNSEe .....oiiimimsssssssssssssssnsnssnsmsnsanas 600
(- - o [N 600

11 Accounts Receivable......ccccvcrremrrcsreerssesssessssssssnnns 1,100
Service ReVENUE........cceeererrmrsessssssassssssasssnssanens 1,100

1 7 07 Y- o T 3,200
Unearned Service Revenue........cccocevereerscenne 3,200

LI - T o T 2,300
Service ReVENUE.......cccuveerrrrmrsessssssmssssssmssssssnnens 2,300

21 Insurance EXPense......cccumsmsmsmmssmssssssssssssssnssnssnsans 110
- 1= o [ 110

30 Salaries EXPense.......corrnmsmssmssmsmssmssssnssmsssssssnsansanas 1,160
CaSh. e ——————— 1,160
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EXERCISE 3-1 (Continued)

30 Supplies EXPENSe.......cccceomrrmrsmsmssmssmsnssmssmsassmssnssssnsans 120

ST o] o] 1= 120
30 Equipment.... s 5,100

Christine Ewing, Capital .........ccccorarsrinrnscnnens 5,100

EXERCISE 3-2 (10-15 minutes)

GERONIMO COMPANY
Trial Balance
April 30, 2010

Debit Credit
CaSh ...t ————— € 2,100
Accounts Receivable........coorrrrerrrrrrsrsnssesscsnsennnes 2,750
Prepaid Insurance (€700 + €1,000) ......cccceusurimrursaaes 1,700
Equipment.........ccomirnsmsessmsssessssssssssssssssssssssssnssssasans 8,000
Accounts Payable (€4,500 — €1,000) .......cccceceeuraraces € 3,500
Property Tax Payable ... 560
Geronimo, Capital (€11,200 + €3,200).......cceceeeransanse 14,400
Geronimo, Drawing .....ccccceemscsssmsmsssssssmssnsssmssnsassasas 3,200
Service ReVENUE......cccccervvmmrrrnmssssmsssmssssnsssssssssssssssnssens 6,690
Salaries EXPENSEe ......ccomimrsmsmsmsssssmsmsssssssnsssssssnssnsassasas 4,200
Advertising Expense (€1,100 + €300) .....c.ccceeururaee 1,400
Property Tax Expense (€800 + €1,000)........c.cceusunne 1,800
€25,150 €25,150
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EXERCISE 3-3 (15-20 minutes)

The ledger accounts are reproduced below, and corrections are shown in the

Accounts Payable

accounts.

Cash
Bal. 5,912 | (4) 190
(1) 270

Accounts Receivable

Bal. 7,044

Share Capital—Ordinary

Bal. 5,240 | (1) 270

Supplies on Hand

Bal. 8,000

Retained Earnings

Bal. 2,967

Furniture and Equipment

Bal. 2,000

Service Revenue

Bal. 6,100
(2) 1,900

Bal. 5,200
(3) 2,025
(5) 80

Office Expense

Bal.

4,320 | (2) 1,900
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EXERCISE 3-3 (Continued)

SCARLATTI CORPORATION
Trial Balance (Corrected)
April 30, 2010

Debit

(0 1 o [ $ 5,992
Accounts Receivable....... e 4,970
Supplies on Hand ..........ocrccrenscsscssssnssessssssssssssansnnas 2,967
Furniture and Equipment........ccoienicrincnscssnsnsenaes 8,000
Accounts Payable..........cccocimirininimsmsnsnssssssssnssnas
Share Capital—Ordinary .........cosmessmsssmsassnsnsanss
Retained Earnings........ccccomirnmsssmssmsassessnssssssssssssasans
Service ReVENUE........cccmsmsmssmsmsnsmsassssmsssmsassnsassnsnsanas
Office EXPENSE ....coorerrnmrnmsmsssmsssmssssssssssmsassnsassnsssanas 2,420

$24,349

Credit

$ 7,044
8,000
2,000
7,305

$24,349
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EXERCISE 3-4 (15-20 minutes)

OAKLEY CO.
Trial Balance
June 30, 2010

Debit Credit
Cash ($2,870 + $360 — $65 — $65) ........ccevmrerrerermemrarsesmsmsassrsessaneas $ 3,100
Accounts Receivable ($3,231 — $360)......ccccececemrrmrercsmsarsnsesnenes 2,871
Supplies ($800 — $500)........ccccererrrsrsrsmsmsmsesesesssesesesssssssnsnsnsmsnsmsmsasass 300
Equipment ($3,800 + $500).......ccccececrmremsesmsmsarsrsesmsmsassssesmsmsasssseseas 4,300
Accounts Payable ($2,666 — $206 — $260)......c..cccececememrersesnenens $ 2,200
Unearned Service Revenue ($1,200 — $225)........ccccoeoeerereraranes 975
Share Capital—Ordinary .........ccummmmemmsmssssesaa—m— 6,000
DiVIidends......c.ccvomimimssmsssssmsssssnsssssmssnssmssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnssnssnss 575
Retained EAQrNings .....ccccocoeececersnscmscsscssessssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnssnes 3,000
Service Revenue ($2,380 + $801 + $225)......cceceeeeercecemrarsesnanens 3,406
Wages Expense ($3,400 + $670 — $575).....cccceceremrmsmrsnsesesesesnss 3,495
OffiCe EXPENSE....cererernsessmsssassmsssssssmssssssssssssssssssnssssasssssssassmssnsasans 940
$15,581 $15,581

EXERCISE 3-5 (10-15 minutes)
1. Depreciation Expense ($250 X 3).....c.cccuurmrararasassssssrsssnsnanes 750

Accumulated Depreciation—Equipment.................. 750
2. Unearned Rent Revenue ($6,300 X 1/3)....ccccoceermreseseseseseans 2,100

Rent Revenue..... o eeeerceersecesecesscssscsssenessnsssnensnens 2,100
3. Interest EXPeNSe ... nsnsnsnsanas 500

Interest Payable ... 500
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EXERCISE 3-5 (Continued)

4. SuppliesS EXPENSE ....cccvrrmrmrursmsassmsmsassmsassmsmsssmsassssassssssassnsasas 2,150

Supplies ($2,800 — $650).......cccocecrrrrmsmsmsmsesesesesesesesesnanas 2,150
5. Insurance Expense ($300 X 3).....cccocorsrsmsmsmsmsmsmsssesesssesnsnseanas 900

Prepaid INSUrance ........cccoomrnsmsmssmsssmssmsssssssmssnssssnsanss 900

EXERCISE 3-6 (10—15 minutes)

1. Accounts Receivable.......rcrirrrircrsssssssessssss s ssnsanas 750
Service ReVENUE..........cccormrsmsessmssmssssmsssssssmssssssssssnssssnsans 750

2.  UtilitieS EXPENSE...ccciversmsersmssmsassmssmssssmsssssssmssmssssnssnssssassnssssasnsas 520
Utilities Payable ... 520

3. Depreciation EXPense........coiiriminsmmsssessesssssnsssssssssssssssnns 400
Accumulated Depreciation—Dental Equipment...... 400

Interest EXPeNnSe......rrsmssnsmssmsmssesssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnss 500
Interest Payable ... 500

4. Insurance Expense ($15,000 X 1/12)....ccoeeeemrerrercecsmransecans 1,250
Prepaid INSUrancCe ........cciecmissmsessmssnsssmssnsssmssmssssnsanss 1,250

5. Supplies Expense ($1,600 — $400).....cccceeeeeecrmrrrescscenrarsecans 1,200
85T 1 0] o] 1= 1,200
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EXERCISE 3-7 (15—20 minutes)

(@) Ending balance of supplies .......cccucunmimrrsnsernsnsassnnes £ 900
Add: Adjusting entry ... 950
Deduct: Purchases ........cooinnsissnsessesssessmsnsnnanss 850
Beginning balance of supplies .......cccccoceeierircnsnnacne 1,000
(b) Total prepaid iNSUranNCe ........coovrrmsmrmsmsmssssmsassnsassens £4,800 (£400 X 12)
Amount used (6 X £400) .......cccceemsmrsmrsmsassmssmsassmssnsassasas 2,400
Present balance ... 2,400
The policy was purchased six months ago (August 1, 2009)
(c) The entry in January to record salaries paid was
Salaries EXPEeNSe. ... eeemsmssmsmsmssnsssmssnsssssssnssssnsans 1,800
Salaries Payable ........ccoriirirrnsnsssnsnsesnsssessnssnsas 900
- 1= o 2,700
The “T” account for salaries payable is
Salaries Payable
Paid 900 | Beg. Bal. ?
January
End Bal. 800
The beginning balance is therefore
Ending balance of salaries payable..................... £ 800
Plus: Reduction of salaries payabile................... 900
Beginning balance of salaries payable............... £1,700
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EXERCISE 3-7 (Continued)

(d) Service revenue........rnsnssssmsssmsasssases £2,000
Cash received ... 1,600
Unearned revenue reduced.........cccoeorierrnrnnae £ 400
Ending unearned revenue January 31, 2010 ........cccceuu-e. £ 750
Plus: Unearned revenue reduced...........ccouorirensensersnsanaens 400
Beginning unearned revenue December 31, 2009......... £1,150

EXERCISE 3-8 (10-15 minutes)

(@) Wages EXPENSE .....ccvmsmrsmsmsmssmsmssssmssmsnssnssssassassssssssssnsassassnssssassnsas 2,900
Wages Payable.........orcnsesnsesne s

(b) UtilitiesS EXPENSE....ccccorierrernmsmssmsmsassmsssssssnsssssssmsssssssnssnsasssssmssssnsnsas 600
Accounts Payable.........ccooiirnsrirnnnsisssse s

(c) Interest Expense ($60,000 X 8% X 1/12)...ccccoeeeccecemrersescscsnsansens 400
Interest Payable ...

(d) Telephone EXPeNSe......comsmrumsmsmssmsmsassmsasssssssssmsassnsassssmsassnsasss 117
Accounts Payable......... e

2,900

600

400

117
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EXERCISE 3-9 (15-20 minutes)

(@) 10/15 Salaries EXPEeNSe .......ccccurmumsmmsmssmsmsssssssassssssssssnssssnnas 800
{02 1= o 800
(To record payment of October 15

payroll)

10/17 Accounts Receivable........ccccocrrcmrrcrrrrrrrrseessenssenens 2,100
Service Revenue......cuersnsssesssssssssssssnsnns 2,100
(To record revenue for services
performed for which payment has
not yet been received)

L0770 - = ¢ L 650
Unearned Service Revenue...........ccunee.e. 650
(To record receipt of cash for
services not yet performed)

(b) 10/31 Supplies EXPENSEe.......cummsmmsmsmsmssmssssassnssssassnssnsanss 470
ST 1] o] o] 1= 470
(To record the use of supplies during
October)

10/31 Accounts Receivable........cccecrrcmrrerrrrrrcerseersenssenens 1,650
Service Revenue.......cuuvmismsssmsssnsssnssssssssnsas 1,650
(To record revenue for services
performed for which payment
has not yet been received)

10/31 Salaries EXPense .......ccouomsrsmrsmsmssmssmssssmssnssssmssnsassnss 600
Salaries Payable........cccoosremimrninsessnsmsansnsasanas 600
(To record liability for accrued payroll)
10/31 Unearned Service Revenue.........ccocesrensesassnsassnas 400
Service Revenue.........umessmssmsssssssssssssssssas 400

(To reduce the Unearned Service
Revenue account for service that
has been performed)
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EXERCISE 3-10 (25-30 minutes)

(@) 1. Aug. 31
2. Aug. 31

3. Aug. 31
Aug. 31

4. Aug. 31

5. Aug. 31

6. Aug. 31

7. Aug. 31

Insurance Expense (¥4,500 X 3/12).............
Prepaid Insurance..........cccoecrirenserinsnnnnas

Supplies Expense (¥2,600 — ¥650)...............
ST 17 0] o] [ =T

Depreciation Expense—Cottages ...............
Accumulated Depreciation—
Cottages......cornmimrmsmsmssnsmsnsmsassnsassnsnsans
(¥120,000 — ¥12,000 = ¥108,000;
¥108,000 X 4% = ¥4,320 per year;
¥4,320 X 3/12 = ¥1,080)

Depreciation Expense—Furniture................
Accumulated Depreciation—
FUrniture ..eeeeeecccsecccssecesenane
(¥16,000 — ¥1,600 = ¥14,400;
¥14,400 X 10% = ¥1,440;
¥1,440 X 3/12 = ¥360)

Unearned Rent Revenue.....cccooecmmeeeeeeeeeeseeas
Rent Revenue ......ccccucceeemmmmemeeeessssesssssssssnns

Salaries EXpense.........counmmrmsmsassmsmsassnsassnsasans
Salaries Payable .........cccorcrnnirrinsasnsnsans

Accounts Receivable.....cccmeeeeerrrereesssssnnes
Rent Revenue ......cccovcveeemmmmemeeeessssssssssssnnnes

Interest EXPeNnse ......coeerimsnnsessmcnsnssmssnsanaes
Interest Payable
[(¥50,000 X 8%) X 3/12].....ccecururmrursurans

1,125

1,950

1,080

360

3,800

375

800

1,000
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EXERCISE 3-10 (Continued)

(b) UHURA RESORT
Adjusted Trial Balance
August 31, 2010
Debit Credit
Cash... s —————— ¥ 19,600
Accounts Receivable...........cccoorrrnniririnsninennae 800
Prepaid Insurance (¥4,500 — ¥1,125).......cccceeuee. 3,375
Supplies (¥2,600 — ¥1,950).....cccerrmrmsmrsmsnnsmssmssnsans 650
I T Lo N 20,000
[0 0] 1 = [ [ 120,000
Accumulated Depreciation—Cottages............... ¥ 1,080
LU 4 1) (0 T 16,000
Accumulated Depreciation—Furniture............... 360
Accounts Payable........rnnsmsssnsssssssnsssssnssnssns 4,500
Unearned Rent Revenue (¥4,600 — ¥3,800)........ 800
Salaries Payable...........ciirrenirierssiesnesesananns 375
Interest Payable.........ccoomiermrsnssssssssnsssssessnssnssnssnas 1,000
Mortgage Payable .........cccomirnesnicrennisessesnnas 50,000
Share Capital—Ordinary ..........coucesmsmsmsassnsmsnsnes 100,000
Retained Earnings .......cccuommmmmsmssessnssnssnssssssssnssnsas
(D TAVATo 1= 4 Lo £ 3 5,000
Rent Revenue (¥86,200 + ¥3,800 + ¥800)........... 90,800
Salaries Expense (¥44,800 + ¥375).....ccccceuserarnnns 45,175
Utilities EXPENSE......ccoimimrnmsesimssmsnssmssnsassmssnsnssmssnsanas 9,200
Repair EXPense......ummmsmsssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnssns 3,600
Insurance EXPense.......ococemenmnsmssmsnssnssnssnssnssnsansas 1,125
Supplies EXPENSE .......ccccormrmsmsassmsmsmsmsassmsassssmsassnses 1,950
Depreciation Expense—Cottages.......ccccuausmrnranae 1,080
Depreciation Expense—Furniture .......ccccceceeuuesae 360
Interest EXpense.......coreiriersnsnssmssnsnssmssnsnssnsnsanas 1,000
¥248,915 ¥248,915
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EXERCISE 3-11 (20-25 Minutes)

(a) CAVAMANLIS CO.
Income Statement
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010
Revenues
SEerViCe reVENUE......cceverrerrmrsmrsmssmssmssnssnssmssnssnsns $12,590
Expenses
Salaries eXPeNSe......ccourrsmsmrsmsmssssmsnssssmsassnsanas $6,840
Rent expense......ccmmmmememsesssmssssssssssssssssnnas 2,760
Depreciation exXpense........oucermsessmssnsassnsas 145
Interest eXpense.....cccvririmsessmmsessessnssnssnsnns 83 9,828
Net INCOME ... 2,762
(b) CAVAMANLIS CO.
Statement of Retained Earnings
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010
Retained earnings, January 1 ... irnnnissmssessssssssssssasnnes $11,310
- Xo (o LN 11123 QT 4 T o] 3 1= 2,762
Less: Dividends.......oeeccescccscscssssscssmssmssmssmssmssmssmsssssmssssssssssssssssens 3,000
Retained earnings, December 31 ... $11,072
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EXERCISE 3-11 (Continued)

(c) CAVAMANLIS CO.
Statement of Financial Position
December 31, 2010

Assets
Noncurrent assets
Property, plant, and equipment

=00 TTT'o 3 1= o | $18,050
Less: Accumulated depreciation.................... 4,895 $13,155
Current assets
Prepaid rent.......cninicsessessesssssssesnsanas 2,280
Accounts receivable.........ccccrerrrrrrmrrnrrscrnsenenens 6,920
(O 1] o 1 18,972
Total current assets........cccccrericnrscssnssessnnns 28,172
Total aSSets ... $41,327
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Share capital—ordinary .......ccoeererrmrrsesescenses $20,000
Retained earnings .........c.osmsesesssssssmsasanss 11,072  $31,072
Current liabilities
Notes payable.......cocererrececcececmsnsesaniae 5,700
Accounts payable..........ccocurrrrsmrsnnsnssnssnssmssnsnne 4,472
Interest payable ... 83
Total current liabilities ......cccceecrveriricracnnee. 10,255
Total equity and liabilities ......ccccecveeririrsssniessnssiesnanae $41,327
*Beg. Balance + Net Income — Dividends = Ending Balance
$11,310 + $2,762 - $3,000 = $11,072
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EXERCISE 3-12 (20-25 Minutes)

(a) FLYNN DESIGN AGENCY
Income Statement
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Revenues
Advertising revenue ..........cccorrermssssmssssnnas $58,500
Expenses
Salaries eXpPense........cucurersesmsmrssssesmsmsassnsnas $12,300
Depreciation exXpense .........cocesmrsmssnssnssnns 7,000
Rent eXpense ......cmmsmssssssssssssssssssssssssnss 4,000
Art supplies expense.........cccorsmrsmsmssmssnsasas 3,400
INSUrance eXpPense......ccumsumsmssmssmssnsssssnssnssns 850
Interest expense........comisisisssnssssnsnsnnans 500
Total expenses.......ccucmimsmsssnsssnsnsas 28,050
Net iNCOME ... 30,450
FLYNN DESIGN AGENCY
Statement of Retained Earnings
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010
Retained earnings, January 1. $ 3,500
Add: Net iNCOME ... s 30,450
Retained earnings, December 31 ... $33,950
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EXERCISE 3-12 (Continued)

(a) (Continued) FLYNN DESIGN AGENCY
Statement of Financial Position
December 31, 2010
Assets
Printing equipment ... $60,000
Less: Accumulated depreciation—printing
[=Te TUTT o7 11T 41 S 35,000 $25,000
Art SUPPIIES ....errrrrrcnsnsesssnssmsmssms s ssnnsnas 5,000
Prepaid inSUrance .........ccmimmnmsemsemssmsessssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssss 2,500
Accounts receivable.......cirisrris i ————— 21,500
02 = ¢ L 10,000
Total assets. ... $64,000

Equity and Liabilities

Equity

Share capital—ordinary........c.cocuersmsrsmssmsassessnsasanas $10,000

Retained earnings .........covereercemscesscsnssnscsnscsnssnsnss 33,950 $43,950
Liabilities

Notes payable........crirnmirirsrss e 5,000

Accounts payable.........irenn 8,000

Unearned advertising revenue..........ccocesmsessnsansnsas 5,600

Salaries payable........ccnrnnsrsnsmsnss 1,300

Interest payable...... e 150

Total liabilities ......ccurmmsmrsmssmsessmssssassessssassnsssssssassns 20,050

Total equity and liabilities ........ccoeeemicrssnisiersnssesesnens 64,000

(b) 1. Based on interest payable at December 31, 2010, interest is $25 per month
or .5% of the note payable. .5% X 12 = 6% interest per year.

2. Salaries Expense, $12,300 less Salaries Payable 12/31/10, $1,300 = $11,000.
Total Payments, $17,500 — $11,000 = $6,500 Salaries Payable 12/31/09.
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EXERCISE 3-13 (10-15 Minutes)

= ) =T 1 =T $800,000
Less: Sales returns and allowances.......ccceeveereernnes $24,000
Sales discount ..........cceevemerrrmrssseessseesesseesenns 12,000 36,000
Net SAleS....cirrrrrrrrerrerre s s s s e ssm s e s mnenns $764,000
o) TS T 1= 800,000
INncoMe SUMMArY. ... s s ssnsnsanes 800,000
INCOME SUMMAY ... nsmsanas 36,000
Sales Returns and Allowances.......cccceevreerrcrnaene 24,000
Sales Discounts ......cccccverrmrimirmsnmssesssesssnsssnssssssnses 12,000
EXERCISE 3-14 (10-15 minutes)
SAIES ..eirerirrrrr s —————————————————————————————ra— 340,000
Sales Returns and Allowances........ccccecuveerrrrerscssssssennns 13,000
Sales DiSCOUNLS......ccceivcmirimsrrmssssmsssmssssnssssssssssmsssmssesnnsens 8,000
INCOME SUMMALNY ......cooiriencrnssssmsssssssssmsssassmssssassmssnssssasas 319,000
INCOME SUMMANY ... s smsnsasans 302,000
Cost of Goods Sold.......cccuverrrrirmrimrssssesssssesesesssnsssanses 202,000
Freight-OuUl....... s s s ssnsanas 7,000
Insurance EXPense......irinimimsssssssssssssssssssssnssnss 12,000
Rent EXPENSE ... cccrcccsrcrcssscsscssssssms s s s s ssmsnns 20,000
Salary EXPeNnSe.....cccurrmsemsmssmsnssmssmssssassmsssssssmsssssssmssnsasnss 61,000
INCOME SUMMANY .....ooeicrerrmsesnsesssmsassssmss s snsns s smsassnsmsanas 17,000
Retained Earnings ........covcveremsmsssmsmssmsssssmsssssssssssssasnses 17,000
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EXERCISE 3-15 (10-15 minutes)

(a) $5,000 ($90,000 — $85,000) (d) $95,000 ($5,000 + $90,000)
(b) $29,000 ($85,000 — $56,000) (e) $52,000 ($90,000 — $38,000)

(c) $14,000 ($29,000 — $15,000)

EXERCISE 3-16 (10—15 minutes)

Selling EXPENSES .....cccvueremsmsamsmsmsssmssssnsassssmssssnsassnas
Administrative EXpenses...........ccoueirimrnnsnssmssnsanas
Income Tax EXPense ......cccoumsmsmsmsnsnssnssnssnsnsanas
INCOMeE SUMMALY ...

INCOME SUMMALY ... snsasanas
Cost of Goods Sold........cnirirrnrcesnssnsanaes
Sales Returns and Allowances..........ccouamsmssesanaes
Sales Discounts........cccvcevnmssmsmsmsssssmsssssssssassnsanans
Selling EXPENSES.......cccuvrrmsmsmssmssssmssmssssmsssssssnssnsanaes
Administrative EXpenses.........ccccumrrmsmrscsssnssnsnas
Income Tax EXPeNSe ......ocermserimsssmssmsnsnssnsansnns

INCOME SUMMANY .....coiierinrmessmsssessesssassmsssas s smssnsasas
Retained Earnings........ccuousmsmsmsmsssssnssnssnssnssnssnssnas

Retained Earnings .......cococesnssnmsnsessnsssessmssssssnsnsnnas
(D 1AVAT0 (=1 3 o £=

...... 390,000

...... 390,000

...... 346,700

235,700
12,000
15,000
16,000
38,000
30,000
43,300

390,000

235,700
12,000
15,000
16,000
38,000
30,000

43,300

18,000
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EXERCISE 3-17 (10-15 minutes)

Mar. B I - T o N 60,000
Share Capital—Ordinary........cconrmsmsssnsesssnsassnsasas 60,000
(Investment of cash in business)
B T 1 T o T o . 10,000
[T o T o 22,000
e 10T o 4 0= | 6,000
072 1= o T 38,000
(Purchased Michelle Wie’s Golf Land)
5 Advertising EXPeNnSe.........cconimsmsmrarsmsmsmsmsasassssssssmsasasssssnsnsass 1,600
[ 1= o T 1,600
(Paid for advertising)
6 Prepaid INSUranCe.........coeceesrnmrssmsessssmsssmsssssssssssmsassnsasans 1,480
072 1= o T 1,480
(Paid for one-year insurance policy)
10 EQUIPMENT.. s naes 2,500
Accounts Payable........c.ccovomirrrnnsnsessnsnsessnssssnssessnnans 2,500
(Purchased equipment on account)
18 CaSh..crrrr s s 1,200
Service REVENUE .......ccoeemrrrmrmenmsmssesssssssnssesssssssnssnssnsnes 1,200

(Received cash for services performed)

25 DiVIdeNdS ...cccccrercescrcrnrsnsmsmsnssssssssssmssssssssssssnsassssssssnsasassssssssnsass 1,000
0= - o 1,000
(Declared and paid a £1,000 cash dividend)
30 Wages EXPENSE .....cccrmvmrmsmrarmsssmsmsassssssssmsmsssssssssmsssassssessnsnss 900
(07 T o 900

30 Accounts Payable..........ninssssnsessssssans 2,500
[0 1= o T 2,500
(Paid creditor on account)
R 0 0 T o 750
Service REVENUE ... s sessssesmssssmesssnssssnsnees 750

(Received cash for services performed)
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*EXERCISE 3-18 (15-20 minutes)

CORINNE DUNBAR, M.D.
Conversion of Cash Basis to Accrual Basis

For the Year 2010

Excess of cash collected over cash disbursed

($142,600 — $60,470) .....ceocuememsemsemsememsensemsenssessessessessessessessessessessessensensessenss $82,130
Add increase in accounts receivable ($11,250 — $15,927).................... 4,677
Deduct increase in unearned service revenue ($2,840 — $4,111)....... (1,271)
Add decrease in accrued expenses ($3,435 — $2,108)......cccececemrerrcncec 1,327
Add increase in prepaid expenses ($1,917 — $3,232).......cccccceceeeererermrans 1,315
Net income on an accrual basis.......ccccuermimrsssssssssssssssssssessssessseanas $88,178

Alternate solution:
CORINNE DUNBAR, M.D.
Conversion of Income Statement Data
from Cash Basis to Accrual Basis

For the Year 2010
Cash Adjustments Accrual
Basis Add Deduct Basis
Collections from customers: $142,600
—Accounts receivable, Jan. 1 $11,250
+Accounts receivable, Dec. 31 $15,927
+Unearned service revenue, Jan. 1 2,840
—Unearned service revenue, Dec. 31 4,111
Service revenue $146,006
Disbursements for expenses: 60,470
—Accrued liabilities, Jan. 1 3,435
+Accrued liabilities, Dec. 31 2,108
+Prepaid expenses, Jan. 1 1,917
—Prepaid expenses, Dec. 31 3,232
Operating expenses 57,828
Net income—cash basis $ 82,130 $ 88,178

Net income—accrual basis
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*EXERCISE 3-19 (10—15 minutes)

(a)

(b)

NALEZNY CORP.
Income Statement (Cash Basis)
For the Year Ended December 31,

2009 2010
ST = $290,000 $515,000
EXPENSES ....ovtieremsmmsmmsmssssssssssssssssssssssssnssnssnssnssnssns 225,000 282,000
Net income ... $ 65,000 $233,000
NALEZNY CORP.
Income Statement (Accrual Basis)
For the Year Ended December 31,
2009 2010
ST =3 $480,000 $445,000
2514 1T § E=T= = 277,000 265,000
Net income ... $203,000 $180,000

*2009: $290,000 + $160,000 + $30,000 = $480,000
2010: $355,000 + $90,000 = $445,000

**2009: $185,000 + $67,000 + $25,000 = $277,000
2010: $40,000 + $170,000 + $55,000 = $265,000
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*EXERCISE 3-20 (20—25 minutes)

(a) Adjusting Entries:

1. Insurance Expense ($6,000 X 5/24)..........
Prepaid Insurance ........cceceerecrrcrcnnee.
2. Rental Revenue ($2,400 X 1/3) ..ccccecvurrsences
Unearned Rental Revenue..................
3. Advertising Materials........cccccovorirrenrserinnnnas
Advertising Expense.........ccccevriernnanae
4. Interest EXpense.....icrinnscssssnsscsnas
Interest Payable ...

(b) Reversing Entries:
1. No reversing entry required.

2. Unearned Rental Revenue............cccccuu.u.....
Rental Revenue.........coiriceesnicrnnnnns
3. Advertising EXpense........ccuormnmrensesassnsncas
Advertising Materials ........cocveersersnransae
4. Interest Payable.......cciecercnrserierinninnannas
Interest EXpense......ccoviemsmrsessessesnssens

800

290

770

800

290

770

1,250

800

290

770

800

290

770
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*EXERCISE 3-21 (10-15 minutes)

Accounts

Cash

Merchandise
Inventory

Sales

Sales Returns and
Allowances

Sales Discounts

Cost of Goods Sold

Statement of

Adjusted Trial Income Financial
Balance Statement Position
Dr. Cr. Dr. Cr. Dr. Cr.
15,000 15,000
80,000 80,000
470,000 470,000
10,000 10,000
5,000 5,000
250,000 250,000
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*EXERCISE 3-22 (20-25 minutes)

MADRASAH CO.
Worksheet (Partial)
For the Month Ended April 30, 2010

Statement of

Adjusted Trial Income Financial
Balance Statement Position
Account Titles Dr. Cr. Dr. Cr. Dr. Cr.
Cash 18,972 18,972
Accounts Receivable 6,920 6,920
Prepaid Rent 2,280 2,280
Equipment 18,050 18,050
Accum. Depreciation 4,895 4,895
Notes Payable 5,700 5,700
Accounts Payable 4,472 4,472
Madrasah, Capital 34,960 34,960
Madrasah, Drawing 6,650 6,650
Service Revenue 12,590 12,590
Salaries Expense 6,840 6,840
Rent Expense 2,760 2,760
Depreciation Expense 145 145
Interest Expense 83 83
Interest Payable 83 83
Totals 62,700 62,700 9,828 12,590 52,872 50,110
Net Income 2,762 2,762
Totals 12,590 12,590 52,872 52,872
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*EXERCISE 3-22 (Continued)

MADRASAH CO.
Statement of Financial Position
April 30, 2010

Assets
Noncurrent Assets
Property, plant, and equipment

Equipment.......cscssmsssssssssnsssssssssssssssssnsanas $18,050
Less Accumulated depreciation..........ccecuvuruesee 4,895 $13,155
Current Assets
Prepaid rent.... s 2,280
Accounts receivable.........ccocermrrerrrrrsrnrserneses e 6,920
CaSN. s ————————— 18,972
Total current assets.........ccccvcminimsmsnssssssssnnnans 28,172
B 1 €= LI EoT=T= £ 41,327
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Madrasah, Capital .........ccoceomsermsmsmrsnsmsnsmssssnsmsssmsassnsssanses $31,072*
Current liabilities
Notes payable........orerersnsmsmsrssssesmsmsssssssmsnsassssssnns $ 5,700
Accounts payable ... 4,472
Interest payable ... 83
Total current liabilities.......ccocvmrmrrsrsssssssannnns 10,255
Total equity and liabilities ........ccocuvrrrimininsemsssessesssssssssssnnas $41,327

*Beg. Balance — Drawings + Net Income = Ending Balance
$34,960 - $6,650 + $2,762 $31,072
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*EXERCISE 3-23 (10-15 minutes)

LETTERMAN CO.
Worksheet (Partial)
For Month Ended February 28, 2010

Adjusted Statement of
Trial Trial Income Financial
Balance Adjustments Balance Statement Position
Account Titles Dr. Cr. Dr. Cr. Dr. Cr. Dr. Cr. Dr. Cr.
Supplies 1,756 (a) 1,241 515 515
Accumulated
Depreciation 7,967 (b) 257 8,224 8,224
Interest
Payable 150 (c) 50 200 200
Supplies
Expense (a) 1,241 1,241 1,241
Depreciation
Expense (b) 257 257 257
Interest
Expense (c) 50 50 50

The following accounts and amounts would be shown in the February income
statement:

Supplies eXPENSe.......cuvrremsmsmsmsarsnsesmsnsas $1,241
Depreciation expense..........ccocemsersesanens 257
Interest expense........ccocumimissssnsnssnsansas 50
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TIME AND PURPOSE OF PROBLEMS

Problem 3-1 (Time 25-35 minutes)

Purpose—to provide an opportunity for the student to post daily transactions to a “T” account ledger, take a
trial balance, prepare an income statement, a statement of financial position and a statement of changes in
equity, close the ledger, and take a post-closing trial balance. The problem deals with routine transactions
of a professional service firm and provides a good integration of the accounting process.

Problem 3-2 (Time 35—40 minutes)

Purpose—to provide an opportunity for the student to prepare adjusting entries, and prepare financial state-
ments (income statement, statement of financial position, and statement of retained earnings). The student
also is asked to analyze two transactions to find missing amounts.

Problem 3-3 (Time 25—-30 minutes)
Purpose—to provide an opportunity for the student to prepare adjusting entries. The adjusting entries are
fairly complex in nature.

Problem 3-4 (Time 40-50 minutes)

Purpose—to provide an opportunity for the student to prepare adjusting entries and an adjusted trial balance
and then prepare an income statement, a retained earnings statement, and a statement of financial position.
In addition, closing entries must be made and a post-closing trial balance prepared.

Problem 3-5 (Time 15—20 minutes)

Purpose—to provide the student with an opportunity to determine what adjusting entries need to be made
to specific accounts listed in a partial trial balance. The student is also required to determine the amounts of
certain revenue and expense items to be reported in the income statement.

Problem 3-6 (Time 25—-35 minutes)
Purpose—to provide the student with an opportunity to prepare year-end adjusting entries from a trial balance
and related information presented. The problem also requires the student to prepare an income statement,
a statement of financial position, and a statement of changes in equity. The problem covers the basics of
the end-of-period adjusting process.

Problem 3-7 (Time 25—-35 minutes)

Purpose—to provide an opportunity for the student to figure out the year-end adjusting entries that were
made from a trial balance and an adjusted trial balance. The student is also required to prepare an income
statement, a statement of retained earnings, and a statement of financial position. In addition, the student
needs to answer a number of questions related to specific accounts.

Problem 3-8 (Time 30—40 minutes)

Purpose—to provide an opportunity for the student to prepare adjusting, and closing entries. This problem
presents basic adjustments including a number of accruals and deferrals. It provides the student with an
integrated flow of the year-end accounting process.

Problem 3-9 (Time 30—-35 minutes)
Purpose—to provide an opportunity for the student to prepare adjusting and closing entries from a trial
balance and related information. The student is also required to post the entries to “T” accounts.

*Problem 3-10 (Time 35—-40 minutes)

Purpose—to provide an opportunity for the student to prepare and compare (a) cash basis and accrual
basis income statements, (b) cash basis and accrual basis statement of financial position, and (c) to
discuss the weaknesses of cash basis accounting.

*Problem 3-11 (Time 40-50 minutes)

Purpose—to provide an opportunity for the student to complete a worksheet and then prepare a classified
statement of financial position. In addition, adjusting and closing entries must be made and a post-closing
trial balance prepared.
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SOLUTIONS TO PROBLEMS

PROBLEM 3-1

(a) (Explanations are omitted.) and (d)

Cash Furniture and Equipment
Sept. 1 20,000 | Sept. 4 680 Sept. 2 17,280
8 1,690 5 942
20 980 10 430
18 3,600 Yasunari Kawabata, Capital
19 3,000 Sept. 19 3,000 | Sept. 1 20,000
30 1,800 30 6,007
30 85 Bal. 30 23,007
30 Bal. 12,133
Accounts Receivable
Sept. 14 5,820 | Sept. 20 980
25 2,110 Accounts Payable
Bal. 30 6,950 Sept. 18 3,600 | Sept. 2 17,280
Bal. 30 13,680
Rent Expense
Sept. 4 680 | Sept. 30 680
Supplies on Hand Service Revenue
Sept. 5 942 | Sept. 30 330 Sept. 30 9,620 | Sept. 8 1,690
Bal. 30 612 14 5,820
N 25 2,110
9,620 9,620
Miscellaneous Office Expense Accumulated Depreciation
Sept. 10 430 | Sept. 30 515 Sept. 30 288
30 85 —
215 515
Office Salaries Expense
Sept. 30 1,800 \ Sept. 30 1,800
Supplies Expense
Sept. 30 330 |Sept. 30 330
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PROBLEM 3-1 (Continued)

Depreciation Expense

Income Summary

Sept.

(b)

30 288 |Sept. 30 288 Sept. 30 680 |Sept. 30 9,620
30 515
30 1,800
30 330
30 288
30 Inc. 6,007 -
9,620 9,620
YASUNARI KAWABATA, D.D.S.
Trial Balance
September 30
Debit Credit
{07 T o ¥12,133
Accounts Receivable...... s 6,950
Supplies on Hand...........coiccemsesssssnsssesssssssssssssssmsssssssnsas 612
Furniture and Equipment.........ccoomirnnsnsssnsssnssnsansanas 17,280
Accumulated Depreciation.........cccceerrmrscmsnsscssnssnsssnssanas ¥ 288
Accounts Payable......... s 13,680
Yasunari Kawabata, Capital.........ccccocerrmremscrsnsnsessmsnsannss 17,000
Service REVENUE.......ccoureerrerrmrssssnssasssssssssssssasessssssessssasesnssns 9,620
Rent EXPENSE ... snnanns 680
Miscellaneous Office EXPENSEe .......c.currmrmsmssmsassmssnsansanas 515
Office Salaries EXPeNnse.......currcnmsssmsssssssmssssassmssnssssnsas 1,800
Supplies EXPENSE .....cccermsmrsmsmsmssmssssnssmsssssssmsssassmssssassnses 330
Depreciation EXpense........ccocurimsmsmmsmmsmmssmsssssssssssssssssnssnnss 288
JLICe = 1= ¥40,588  ¥40,588
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PROBLEM 3-1 (Continued)

(c) YASUNARI KAWABATA, D.D.S.
Income Statement
For the Month of September

SErViCe rEVENUE .....ccciererrremrsemsssmsssmsssmsssnssssssssmsesssssnssssssssnses ¥9,620
Expenses:
Office salaries eXpense........umrmsmsassnsasas ¥1,800
Rent eXpense.......ceecsessnssnssnsnsmssnsnssnsanas 680
Supplies eXPENSE .....ccovrrmrsmsersmssmsassmssssassmssnsanas 330
Depreciation expense..........cccummrsmsssmssnsanas 288
Miscellaneous office expense........ccceerernee 515
Total eXpenses ........cccomimrsmsessmssnsssessnssnnnns 3.613
Net iNCOME..... s snens ¥6,007
YASUNARI KAWABATA, D.D.S.
Statement of Owner’s Equity
For the Month of September
Kawabata, Capital September 1. ¥20,000
Add: Net income for September .........coeoirrersmsrsmssnsessmssssassnsas 6,007
26,007
Less: Withdrawal by OWNEer..........ccoeinirnmsssmssnsssesssssssmssnssssssanss 3,000
Kawabata, Capital September 30 .........cccceormrcrsmsmscssmsssnssnsnsasanss ¥23,007
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PROBLEM 3-1 (Continued)

YASUNARI KAWABATA, D.D.S.
Statement of Financial Position

As of September 30
Assets Equity and Liabilities
Furniture and equip. ...... ¥17,280 Yasunari Kawabata,
Accum. depreciation...... (288) Capital.......ccocevrmirimrnsersesnsananns ¥23,007
Supplies on Hand ........... 612 Accounts payable..........ccceeuueen. 13,680
Accounts receivable...... 6,950
(07 T o 12,133 Total equity and
Total assets............. ¥36,687 liabilities.......cocuomiemrsmsnsnssnssnsanas ¥36,687
(e) YASUNARI KAWABATA, D.D.S.
Post-Closing Trial Balance
September 30
Debit Credit
Cash ... ——— ¥12,133
Accounts Receivable.........ccocrrrrreerrcrrscrsscnnnes 6,950
Supplies on Hand ........cocceremsccnsnsnssnscsansnnnns 612
Furniture and Equipment.........ccocvemiemsnsnnannns 17,280
Accumulated Depreciation .........ccoeerserenranienns ¥ 288
Accounts Payable...........cccooiemismremsnsnssnsnssnsanns 13,680
Yasunari Kawabata, Capital .........ccceceanserurnnne 23,007
e ] - 1 3 ¥36,975 ¥36,975
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PROBLEM 3-2

(@) Dec. 31 Accounts Receivable.........ccorrarrmsmrsnsmrnsnsassnsasans 3,500
Advertising Revenue.........ccoorneerrcrscrsnsenaes 3,500

31 Unearned Advertising Revenue.........ccccoceverueuce. 1,400
Advertising Revenue.........ccoeerecrecrscrscsscnacas 1,400

31 Art Supplies EXpPense.......cumnmsssmsmsassnsassnsasans 5,400
Art SUPPILIES ..coovverermrrmsmsnsmssmsssms s smsnnanas 5,400

31 Depreciation EXpense.......cccoorrmsmsmssnssnsmssnsansans 5,000
Accumulated Depreciation..........ccccccvemrueucn. 5,000

31 Interest EXPENSEe ......ccomremcssssssmsmsmsmssmsmsnsanas 150
Interest Payable........ccoovererimrimrsensnsinsscssnnansae 150

31 Insurance EXPense.........coorsmssmssnssnssmssnssnssnsnsanas 850
Prepaid Insurance.........cocecrversrserscssscsscsnns 850

31 Salaries EXPense ......ccumemsmssmsmmsmssmssssmsssssssassnssssass 1,300
Salaries Payable.........cccooirrremsnsccsnsnsscssnsanas 1,300
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PROBLEM 3-2 (Continued)

(b) MASON ADVERTISING AGENCY
Income Statement
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010
Revenues
Advertising revenue..........ccceeerrcereennscene. $63,500
Expenses
Salaries eXpense .......coececrescesseennnsns $11,300
Art supplies expense .........cccormsmrnsassasss 5,400
Depreciation expense ........ccucuumsemsassansanas 5,000
Rent expense.......cccemmmemsssssessssssssssssans 4,000
Insurance exXpense........ccummsmssssssssssnsanas 850
Interest expense .........oorirrncnicsinsnsenanas 500
Total expenses.......cocuemvmsrsssnnsnnsnnas 27,050
Net INCOME ... $36,450
MASON ADVERTISING AGENCY
Statement of Retained Earnings
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010
Retained earnings, January 1. ncnnssissessssssssssssssnses $ 3,500
Add: Net iNCOME .. s s s mn s 36,450
Retained earnings, December 31 ... ieisicenssierssnecnennes $39,950
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PROBLEM 3-2 (Continued)

MASON ADVERTISING AGENCY
Statement of Financial Position

December 31, 2010
Assets
Printing equipment ... sssssnsnns $60,000
Less: Accumulated depreciation—printing
(=Y (W11 o7 1= 1| S0 33,000 $27,000
Art SUPPIIES ....coerirerernessess s s snsnsmsmssmssnas 3,000
Prepaid inSUrance ........coummmsmsssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnsssssnssnss 2,500
Accounts receivable.......c.ccccirrrmrrrsrrsmsrse s ————— 23,500
Cash 11,000
Total assets.....rrrcrrrrrrrrcc e $67,000

Equity and Liabilities

Equity

Share capital—ordinary ... $10,000

Retained earnings........cooeovereeecesnscesscscsssscesssnsnsanas 39,950 $49,950
Liabilities

Notes payable........cirrinirrs s 5,000

Accounts payable ... 5,000

Unearned advertising revenue............ccoeessersesanaes 5,600

Salaries payable........ccomrsnesmss——— 1,300

Interest payable........coiererrcr e 150

Total liabilities.......ccucuureririmrsnsersmssssssmssnsessmsnsanas 17,050

Total equity and liabilities ........crercrirssnscsnssssinnanae $67,000

(c) 1. Interest is $50 per month or 1% of the note payable. 1% X 12 = 12%
interest per year.

2. Salaries Expense, $11,300 less Salaries Payable 12/31/10, $1,300 =
$10,000. Total Payments, $12,500 — $10,000 = $2,500 Salaries Payable
12/31/09.
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Dec. 31

31

31

31

PROBLEM 3-3

Salaries EXPeNSe.......courmsmsmrsmsmsassmsassssmssssmsassssassnas
Salaries Payable .........ccovrerimrrsnsersnsesansnsasanas
(5 X $700 X 2/5) = $1,400
(3X$600X2/5) =720
Total accrued salaries $2,120

Unearned Rent Revenue.......eeveevvceersccsesecnens
Rent Revenue........vrvcrscsecsesessssssssssssnens

(5 X $6,000 X 2) = $60,000

(4 X$8,500X1) = 34,000

Total rent earned $94,000

Advertising EXpense.........cccoriremsnmsmssnsnsnssnsansanas
Prepaid AdvertiSing .......ccccoucemsmsessnsansmsnsanacs
(A650 — $500 per month
for 8 months) = $4,000
(B974 - $300 per month
for 3 months) = 900
Total advertising expense $4,900

Interest EXpense........ccccmmimimsssmssssssssssnssnsnsanas
Interest Payable
($60,000 X 12% X 7/12) w.ceeerereresesmsmsmsmsnsasass

2,120

94,000

4,900

4,200
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PROBLEM 3-4

(@) Nov. 30 Store Supplies EXpense..........cuermsamsmssnsanacs 4,000
Store Supplies.....ccuurrrmsmrsnsnsessnsansans 4,000

30 Depr. Expense—Store Equipment............ 9,000
Accumulated Depreciation—
Store Equipment..........ccoccevenicnsesanans 9,000

30 Depr. Expense—Delivery Equipment....... 6,000
Accumulated Depreciation—
Delivery Equipment .......cccecveenunee 6,000

30 Interest EXpPense ......commsmsmssmsssssnsssssnssnssnss 11,000
Interest Payable........ccccvcrirvcericnnnnsnnns 11,000
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PROBLEM 3-4 (Continued)

(b) BELLEMY FASHION CENTER

Adjusted Trial Balance
November 30, 2010
Dr. Cr.
(0= - o O € 28,700
Accounts Receivable ... 33,700
Merchandise Inventory..........crssnsssmssnsasinsas 45,000
Store SUPPLIES .....ccvverrrmrimrmsssmsnsmssmsssmssmsnsms s nasanns 1,500
Store Equipment.......... s 85,000
Accumulated Depr.—

Store Equipment ... € 27,000
Delivery Equipment ........coconnirnnsessmssnsesesnsssnsss 48,000
Accumulated Depr.—

Delivery Equipment..........cooiirnmsnimsnnsessmsnsassnsas 12,000
Notes Payable...... s 51,000
Accounts Payable ... 48,500
Share Capital—Ordinary .........ccoeersssnsssmssnsansnsas 90,000
Retained Earnings........cccoirnmessmssnsassmssnsassmssssssnsans 8,000
SAIES ...t ————————————————— 757,200
Sales Returns and

PN | Lo YT TZ= T Lo X 4,200
Cost of Goods Sold........cccvrrrrrrrrrrnrrnrseersseeseseenes 495,400
Salaries EXPeNSe......ciumsmsmsmsmssmsmsnssmssssassmssnsassnses 140,000
Advertising EXpense........ccccomimrsmsmmsessnsassmssnsansasanss 26,400
Utilities EXPENSE......cccremrersmsmsmssmssmsassmssnssssmssnssssassnses 14,000
Repair EXPense.......commmsmssmsessmssmssssmsssssssnssnsassnssns 12,100
Delivery EXPense.........cocomsmmsmrsmsmssmsmsassmssnsnssnssssassnssns 16,700
Rent EXPense.... s 24,000
Store Supplies EXPense........comrmramsmssmsmsassmssnsassnsas 4,000
Depreciation Expense—

Store Equipment ... 9,000
Depreciation Expense—

Delivery Equipment..........ccooirnmssimssnsmssmsnsassnsas 6,000
Interest EXPeNSe... s 11,000
Interest Payable ... 11,000

LI = 1= €1,004,700 €1,004,700
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PROBLEM 3-4 (Continued)

(c) BELLEMY FASHION CENTER
Income Statement
For the Year Ended November 30, 2010

Sales revenue

T 1 L= €757,200

Less: Sales returns and
allowances.......ocreeeeevrcrrcrscerce s esenessnenas 4,200
[\ =) KT 1 (= 753,000
Cost of goods SOId .......ccvrrmrrenimrnimssssmss s 495,400
Gross profit......crnmmmmers————— 257,600

Operating expenses
Selling expenses
Salaries expense

(€140,000 X 70%) cuvsursursesassussnsassassnsassassnsanss €98,000
Advertising eXpense ..........ccouemserressmsmrsnssnnnns 26,400
Rent expense
(€24,000 X 80%) .evursursmssesassmssusassassnsassmssnsasas 19,200
Delivery expense........coremremssmssmssnssnssnsansas 16,700
Utilities expense
(€14,000 X 80%) .eveerersmrsnsassassnssnsass 11,200
Depr. exp.—store equipment...................... 9,000
Depr. exp.—deliv. equipment 6,000
Store supplies exXpense .......coersmsmsmsnsanae 4,000 190,500

Administrative expenses
Salaries expense

(€140,000 X 30%) «uvsursursrsassussmsassassnsassnssnsanas 42,000
Repair eXpense .......couocemrsmrsmssnssmssnssnssnsnsanas 12,100
Rent expense
(€24,000 X 20%) .evnsursmssesassussnsassassnsassassnsanas 4,800
Utilities expense
(€14,000 X 209%) ..ereereseesmssmssmssmesmssnssmssmssnssnss 2,800 61,700
Other income and expense
Interest eXpense........cccvmiminsmsnsssssssssssssnssnsnsanas 11,000
Net 10SS ...t s (€__5,600)
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PROBLEM 3-4 (Continued)

BELLEMY FASHION CENTER
Retained Earnings Statement
For the Year Ended November 30, 2010

Retained earnings, December 1, 2009..........ccsrrmrmsmssmsmsassnsssassnssnsasas €8,000
LesSS: Net I0SS. ... rrcrrcrrcercsrssrssssssce s ss s e nessnessms s e e s e smnesmnesmmsnamnnsnns 5,600
Retained earnings, November 30, 2010 ........cccoumsmssmsmsmssmssnssnssnssnsanss €2,400

BELLEMY FASHION CENTER
Statement of Financial Position
November 30, 2010

Assets
Noncurrent assets
Property, plant, and equipment

Store equipment.........cccoeeereescennsmsssnsnsanas $85,000
Accum. depr.—store equipment........... 27,000 €58,000
Delivery equipment ........ccooeemiemcmrnnnsannas 48,000
Accum. depr.—delivery equipment..... 12,000 36,000 € 94,000
Current assets
Store supplies.......cccuevnmsrsersmsmssesnsassnsnsanas 1,500
Merchandise inventory .........ccccoveerieranns 45,000
Accounts receivable ......ccccceerrrerrrcerneenn. 33,700
0= 1] o [ 28,700
Total current assets ......ccccveernene 108,900
Total assets......cccecrrimrrrmrrresrrseerssessesnennes €202,900
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Share capital—ordinary ........cccesrrerensanae €90,000
Retained earnings.........ccocvomimsmssnsnssnssnas 2,400 € 92,400
Noncurrent Liabilities
Notes payable ........cooirrerrsnrsnssnssnssnssnsanas 21,000
Current Liabilities
Notes payable due next year.................. €30,000
Accounts payable.........cooirneienirinianaen 48,500
Interest payable.........cooeeririerenirieinenes 11,000
Total current liabilities.................. 89,500
Total liabilities .....cccccvverrreerriceriaens 110,500
Total equity and liabilities ........cccceeiriernncne €202,900
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PROBLEM 3-4 (Continued)

(d) NOV. 30 Sales....coorrrcrrrrrcrssmrscesessssmssessssmssmesssnssmssssssans 757,200
Income Summary ........cccoerrnnsesssnsananas 757,200
30 INCOME SUMMANY ....ccocveremsmrarsmsmsnsmssssmsassnsnssnas 762,800
Sales Returns and Allowances.......... 4,200
Cost of Goods Sold......cccccrrcmrremrrcrnaene 495,400
Salaries Expense......eeeecercrscrcencas 140,000
Advertising Expense........cccourierrnsnnne 26,400
Utilities EXpense.........ccuuamsmmsmssmsassmssnsanss 14,000
Repair EXpense........mmnmmsnssnssnssnssnnas 12,100
Delivery EXpense .......ccccouriermsmssmsansanas 16,700
Rent EXpense .....ccricvscsscsscssscssnnas 24,000
Store Supplies Expense.........ccceoveeseens 4,000
Depreciation Expense—Store
Equipment........ e 9,000
Depreciation Expense—Delivery
Equipment........ccciinmnnscssnsnsessnsnsanes 6,000
Interest Expense.......eeercecricnccsnnas 11,000
30 Retained Earnings......ccocociremnerimsssnssmsnnanacs 5,600
Income Summary .......cceeereceenserscssnnanas 5,600
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PROBLEM 3-4 (Continued)

(e)

BELLEMY FASHION CENTER
Post-Closing Trial Balance
November 30, 2010
Debit Credit
CaSh .t ———————————— € 28,700
Accounts Receivable ... e 33,700
Merchandise Inventory..........iresssessnsessessnsnnanss 45,000
137 (o] d TR TU ] o] o] 1= 1,500
Store EqUipmMenNnt........ccomirnmsmsessmsssssssssssssssssssssssssasans 85,000
Accumulated Depreciation—Store Equipment....... € 27,000
Delivery Equipment .......cciimssssssssssssssssssssnssnssnss 48,000
Accumulated Depreciation—Delivery
o [UTT o 3 11T 41 S 12,000
Notes Payable..........cccoomimimimsmsmsnsssnsssssssssssssssssnssnss 51,000
Accounts Payable .........ccocvmimimimsmssssssssssssssssssssssnnns 48,500
Interest Payable ... 11,000
Share Capital—Ordinary .........ccouomsmsmnsmsessessmssssnssnsasas 90,000
Retained Earnings.......ccocomicnmsssmssnsnsessnsssassnssnsnsanss 2,400

€241,900 €241,900
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PROBLEM 3-5

(a) -1-
Depreciation EXPense........ccumimsmsamsamsssssssssssssssssnssnssnsas 10,500
Accumulated Depreciation—Equipment
(1/16 X [$192,000 — $24,000])....ccceemeecersesesmsararses 10,500
-2-
Interest EXPeNSe ......ccccmimimsmsemsnmssssssssssssssssssssnssnssnssnssnsas 1,440*
Interest Payable
($90,000 X 8% X 72/360)......cccecemrermrmrsesmrsesaensnnns 1,440*
-3-
Admissions Revenue......... i ccerrcrscssscsnscsessnesssesseens 60,000
Unearned Admissions Revenue
(2,000 X $30) ..ccecemcmrrrrermsmenssesmsmsmssssesmsmsnsassessansasasses 60,000
-4-
Prepaid AdVvertiSing ......ccmmsrmmsmsssmsssssessssssssssessnsas 1,100
Advertising EXPense.......ccommmmmssmssnsssssnssnssnssnssnss 1,100
-5-
Salaries EXPENSEe .......ccccorrsmssmsansessmssmsmsssssssnssnsssssssnssssnsas 4,700
Salaries Payable.........coornsnisinsnsssnsssnssmsnsanacs 4,700

(b) 1. Interest expense, $2,840 ($1,400 + $1,440).
2. Admissions revenue, $320,000 ($380,000 — $60,000).
3. Advertising expense, $12,580 ($13,680 — $1,100).
4. Salaries expense, $62,300 ($57,600 + $4,700).

*Note to instructor: If 30-day months are assumed, interest expense = $1,400
($90,000 X 8% X 70/360).
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(a)

PROBLEM 3-6

-1-
Service REVENUE........coceurmrrmrrerresesmsssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnsssnsesas 6,000
Unearned Service Revenue.........enssscssssnssnssnsanacs
-2-
Accounts Receivable....... e 4,900
Service Revenue.........rrssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnssnes
-3-
Bad Debt EXPENSE .......cccoirimrrmsamsmsmsansmssmsassmssnsssssssmssssmsnsassasas 1,430
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts........ccceeeeeeerecenccnces
-4-
Insurance EXPEeNSe.......ccuouimnmmsmssssmsssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnns 480
Prepaid INSUrancCe ........ccorecenisimssmsessmsssessssssssssmsnsanas
-5-
Depreciation Expense—Furniture and Equipment........ 2,500
Accum. Depr.—Furniture and Equipment
(72253001010 1 Qs 1) T
-6-
Interest EXPeNSe......inimsimmsnsmsssssessssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnssnsas 60
Interest Payable
($7,200 X .10 X 30/360).....ccccemrrrermrmrmrsesesmsnsarsesesnsnsanses
-7-
=T o= 1o I 2 =T 4 ) 750
Rent EXPense...... s nssnsnsas
-8-
Office Salaries EXPense.......ccurnmsmsssmsessssmsassmssssssmsassnsasanas 2,510

Salaries Payable......

6,000

4,900

1,430

480

2,500

60

750

2,510
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PROBLEM 3-6 (Continued)

(b) YORKIS PEREZ, CONSULTING ENGINEER

Income Statement

For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Service revenue ($100,000 — $6,000 + $4,900)............... $98,900
Expenses

Office salaries expense ($30,500 + $2,510)........... $33,010
Rent expense ($9,750 — $750)......cccceereememrmsmsmsmsasasanes 9,000
Depreciation eXpense.........ccuorrersmsmssmssnsnssmssnsassnsanss 2,500
Bad debt expense........oiernirinnnnnssssnsnesna 1,430
Heat, light, and water expense............cerarsersnrarsersens 1,080
Miscellaneous office expense........cccumsmsmsassassassanas 720
INSUranNCe eXPEeNSEe.......ccccuumvmrimrmsnssmsmsnssmssnssssmssnsassnsanss 480
Interest eXPense .......rinirinsnsnsssns s 60

Total eXPENSES .....ccccrimrrmrsmmsmssmmsmssmssasssssmsssssassssssssns 48,280

Net INCOME ... e s $50,620
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PROBLEM 3-6 (Continued)

YORKIS PEREZ, CONSULTING ENGINEER
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Yorkis Perez, Capital, January 1. eerecersccssescessmsscesnnns $ 52,010°

¥o (o T 1= 1 g Lol o 1 ¢ = 50,620

Less: Withdrawals.........ccoreicmccsssccsssscsssscssssscsssssssssssssmssssssssssnes 17,000

Yorkis Perez, Capital, December 31 ... cecerrsmccscscsescsesccscsscnaes $ 85,630
@Yorkis Perez, Capital—trial balance ........c........ $35,010

Withdrawals during the year ......ccocvveririernnnene (17,000)

Yorkis Perez, Capital, as of January 1, 2010.... $52,010
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PROBLEM 3-6 (Continued)

YORKIS PEREZ, CONSULTING ENGINEER
Statement of Financial Position
December 31, 2010

Assets
Noncurrent assets
Furniture and equipment........cccvrvrencas $25,000
Less: Accum. depreciation................ 8.750** $ 16,250
Current assets
Engineering supplies inventory................. 1,960
Prepaid insurance
($1,100 — $480)....ccceercemrrermrrermernrcenssesnssesaens 620
Prepaid rent.........ccooerrmcncnsssssesnsnssmsnsanas 750
Accounts receivable
($49,600 + $4,900) ....ccccccerrermrmrmrnrsesnssesaenns $54,500
Less: Allowance for doubtful
accounts .......ccccericrrncrrne s 2,180* 52,320
0= 1= o 1 29,500
Total current assets ......ccoceevvrecrrcnnne 85,150
Total assets......ccocrrmrrmrrrcerscrrscneaens $101,400
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Yorkis Perez, Capital
($35,010 + $50,620)....cccccemrercenrrcenrsnsarsnseens $ 85,630
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Notes payable........cccorrrmrerrsesmrsnsmsansnns $7,200
Unearned service revenue..........cccc... 6,000
Salaries payable........cccvrnmnrsmsnsassnsanas 2,510
Interest payable .......ccoeererrririeriennenee 60 15,770
Total equity and liabilities ........... $101,400
*($750 + $1,430)
**($6,250 + $2,500)
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PROBLEM 3-7

(@) Dec. 31 Account Receivable .........cccoorrimrnnsersmsnsanacs 1,000
Service Revenue.......errverscsseesscsns 1,000
31 Unearned Service Revenue.........cccccecereerneens 1,400
Service Revenue......rvrrerscsseesscsnns 1,400
31 Art Supplies EXpense........ccormrmrsmsarsmssnsanas 5,000
Art SUPPIlIeS....rermrersn s 5,000
31 Depreciation EXpense .......ccociremsericrnsnnaes 8,750
Accumulated Depreciation—
Printing Equipment ........ccccovenienrnnee 8,750
31 Interest EXpense.......micmissssnsnsnsnnans 150
Interest Payable ......cccccooirincninsnsensanns 150
31 Insurance EXPense........mmemsmssmsassnssssasas 750
Prepaid Insurance ........ccovomrmsnssnssnsanns 750
31 Salaries EXpense.......cummmnmmmsessnssssnsssasans 1,500
Salaries Payable .........ccovrrenncrnsesannnnes 1,500
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PROBLEM 3-7 (Continued)

(b) SORENSTAM ADVERTISING CORP.
Income Statement
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010
Revenues
SEerviCe reVeNUE.......ccveeurmrrmsesmsssnssssssssssssmsssnness €61,000
Expenses

Salaries eXPensSe.......cccumimrsmsamsmssnsssassnsssasnss €11,500

Art supplies expense.......ccccimrrrsnssnssssnsns 10,000

Depreciation expense..........ccomimremsnssnsnsenas 8,750

Rent expense........cimiminsssssssssssssssnsanas 4,000

INSUranNCe eXPeNSEe ......cccurmsmmsmmsmssassassssssssssssnssns 750

Interest eXpense.......coerimcnnsnsimssnsnnsmssnsansnnas 500
Total expenses .......cccvmvmsmsssssnssnsnssnss 35,500
Net INCoOMe.......irirrrn s €25,500

SORENSTAM ADVERTISING CORP.
Retained Earnings Statement
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Retained earnings, January 1 ... sssssesssssssssmsssanas € 4,500
Add: Net iNCOME.... s s s s s snsnssnssnssmssmssmssmssmeas 25,500
Retained earnings, December 31...... s €30,000
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PROBLEM 3-7 (Continued)

SORENSTAM ADVERTISING CORP.
Statement of Financial Position
December 31, 2010

Assets

Printing equipment......... s €60,000
Less: Accum. depr.—printing equipment.........ccceeurnnns 35,750 €24,250
Prepaid inSUrance.........rmirsmsssssssesssssssssssssssssssssssssens 2,500
N =T U o o 1= 3,500
Accounts receivable ... ——— 20,000
02 = o 7,000

Total assets......cccrrmrrninmnssrsrs s €57,250

Equity and Liabilities

Equity
Share capital—ordinary........c.cccovrersmsrsnserssnsasnnes €10,000
Retained earnings .......ccociremssmssnssssmssnssssnssnsassasas 30,000
Total equity ... €40,000
Liabilities
Notes payable ... 5,000
Accounts payable........crnirirnninsn s 5,000
Unearned ServiCe revenUEe.......ccceeeermrssmessmsesmsssnnnas 5,600
Salaries payable.........cmminnmensss———— 1,500
Interest payable.........cooirersr e 150
Total liabilities.......cccuremsrirsnsnsessnsnssmssnsassenas 17,250
Total equity and liabilities........ccccucmvcmimsmsmsssssssssssnssnsas €57,250
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PROBLEM 3-7 (Continued)

(c) 1. Total depreciable cost = €8,750 X 6 = €52,500.
Salvage value = cost €60,000 less depreciable cost €52,500 = €7,500

2. Based on the balance in interest payable, interest is €50 per month
or 1% of the note payable.
1% X 12 = 12% interest per year.

3. Salaries Expense, €11,500 less Salaries Payable 12/31/10, €1,500 =

€10,000. Total payments, €12,500 — €10,000 = €2,500 Salaries Payable
12/31/09.
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*PROBLEM 3-8

(a), (b), (d)
Cash Prepaid Insurance Salaries Expense
Bal. 15,000 Bal. 9,000 | Adij. 3,500 Bal. 80,000 | Close 83,600
5,500 Adj. 3,600
83,600 83,600
Share Capital—Ordinary
Bal. 400,000
Accounts Receivable Retained Earnings Maintenance Expense
Bal. 13,000 Bal. 82,000 Bal. 24,000 | Close 24.000
Inc. 31,640
113,640
Allow. for Doubtful Accts. Dues Revenue Depr. Expense—Buildings
Bal. 1,100 Adj. 8,900 |Bal. 200,000 Adj. 4,000 | Close 4,000
Adj. 460 Cls. 191,100
1,560 200,000 200,000
Rev. 8,900
Land Greens Fee Revenue Depr. Expense—Equipment
Bal. 350,000 Close 5,900 | Bal. 5,900 Adj. 15,000 | Close 15,000
Buildings Rental Revenue Accum. Depr.—Equipment
Bal. 120,000 Close 19,200 | Bal. 17,600 Bal. 70,000
Ad;. 1,600 Adj. 15,000
19,200 19,200 85,000
Rev. 1,600
Accum. Depr.—Buildings Utilities Expense Insurance Expense
Bal. 38,400 Bal. 54,000 | Close 54,000 Adj. 3,500 | Close 3,500
Adj. 4,000
42,400
Rent Receivable Bad Debt Expense Income Summary
Adj. $1,600 Rev. 1,600 Adj. 460 | Close 460 Exp. 184,560 Rev. 216,200
Inc. 31,640
216,200 216,200
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*PROBLEM 3-8 (Continued)

Salaries Payable Unearned Dues Revenue
Adj. 3,600 Adj. 8,900
Equipment

Bal. 150,000

(b) -1-
Depreciation Expense—Buildings.......cccovevrenicranaee 4,000
Accumulated Depreciation—Buildings
(1/30 X $120,000)....ccccecemrermrmscenssmsnssesmesssmenssnsnssens 4,000
-2-
Depreciation Expense—Equipment.........cccocvvirnuanee 15,000
Accumulated Depreciation—Equipment
(10% X $150,000).......ccccememrmcrresmsmenrsssesmsmsassssesnsneas 15,000
-3-
Insurance EXPeNSe ......coeresmsessmsmsessmsssassnssssssnsnsanas 3,500
Prepaid Insurance.........eerrecsssscsscsscssnssssssnnes 3,500
-4-
Rent Receivable ... eeeeeerrcrrcssenesess s sssesssanenes 1,600
Rental Revenue
(1/11 X $17,600) ...ecomeecemrermrnscensseemssesmessmenssnsnsseas 1,600
-5-
Bad Debt EXpense.........comimissmsssssssssssssssnsnsnsansas 460
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
[($13,000 X 12%) — $1,100] ..eecemrmrermcemcmrresecnens 460
-6-
Salaries EXPeNSE ......ccccumrmsmsesmsmssssssmssssmsassssassssmsassnsassnas 3,600
Salaries Payable..........rreerrrrccsssccsssassmsnsnnaes 3,600
-7-
Dues ReVEeNUE........coererrrrrenessnessmsssesesesessssssssssssssasesanenns 8,900
Unearned Dues Revenue.......cccmrivmrnvemssssmsssens 8,900
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*PROBLEM 3-8 (Continued)

(c) CRESTWOOD GOLF CLUB, INC.
Adjusted Trial Balance
December 31, XXXX
Dr. Cr.

- 1] o $ 15,000
Accounts Receivable ........rerrrmrrmrrcrncercsesenenes 13,000
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts.......cccccvemreieneens $ 1,560
Prepaid INSUrancCe ..........ccovmsmrsmsmsessmssssmssnssssmssnsansanss 5,500
R T o o 350,000
BUilding.....ccoouimrmnmnmrnmsassmssssnsmsssssassssssssmssssssassssmsassnsass 120,000
Accum. Depreciation—Buildings.........cccorsurnransans 42,400
(o TUT] o141 o) 150,000
Accum. Depreciation—Equipment ...........cccceeuuese 85,000
Salaries Payable .........ccccorirnmsssessmsnsesssssssnsssssssnsans 3,600
Share Capital—Ordinary ..........corsmsmsssmsmsssesasnaes 400,000
Retained Earnings........ccccoremsmsersmsmssssmsssssssssnsssassnsans 82,000
Dues Revenue.......ccciiiminimsinmssssssssss s sssssssssmssssness 191,100
Greens Fee Revenue........cceivcessssssssssssssssssssnssens 5,900
Rental Revenue......irciesrrecsssses s ssssssssssssssmssssness 19,200
Utilities EXPENSe......cocorvreesmsersmsnsmssnsnssmsnssessnsannnas 54,000
Salaries EXPense........ccovommsmrsmsmssmsmssssessmssssnssnssssssans 83,600
Maintenance EXpense.........ccumummmsmssmssssssssssssssnssnsas 24,000
Bad Debt EXPeNSe.......ccccosmimrsmsnmsmssmsassmssnsassmssnsassasas 460
Unearned Dues Revenue........cvrcrrvmrrsecessncssssens 8,900
Rent Receivable ... e ssscseesesesesnenes 1,600
Depreciation Expense—Buildings........cccocueerunases 4,000
Depreciation Expense—Equipment...........cccceenueuee 15,000
Insurance EXPense ........cocoremnmsessmsnssmssnsssmssnsansanas 3,500

LI = | = $839,660 $839,660
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*PROBLEM 3-8 (Continued)

(d) -Dec. 31-
Dues ReVeNUE........ircrrrrrenesnsssesssesssesesnssssssssssesasesnnenns 191,100
Greens Fee Revenue.......ivrrrrsrsssssssssssssssssssssssssnens 5,900
Rental Revenue......eeeeececrrcercsecnesessssessscsessesmnenns 19,200
INCOME SUMMALY ... 216,200
-31-
INCOME SUMMANY ... smsnanas 184,560
Utilities EXPENSE ......ccrvrrmsemsmsmsansmssmssssmsssssssassssassass 54,000
Bad Debt EXPense........cccucuvmimsmssmssmssssssssssssssnssnssnss 460
Salaries EXPense ........ccocomsmsmsessmsmsnssmssssassmssnsasans 83,600
Maintenance EXpense .......mnccsssscssessscssnnas 24,000
Depreciation Expense—Buildings ..........ccceuu.... 4,000
Depreciation Expense—Equipment................... 15,000
Insurance EXpense...... . rrecccrncsscsscsssescssnns 3,500
-31-
INCOME SUMMALY.....ccieirrernmsesnsesnsmsas s snsasseas 31,640
Retained Earnings .........ccocccmvmsmssssmsnmsssssssssssnssnssnes 31,640
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*PROBLEM 3-9

(a), (b), (c)
Cash Accounts Receivable Allow. for Doubtful Accts.
Bal. 18,500 Bal. 32,000 Bal. 700
Adj. 1,400
2,100
Inventory Furniture & Equipment Accum. Depr.—F. & E.
Bal. 80,000 Bal. 84,000 Bal. 35,000
Adj. 12,000
47,000

Prepaid Insurance

Notes Payable

Admin. Salaries Expense

Bal.  5100|Adj. 2,550 |Bal. 28,000 Bal. 65000|Cls. 65,000
2,550
Share Capital—Ordinary Sales Insurance Expense
|Bal. 80,600 Cls. 600,000 Bal. 600,000 Adj.  2,550]Cls. 2,550
Sales Salaries Expense Advertising Expense Interest Expense
Bal. 50,000 |Cls. 52,400 Bal. 6,700 | Adj. 700 Adj. 3,360 | Cls. 3,360
Ad;j. 2,400 Cls. 6,000
52,400 52,400 6,700 6,700
Bad Debt Expense Office Expense Prepaid Advertising
Ad;j. 1,400 | Cils. 1,400 Bal. 5,000 | Adj. 1,500 Ad;. 700
Cls. 3,500
5,000 5,000
Interest Payable Depr. Exp.—Furn. & Equip. Income Summary
Adj. 3,360 Adj. 12,000 | Cls. 12,000 Exp. 554,210|Sales 600,000
Inc. 45,790
600,000 600,000
Office Supplies Salaries Payable
Ad;j. 1,500 Adj. 2,400
Retained Earnings Cost of Goods Sold
Bal. 10,000 Bal. 408,000 Clis. 408,000
Inc. 45,790
Bal. 55,790
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*PROBLEM 3-9 (Continued)

(b) -1-
Bad Debt EXpense........cccummimimsmsamssssssssssssssssassns
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts...............

-2-

Depreciation Expense—Furniture and

Equipment ($84,000 = 7) ....ccccoeeermsmsmsmsmsmsmsmsasasases

Accum. Depr.—Furniture and Equipment

-3-
Insurance EXPense .......iininisissssessnssnssnnsnnns
Prepaid Insurance.........cccccuvemrcmsmsscssnnsscsssnsanas

-4-
Interest EXPense..... o cccrrrcrscssecsessssssesssnssmsssnssns
Interest Payable........insnaes

-5-
Sales Salaries EXPense........cccurvsemsessmsassmssnsansnsanas
Salaries Payable.........cocuorvsrensmsssnsessnsnsassnens

-6-
Prepaid Advertising Expense.........cccummmsmsansansans
Advertising EXpense.........ccceoirimrsnsensmssnsassncas

-7-
Office SUPPLIES ...cccrirrerrrsmrmmrmssssssesn s snssssnsanas
Office EXPEeNSe......covrrmrsmsessmsmsassmsssssssssssssssnsses

........ 1,400

........ 12,000

........ 2,550

........ 3,360

........ 2,400

........ 700

........ 1,500

1,400

12,000

2,550

3,360

2,400

700

1,500
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*PROBLEM 3-9 (Continued)

(c) Dec. 31
ST | (=T 600,000
INCOMeE SUMMALY .....cocveninmrnssssmssssassms s snssssssas 600,000
Dec. 31
INCOME SUMMALY ... snnsanas 554,210
Cost of Goods Sold ........ccccurerrrrrrirnsrrsssessnessesnns 408,000
Advertising EXPense........ccuoumsmsmsmssssnsnssnssnssnsans 6,000
Administrative Salaries Expense......ccccocueerserannas 65,000
Sales Salaries EXpPense.......curnmsmsesssssssnsssssnsanss 52,400
Office EXPENSE ... eerccccerccmsnssmssmssssmssesssssssmssnsnnas 3,500
Insurance EXPense.......vrmccsssssssssssssassssssnnes 2,550
Bad Debt EXpense........cccrmmnmmsmmssmssasssnssassssssasssnssanas 1,400
Depreciation Expense—Furniture and
Equipment........ s 12,000
Interest EXpense.......cccumimmsmmsesssnssssssnsssssssssasssssanas 3,360
Dec. 31
INCOME SUMMALY ... snsasanas 45,790
Retained Earnings........cocremmimssnsnsessnsasssssnssnsanas 45,790
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*PROBLEM 3-10

(a) LAKELAND SALES AND SERVICE
Income Statement
For the Month Ended January 31, 2010

(1) (2)
Cash Basis Accrual Basis
REVENUES ... ecercesreeensce e sses s e s nsmenaeas £ 75,000 £98,400*
Expenses
Cost of computers & printers:
Purchased and paid ........ccccruucu.e. 82,500**
Cost of goods sold.......cceeeeeeeeneene 59,500***
Salaries.....ciimiimiimrsesesrnss s ————— 9,600 12,600
2 (= 0| 6,000 2,000
Other operating expenses ........cccuuunueus 8,400 10,400
Total expenses .......ccvmsmsmsnssnssnns 106,500 84,500
Net income (10SS) .....ccccvrrmrmsmrrmsnsmssnsnsnssnssnsnnas £(31,500) £13,900

*(£2,550 X 30) + (£3,600 X 4) + (£500 X 15)
*(£1,500 X 40) + (£2,500 X 6) + (£300 X 25)
**+(£1,500 X 30) + (£2,500 X 4) + (£300 X 15)
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*PROBLEM 3-10 (Continued)

(b) LAKELAND SALES AND SERVICE
Statement of Financial Position
As of January 31, 2010

1) (2)

Cash Basis Accrual Basis

Assets
0= 1= o £58,500° £ 58,500°
Accounts Receivable ......cccccvemriimriinnnns 23,400
INVENTOIY ...eoeerecereereeesseesseessesensesensensnsens 23,000°
Prepaid rent........ccooeiriescncscssnsnsnsannas 4,000

Total assets......cccceevvirrinmmmmmemmerrrrrreaeeas £58,500 £108,900

Equity and Liabilities

o U] 37 £58,500° £103,900

Salaries payable ........ccoioririnrnicsinsanianas 3,000

Accounts payable ........cocireniririninnane 2,000

Total equity and liabilities.................. £58,500 £108,900
2Original investment £ 90,000
Cash sales 75,000
Cash purchases (82,500)
Rent paid (6,000)
Salaries paid (9,600)
Other operating expenses (8,400)
Cash balance Jan. 31 £ 58,500

®(10 @ £1,500) + (2 @ £2,500) + (10 @ £300).
‘Initial investment minus net loss: £90,000 — £31,500.

dInitial investment plus net income: £90,000 + £13,900.
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*PROBLEM 3-10 (Continued)

(c) 1.

The £23,400 in receivables from customers is an asset and a future
cash flow resulting from sales that is ignored. The cash basis under-
states the amount of revenues and inflow of assets in January from
the sale of computers and printers by £23,400.

The cost of computers and printers sold in January is overstated by
£23,000. The unsold computers and printers are an asset of £23,000 in
the form of inventory.

The cash basis ignores £3,000 of the salaries that have been earned
by the employees in January and will be paid in February.

Rent expense on the cash basis is overstated by £4,000 under the
cash basis. This prepayment is an asset in the form of two months’
future right to the use of office, showroom, and repair space and
should appear on the balance sheet.

Other operating expenses on a cash basis are understated by £2,000
as is the liability for the unpaid portion of these expenses incurred in
January.
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*PROBLEM 3-11
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*PROBLEM 3-11 (Continued)

(b) COOKE COMPANY
Statement of Financial Position
September 30, 2010

Assets
Noncurrent assets
Property, plant, and equipment

=1 3 Lo $80,000

Equipment ... $120,000

Less: Accum. depreciation.............. 42,000 78,000 $158,000

Current assets

ST ] o] o] [T=T= 4,200

Prepaid insurance.........cccourersersnrsnssens 3,900

(- -1 o 1 37,400
Total current assets.................. 45,500
Total assets....ccocremreccvrccrrcnee. $203,500

Equity and Liabilities

Equity
Cooke, Capital ($109,700 + $33,500 — $14,000)........ $129,200
Liabilities
Mortgage payable ........ccoinrsmsmsssmsessnsesssesassnsasanas $40,000
Current liabilities
Accounts payable........cccoeererrescrmrarsnsesnans $14,600
Current maturity of long-term debt...... 10,000
Interest payable.......coerirenreneaee. 6,000
Property taxes payable.........cccoeerrunuee. 3,000
Unearned admissions revenue.............. 700
Total current liabilities........cc........ _ 34,300
Total liabilities ......cccovrrerenscrsnsansennes 74,300
Total equity and liabilities .......cccceceeirirensnnncne. $203,500
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*PROBLEM 3-11 (Continued)

(c) Sep. 30 Insurance EXPense.........ommmmsmsasassnnas 28,000
Prepaid Insurance .......ccccoveereecrcrccrncens 28,000

30 Supplies EXPENnSe .....ccocuummrsmrsmsassmsnsassnssssasans 14,400
S]] o o] 11T 14,400

30 Depreciation EXpense .......cocomemssmssnsnssnsas 5,800
Accum. Depreciation........cccceeveercracne. 5,800

30 Unearned Admissions Revenue................. 2,000
Admissions Revenue........cccceveerevennens 2,000

30 Property Taxes Expense.........coccerrimrcnnnae 3,000
Property Taxes Payable ....................... 3,000

30 Interest EXpense.......micmiessssssnsnsnnans 6,000
Interest Payable .......oooveriescrinicrnnenne 6,000

(d) Sep. 30 Admissions Revenue.........ormsersmsmsnsnsans 280,500
Income Summary......ccccovrsmrensessmssnsansnss 280,500

30 Income SUMMATY ......ccovemsmrsmsmsmssmssnsnssmssnsasans 247,000
Salaries EXpense......cooeeeeeeeeecescescnne. 109,000
Repair EXpense......rennsessnsaness 30,500
Insurance EXpense .........cenensesnsananns 28,000
Property Taxes Expense........ccueereraeas 21,000
Supplies EXpense.......corrmsmssmssnsanas 14,400
Utilities Expense.......coceerirescrscnccssenas 16,900
Interest Expense........cccrvmsmsssssnssnsanas 12,000
Advertising EXpense ........c.ccourensmsessnnes 9,400
Depreciation Expense........ccocuamrmrnsanns 5,800

3-74 Copyright © 2011 John Wiley & Sons, Inc.  Kieso, IFRS, 1/e, Solutions Manual  (For Instructor Use Only)



*PROBLEM 3-11 (Continued)

30 INCOME SUMMANY ....ccoeremsmramsmsmssmsmssssmsassnsassnas 33,500
Cooke, Capital.......cccoereerememecrcrceneacas 33,500
30 Cooke, Capital.......cccoceeeemrmrrcrmsmrsmesnsnssmssnsnnas 14,000
Cooke, Drawing ........cceesemsmsmsassessnsasnss 14,000
(e) COOKE COMPANY
Post-Closing Trial Balance
September 30, 2010
Debit Credit

(07 T o $ 37,400
ESTU 7 o o] 1= 4,200
Prepaid Insurance...........cccucmimsmmsmmsmssassnssnssssssssanas 3,900
NP T T 80,000
Equipment ... 120,000
Accumulated Depreciation ........ccccceerverecrsncncn. $ 42,000
Accounts Payable.........cccccunmimirnsmssnssensnssesssnsaens 14,600
Unearned Admissions Revenue........................ 700
Interest Payable........ininnnnssssssssesssssssnnns 6,000
Property Taxes Payable........cccooiomimieninsnsnnnneee 3,000
Mortgage Payable...........ccoumirnmsmsessnsmsessnssnsassnnas 50,000
Cooke, Capital.........coceremsmrmsmsmrsmsmssnsmsassnsmssssnsassnsass 129,200

$245,500 $245,500
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FINANCIAL REPORTING PROBLEM

(a)

(b)
(c)

(d)

(e)

()

March 29, 2008 total assets: £7,161 million.
March 31, 2007 total assets: £5,381 million.

March 29, 2008 cash and cash equivalents: £318 million.

2008 selling and marketing expenses: £1,912.7 million.
2007 selling and marketing expenses: £1,779.2 million.

2008 revenues: £9,022.0 million.
2007 revenues: £8,588.1 million.

An adjusting entry for deferrals is necessary when the receipt/disbursement
precedes the recognition in the financial statements. Accounts such as
prepaid pension contributions and prepaid leasehold premiums are
included in the Trade and other receivables section (£410.0 million at
March 29, 2008). Both of these accounts would require an adjusting entry
to recognize the proper amount of expense incurred during the period. In
addition, depreciation expense is an adjusting entry related to a deferral.

An adjusting entry for an accrual is necessary when recognition in the
financial statements precedes the cash receipt/disbursement, such as
interest or taxes payable. Other adjusting entries probably made by M&S
include finance income and finance costs and bank and other interest
receivable and interest payable.

2007 Depreciation and amortization expense: £282.7 million
2008 Depreciation and amortization expense: £317.6 million
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COMPARATIVE ANALYSIS CASE

(a)

(b)

Cadbury’s percentage decrease is computed as follows:

Total assets (December 31, 2008)........cccceorrmrsmramsmrsmsmsmssmssnsassnsas £ 8,895
Total assets (December 31, 2007)........ccoeamsmrsmrmsmrsmsmsmssmssnsassnsas (£11,338)
D 11 =1 = Lo £ (2,443)

£(2,443) + £11,338 = (21.5)%

Nestle’s percentage decrease is computed as follows:

Total assets (December 31, 2008)........cccccererrrsrscrsmrsmssassnssanens CHF 106,215
Total assets (December 31, 2007).......cccerrsmrsmsamsmssmssmsassmssnsassnsas (115,361)
(D113 (=T =Y g T o Y CHF _(9,146)

(9,146) + 115,361 = (7.9)%
Cadbury suffered the larger decrease.

Cadbury reported an £84 million profit from discontinued operations,
which represented almost 21% of its profit from continuing operations.
Reporting a discontinued operations this large may make comparisons
between companies difficult. Since discontinued operations are considered
to be nonrecurring, they should be excluded before comparing results
between the two companies.
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COMPARATIVE ANALYSIS CASE (Continued)

(c)

Cadbury had depreciation and amortization expense of £244 million (52%
of operating cash flow); Nestle had depreciation and amortization expense
of 3,249 CHF million (30% of operating cash flow).

Nestle has substantially more property, plant, and equipment and intangible
assets than does Cadbury. Amortizable intangible assets for Cadbury and
Nestle increase the amount of amortization expense recorded in income.
The amount of property, plant, and equipment and amortizable intangible
assets reported for these two companies is as follows:

Cadbury Nestle

Property, plant, and
equipment (net) £1,761,000,000 £21,097,000,000
Amortizable intangible
assets (net) 1,685,000,000 6,867,000,000
£3,446,000,000 £27,964,000,000
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT ANALYSIS CASE

Vodafone

(a) % Change % Change
Vodafone Group plc 2009 2008 2007 2009 2008
Revenues £41,017 £35,478 £31,104 15.61% 14.06%
Gross Profit % 37.00% 38.30% 39.80% -3.39% -3.77%
Operating Profit £ 5,857 £10,047 (£ 1,564) -41.70% -742.39%
Operating Cash Flow less
Capital Expenditures 7,009 6,622 6,695 5.84% -1.09%
Profit (Loss) 3,080 6,756 (5,222) -54.41% —229.38%

(b) Except for an increase in Revenues, Vodafone’s earnings performance
has been declining; gross profit, operating profit, and net income (profit)
have declined in 2009. Note that 2007 was a very poor year; but after
some improvement in 2008, things have turned a bit to the negative. One
promising development is the cash flow measure, which is on the
increase. So while Vodafone may be able to deliver on its free-cash-flow
generation objective, the earnings performance does not give a good
signal that Vodafone has been or will be able to deliver on operating
performance and growth opportunities.
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ACCOUNTING ANALYSIS, AND PRINCIPLES

ACCOUNTING

Depreciation EXPeNSe........ccocemierimrsmsessmssmsassmsssssssmssnssssnssnssssasanss 9,500
Accumulated Depreciation—Equipment ....................... 9,500

$9,500 = ($192,000 — $40,000) + 16

Interest EXPeNSE ... iicemssimrimssmssnsssessnsssssssssssnssssssmssssssanss 8,250
Interest Payable ... 8,250

$8,250 = ($90,000 X 0.10) X 11/12

Unearned Ticket Revenue........rreerrcsnscssscsssessssssssssssssssasenes 10,000
Ticket ReVeNUE.......cccicccmrrimr i s s e s sss s snssssmssssamsssnness 10,000

$10,000 = ($50 X 200)

AdvertiSing EXPENSE .......ccvcermierimsnnsessmsnsnssmsssssssnssnssssssnssssssnses 2,500
Prepaid AdVvertiSing .......ccorrmssimssnsessmssssnssmsssssssmssnsassnsans 2,500
Salaries EXPENSE .....ccumrmsmsassmsmsmsmsassmsassssmssssmsssssssssssmsassnsassssasanas 3,500
Salaries Payable ... crccerccccssesssesssssssssssssmsnsnnnnas 3,500
ANALYSIS
Income before Income after
Adjustments Adjustments Adjustments
Ticket revenue £360,000 £10,000 £370,000
Depreciation expense (9,500) (9,500)
Advertising expense (18,680) (2,500) (21,180)
Salaries expense (67,600) (3,500) (71,100)
Interest expense (1,400) (8,250) (9,650)
Net income £272,320 £258,570

Without recording the adjusting entries, Amato’s income is overstated. In addition,
without the adjustments, Amato’s current liabilities and current assets are
misstated, which could affect evaluation of Amato’s liquidity.
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ACCOUNTING ANALYSIS PRICIPLES (Continued)

PRINCIPLES

The tradeoffs are between the timeliness of the reports, which contributes to
relevance, and verifiability, the lack of which detracts from faithful representation.
That is, by preparing reports more frequently, the company provides more
timely information, which can make a difference to a statement reader who needs
to make a decision. However, preparing statements more frequently requires
more subjective estimates, which reduces faithful representation.
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PROFESSIONAL RESEARCH

(a)

(b)

Assets

53 The future economic benefit embodied in an asset is the potential to
contribute, directly or indirectly, to the flow of cash and cash equivalents
to the entity. The potential may be a productive one that is part of the
operating activities of the entity. It may also take the form of convertibility
into cash or cash equivalents or a capability to reduce cash outflows,
such as when an alternative manufacturing process lowers the costs of
production.

54 An entity usually employs its assets to produce goods or services
capable of satisfying the wants or needs of customers; because these
goods or services can satisfy these wants or needs, customers are prepared
to pay for them and hence contribute to the cash flow of the entity. Cash
itself renders a service to the entity because of its command over other
resources.

55 The future economic benefits embodied in an asset may flow to the

entity in a number of ways. For example, an asset may be:

a. used singly or in combination with other assets in the production of
goods or services to be sold by the entity;

b. exchanged for other assets;

c. used to settle a liability; or

d. distributed to the owners of the entity.
Liabilities

60 An essential characteristic of a liability is that the entity has a present
obligation. An obligation is a duty or responsibility to act or perform in a
certain way. Obligations may be legally enforceable as a consequence of
a binding contract or statutory requirement. This is normally the case, for
example, with amounts payable for goods and services received. Obligations
also arise, however, from normal business practice, custom and a desire
to maintain good business relations or act in an equitable manner. If, for
example, an entity decides as a matter of policy to rectify faults in its
products even when these become apparent after the warranty period has
expired, the amounts that are expected to be expended in respect of
goods already sold are liabilities.
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PROFESSIONAL RESEARCH (Continued)

(c)

61 A distinction needs to be drawn between a present obligation and a
future commitment. A decision by the management of an entity to acquire
assets in the future does not, of itself, give rise to a present obligation. An
obligation normally arises only when the asset is delivered or the entity
enters into an irrevocable agreement to acquire the asset. In the latter
case, the irrevocable nature of the agreement means that the economic
consequences of failing to honour the obligation, for example, because of
the existence of a substantial penalty, leave the entity with little, if any,
discretion to avoid the outflow of resources to another party.

62 The settlement of a present obligation usually involves the entity giving
up resources embodying economic benefits in order to satisfy the claim
of the other party. Settlement of a present obligation may occur in a number
of ways, for example, by:

payment of cash;

transfer of other assets;

provision of services;

replacement of that obligation with another obligation; or

conversion of the obligation to equity.

©ooTw

Accrual basis

22 In order to meet their objectives, financial statements are prepared on the
accrual basis of accounting. Under this basis, the effects of transactions
and other events are recognised when they occur (and not as cash or its
equivalent is received or paid) and they are recorded in the accounting
records and reported in the financial statements of the periods to which
they relate. Financial statements prepared on the accrual basis inform
users not only of past transactions involving the payment and receipt of
cash but also of obligations to pay cash in the future and of resources
that represent cash to be received in the future. Hence, they provide the
type of information about past transactions and other events that is most
useful to users in making economic decisions.

Copyright © 2011 John Wiley & Sons, Inc.  Kieso, IFRS, 1/e, Solutions Manual  (For Instructor Use Only) 3-83



PROFESSIONAL SIMULATION

Journal Entries

Dec. 31 Accounts Receivable.......rrerrerermescessecsscnnnes 1,500
Advertising Revenue..........ccccovuirensernsnsasnens 1,500

31 Unearned Advertising Revenue............cceeeuuuce.e 1,400
Advertising Revenue.........cccuomvmsmsamsasssssssssnns 1,400

31 Art Supplies EXpense........cccomirnmsssmssnsassmsnsassassns 3,400
Art SUPPLIES ..o 3,400

31 Depreciation EXPense.......coumrsmsmsmssmsassmssnssssassns 7,000
Accumulated Depreciation.........cccceeeeererenes 7,000

31 Salaries EXPeNnSe ......ccomsmrsmssssmsssssssmsssssssssssssssnssns 1,300
Salaries Payable..........ccornnnmsmrsnsnsnscsasannns 1,300

Financial Statements

Nalezny Advertising Agency
Income Statement
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Revenues
AdvertisSing revenue.........eerimrsssessimssssssssssssas s $61,500
Expenses
Salaries eXPENSE ......ccucremmsmsmssrsmsmsmsasassssssmsasssssssmsasssssnsns $11,300
Depreciation eXpense.......ourmimsmmsmmsessmssassmssnsssssssssssns 7,000
Rent eXpense....... s 4,000
Art supplies eXPenSe .......cocuemmrimrsmsmssmssnsnssmssnsssmssnsssnssnsas 3.400
Total eXPenses ........ccceierimrsmsssmssnsnssmssnsassmsnsassnsans 25,700
Net iNCOME ... $35,800
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PROFESSIONAL SIMULATION (Continued)

Nalezny Advertising Agency
Statement of Financial Position
December 31, 2010

Assets
Printing equipment........ e $60,000
Less: Accumulated depreciation—
printing equipment......... e 35,000
Art SUPPLIES ...t
Accounts receivable ... ———
0= 1= o
Total Assets......cmmmmmmmimssmssssssssssssssssans

Equity and Liabilities

Equity
Share capital—ordinary........ccoeceocersesessssssesmsmsassnseas $10,000
Retained earnings .......cccoiiremnnscssnsmsmssnsssessnsnsnsanss
40,600*
Liabilities
Accounts payable.........cooieiisr e 5,000
Unearned advertising revenue............ccceosssernsenanns 5,600
Salaries payable.........ccocurnmnmnrnnsrsnsnssss—— 1,300
Total liabilities .....ccccoceererrrrsrrrrss s snseesneas
Total equity and liabilities .........cccuurmmresesnscasesnsnaseas
*Retained earnings, Jan. 1, 2010 $ 4,800
Add: Net income 35,800
Retained earnings, Dec. 31, 2010 $40,600
Explanation

$25,000
5,000
21,500
11,000

$62,500

$50,600

Following preparation of financial statements (see lllustration 3-6), Nalezny
would prepare closing entries to reduce the temporary accounts to zero.
Some companies prepare a post-closing trial balance and reversing entries.
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Income Statement and Related Information

CHAPTER 4

ASSIGNMENT CLASSIFICATION TABLE (BY TOPIC)

Brief Concepts
Topics Questions  Exercises Exercises Problems  for Analysis
1. Income measurement 1,2,3,4,5, 3,4,5,7
concepts. 6,7,8,9,10,
11, 32, 35
2. Computation of net 1,3,4,5 1,2,3,4,8
income from balance
sheets and selected
accounts.
3. Condensed income 12, 13, 14, 1,2,4,10 4,5,7, 8, 3,4,6 1,2,6
statements; earnings 23,25 10, 11,
per share. 13,17
4. Detailed income 12, 14, 15, 3,6 1,5, 6, 1,2,5 7
statements. 16, 19, 20 7,9
5. Accounting changes; 16,17, 18, 7,8,9 6,8,10,11, 4,6,7,8 3,5,6,7
discontinued 19, 24, 25, 13, 14
operations; prior 27, 28, 29,
period adjustments; 30, 36
errors.
6. Retained earnings 31 11,12 9,12, 1,2, 3,
statement. 16, 17 56,7
7. Intraperiod tax 21, 22, 9, 11,13, 2,4,7,8
allocation. 26, 27 14,16
8. Comprehensive 33, 34, 37 13 15, 16, 8
income. 17,18
9. Convergence. 35, 36, 37 1
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ASSIGNMENT CLASSIFICATION TABLE (BY LEARNING OBJECTIVE)

Brief
Learning Objectives Exercises Exercises Problems
1. Understand the uses and limitations
of an income statement.
2. Understand the content and format of the 1,2 1,2,3,4,8 3
income statement.
3. Prepare an income statement. 1,2, 3,4, 5,6,7,8, 2,3,4,5
56,7 9,611,17
4. Explain how to report items in the income 3,4,5,6,7, 4,5,6,7,8,9, 1,2, 3,4,5,
statement. 8,9 11, 13, 14, 6,7,8
15,17
5. ldentify where to report earnings per share 10 8,9,10, 11, 2,4,5,
information. 13,17 6,8
6. Explain intraperiod tax allocation. 8,9, 11, 13, 2,3,4,5,
14,17 6,7,8
7. Understand the reporting of accounting 8,9,12 14 4,7
changes and errors.
8. Prepare a retained earnings statement. 11,12 1,9, 12, 1,2,3,5,6,7
16, 17
9. Explain how to report other comprehensive 13 1,7,15, 16, 1
income. 17,18
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ASSIGNMENT CHARACTERISTICS TABLE

Level of Time
ltem Description Difficulty (minutes)
E4-1 Compute income measures. Simple 10-15
E4-2 Computation of net income. Simple 18-20
E4-3 Income statement items. Simple 25-35
E4-4 Income statement presentation. Moderate 20-25
E4-5 Income statement. Simple 20-25
E4-6 Income statement, items. Moderate 30-35
E4-7 Income statement. Moderate 30-40
E4-8 Income statement, EPS. Simple 15-20
E4-9 Income statement with retained earnings. Simple 30-35
E4-10 Earnings per share. Simple 20-25
E4-11 Condensed income statement—periodic inventory Moderate 20-25

method.
E4-12 Retained earnings statement. Simple 20-25
E4-13 Earnings per share. Moderate 15-20
E4-14 Change in accounting principle. Moderate 15-20
E4-15 Comprehensive income. Simple 15-20
E4-16 Comprehensive income. Moderate 15-20
E4-17 Various reporting formats. Moderate 30-35
E4-18 Changes in equity. Simple 10-15
P4-1 Income components. Simple 5-10
P4-2 Income statement, retained earnings. Moderate 30-35
P4-3 Income statement, retained earnings, periodic inventory. Simple 25-30
P4-4 Income statement items. Moderate 3040
P4-5 Income statement retained earnings. Moderate 3040
P4-6 Statement presentation. Moderate 20-25
P4-7 Retained earnings statement, prior period adjustment. Moderate 25-35
P4-8 Income statement. Moderate 25-35
CA4-1 Identification of income statement deficiencies. Simple 20-25
CA4-2 Income reporting deficiencies. Simple 10-15
CA4-3 Earnings management. Moderate 20-25
CA4-4 Earnings management Simple 15-20
CA4-5 Income reporting items. Moderate 30-35
CA4-6 Identification of income statement weaknesses. Moderate 3040
CA4-7 Classification of income statement items. Moderate 20-25
CA4-8 Comprehensive income. Simple 10-15
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ANSWERS TO QUESTIONS

The income statement is important because it provides investors and creditors with information
that helps them predict the amount, timing, and uncertainty of future cash flows. It helps investors
and creditors predict future cash flows in a number of different ways. First, investors and creditors can
use the information on the income statement to evaluate the past performance of the enterprise.
Second, the income statement helps users of the financial statements to determine the risk (level of
uncertainty) of income—revenues, expenses, gains, and losses—and highlights the relationship
among these various components.

It should be emphasized that the income statement is used by parties other than investors and
creditors. For example, customers can use the income statement to determine a company’s ability
to provide needed goods or services, unions examine earnings closely as a basis for salary dis-
cussions, and the government uses the income statements of companies as a basis for formulating
tax and economic policy.

Information on past transactions can be used to identify important trends that, if continued, provide
information about future performance. If a reasonable correlation exists between past and future
performance, predictions about future earnings and cash flows can be made. For example, a loan
analyst can develop a prediction of future performance by estimating the rate of growth of past
income over the past several periods and project this into the next period. Additional information
about current economic and industry factors can be used to adjust the trend rate based on
historical information.

Some situations in which changes in value are not recorded in income are:

(a) Unrealized gains or losses on available-for-sale investments,

(b) Changes in the market values of long-term liabilities, such as bonds payable,

(c) Changes (increases) in value of property, plant and equipment, such as land, natural resources,
or equipment,

(d) Changes (increases) in the values of intangible assets such as customer goodwill, brand value,
or intellectual capital.

Note that some of these omissions arise because the items (e.g., brand value) are not recognized
in financial statements, while others (value of land) are recorded in financial statements but meas-
urement is at historical cost.

Some situations in which application of different accounting methods or estimates lead to comparison
problems include:
(a) Inventory methods—weighted average vs. FIFO,

(b) Depreciation Methods—straight-line vs. accelerated,

(c) Accounting for long-term contracts—percentage-of-completion vs. completed-contract,
(d) Estimates of useful lives or salvage values for depreciable assets,

(e) Estimates of bad debits,

(

fy Estimates of warranty costs.

The transaction approach focuses on the activities that have occurred during a given period and
instead of presenting only a net change, a description of the components that comprise the change
is included. In the capital maintenance approach, only the net change (income) is reflected whereas
the transaction approach not only provides the net change (income) but the components of income
(revenues and expenses). The final net income figure should be the same under either approach
given the same valuation base.

4-4
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Questions Chapter 4 (Continued)

6.

10.

11.

12.

13.

Earnings management is often defined as the planned timing of revenues, expenses, gains and
losses to smooth out bumps in earnings. In most cases, earnings management is used to increase
income in the current year at the expense of income in future years. For example, companies
prematurely recognize sales before they are complete in order to boost earnings. Earnings
management can also be used to decrease current earnings in order to increase income in the
future. The classic case is the use of “cookie jar’ reserves, which are established by using unrealistic
assumptions to estimate liabilities for such items as sales returns, loan losses, and warranty costs.

Earnings management has a negative effect on the quality of earnings if it distorts the information
in a way that is less useful for predicting future cash flows. Within the Conceptual Framework,
useful information is both relevant and a faithful representation. However, earnings management
reduces the reliability of income, because the income measure is biased (up or down) and/or the
reported income is not representationally faithful to that which it is supposed to report (e.g., volatile
earnings are made to look more smooth).

Caution should be exercised because many assumptions and estimates are made in accounting
and the net income figure is a reflection of these assumptions. If for any reason the assumptions are
not well-founded, distortions will appear in the income reported. The objectives of the application
of IFRS to the income statement are to measure and report the performance for a specified period
without recognizing any artificial exclusions or modifications.

The term “quality of earnings” refers to the credibility of the earnings number reported. Companies
that use aggressive accounting policies report higher income numbers in the short-run. In such
cases, we say that the quality of earnings is low. Similarly, if higher expenses are recorded in the
current period, in order to report higher income in the future, then the quality of earnings is also
considered low.

Income is increases in economic benefits during the accounting period in the form of inflows or
enhancements of assets or decreases of liabilities that result in increases in equity, other than
those relating to contributions from shareholders.

Expenses are decreases in economic benefits during the accounting period in the form of outflows
or depletions of assets or incurrences of liabilities that result in decreases in equity, other than
those relating to distributions to shareholders.

The definition of income includes both revenues and gains. Gains represent items that meet the
definition of income and may or may not arise in the ordinary activities of a company.

The definition of expenses includes both expenses and losses. Losses represent items that meet
the definition of expenses and may or may not arise in the ordinary activities of a company.

(1) Gross profit is the difference between revenue and cost of goods sold and is reported in the
cost of goods sold section of the income statement.

(2) Income from operations is reported on the income statement between the other income and
expense section and financing costs.

Ahold would report the “settlement of securities class action” loss in the other income and expense
section of its income statement.
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Questions Chapter 4 (Continued)

14. (1) Interest expense is reported on the income statement between income from operations and
income before income taxes.
(2) Income tax expense is reported between income before income tax and income from
continuing operations on the income statement.

15. The “nature of expense” classification uses a natural expense approach (such as direct labor
incurred, advertising expense, depreciation expense) without having to make arbitrary allocations.

The “function of expense” classification identifies the major cost drivers of a company (such as
cost of goods sold and administrative expenses).

16. (a) A loss on discontinued operations is reported net of tax in the income statement between
income from continuing operations and net income.
(b) Non-controlling interest allocation is reported in the income statement after the net income.
(c) Earnings per share are shown in the income statement after the non-controlling interest
allocation.
(d) A gain on sale of equipment in shown under other income and expense in the income
statement.

17. (a) The write-down of plant assets due to impairment should be shown as an other income and
expense item.

(b) The delivery expense on goods sold should be shown as a selling expense in the income
statement. It is an ordinary expense to the company and represents a cost of selling goods.

(c) If the amount is immaterial, it may be combined with the depreciation expense for the year
and included as a part of the depreciation expense appearing in the income statement. If the
amount is material, it should be shown in the retained earnings statement as an adjustment to
the beginning balance of retained earnings.

(d) This should be shown in the income statement. One treatment would be to show it in the
statement as a deduction from the rent expense, as it reduces an expense and therefore is
directly related to operations. Another treatment is to show it in the other income and expense
section of the income statement.

(e) Assuming that a provision for the loss had not been made at the time the patent infringement
suit was instituted, the loss should be recognized in the current period in computing net
income. It is reported as other income and expense.

(f) This should be reported in the income statement because it relates to usual business
operations of the firm.

18. (a) The remaining book value of the equipment should be depreciated over the remainder of the
five-year period. The additional depreciation (£425,000) is not a correction of an error and is not
shown as an adjustment to retained earnings. The change is considered a change in estimate.

) The loss should be shown as an other income and expense item.

) The write-off should be shown as an other income and expense item.

) Interest expense should be shown as a deduction from Income from operations.

) A correction of an error should be considered a prior period adjustment and the beginning
balance of Retained Earnings should be restated, if material.

() The cumulative effect of the change is reported as an adjustment to beginning retained

earnings. Prior years’ statements are recast on a basis consistent with the new standard.
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Questions Chapter 4 (Continued)

19.

20.

21,

22,

23.

24,

25.

(a) Other income and expense section.

(b) Expense section or other income and expense.

(c) Expense section, as a selling expense, but sometimes reflected as an administrative expense.
(d) Separate section after income from continuing operations, entitled discontinued operations.
(e) Other income and expense section.

(f)  Financing cost section.

(

(

g) Operating expense section.
h) Other income and expense section.

Both formats are acceptable. The amount of detail reported in the income statement is left to the
judgment of the company, whose goal in making this decision should be to present financial
statements which are most useful to decision makers. We want to present a simple, understand-
able statement so that a reader can easily discover the facts of importance; therefore, a single
amount for selling expenses might be preferable. However, we also want to fully disclose the results
of all activities; thus, a separate listing of expenses may be preferred. Note that if the condensed
version is used, it should be accompanied by a supporting schedule of the eight components in the
notes to the financial statements.

Intraperiod tax allocation should not affect the reporting of an unusual gain. The IASB reserves
“net-of-tax” treatment for discontinued operations and prior period adjustments.

Intraperiod tax allocation has no effect on reported net income, although it does affect the amounts
reported for various components of income. The effects on these components offset each other so
net income remains the same. Intraperiod tax allocation merely takes the total tax expense and
allocates it to the various items which affect the tax amount.

If Neumann has preference shares outstanding, the numerator in its computation may be incorrect.
A better description of “earnings per share” is “earnings per ordinary share.” The numerator should
include only the earnings available to ordinary shareholders. Therefore, the numerator should be:
net income less preference dividends.

The denominator is also incorrect if Neumann had any common stock transactions during the year.
Since the numerator represents the results for the entire year, the denominator should reflect the
weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the year, not the shares
outstanding at one point in time (year-end).

A loss on the disposal of a component of a business is reported separately from continuing
operations. It is shown net of tax after the income from continuing operations line in the income
statement.

The earnings per share trend is not negative. A loss on discontinued operations is a one-time
occurrence which is not expected to be reported in the future. Therefore, earnings per share on
income from continuing operations is more useful because it represents the results of usual
business activity. Considering this EPS amount, EPS has increased from $7.12 to $8.00.
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Questions Chapter 4 (Continued)

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

Tax allocation within a period is the practice of allocating the income tax for a period to such items
as income before income tax, discontinued operations, and prior period adjustments.

The justification for tax allocation within a period is to produce financial statements which disclose
an appropriate relationship, for example, between income tax expense and (a) income before
income tax, (b) discontinued operations, and (c) prior period adjustments (or of the opening
balance of retained earnings).

Tax allocation within a period (intraperiod) becomes necessary when a firm encounters such items
as discontinued operations or corrections of errors. Such allocation is necessary to bring about an
appropriate relationship between income tax expense and income from continuing operations,
discontinued operations etc.

Tax allocation within a period is handled by first computing the tax expense attributable to income
before income tax, assuming no discontinued operations. This is simply computed by ascertaining
the income tax expense related to revenue and expense transactions entering into the determination
of such income. Next, the remaining income tax expense attributable to other items is determined by
the tax consequences of transactions involving these items. The applicable tax effect of these items
(prior period adjustments) should be disclosed separately because of their materiality.

The assets, cash flows, results of operations, and activities of the plants closed would not appear to
be clearly distinguishable, operationally or for financial reporting purposes, from the assets, results of
operations, or activities of the Linus Paper Company. Therefore, disposal of these assets is not
considered to be a disposal of a component of a business that would receive special reporting.

Companies report corrections of errors as an adjustment to the beginning balance of retained
earnings. If a company prepares comparative financial statements, it should restate the prior
statements for the effects of the error.

A change in accounting principle has no effect on the current year's net income because it is
recognized as a retrospective adjustment to the financial statements. It is reported as an
adjustment to beginning retained earnings of the earliest year presented.

The major items reported in the retained earnings statement are: (1) adjustments of the beginning
balance for corrections of errors or changes in accounting principle, (2) the net income or loss for
the period, (3) dividends for the year, and (4) restrictions (appropriations) of retained earnings. It
should be noted that the retained earnings statement is sometimes composed of two parts,
unappropriated and appropriated.

IFRS are ordinarily concerned only with a “fair presentation” of business income. In contrast,
taxable income is a statutory concept which defines the base for raising tax revenues by the
government, and any method of accounting which meets the statutory definition will “clearly reflect”
taxable income as defined by relevant tax laws. It should be noted that many tax systems prohibits
use of the cash receipts and disbursements method as a method which will clearly reflect income
in accounting for purchases and sales if inventories are involved.

4-8

Copyright © 2011 John Wiley & Sons, Inc.  Kieso, IFRS, 1/e, Solutions Manual  (For Instructor Use Only)



Questions Chapter 4 (Continued)

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

The cash receipts and disbursements method will not usually fairly present income because:

(1) The completed transaction, not receipt or disbursement of cash, increases or diminishes
income. Thus, a sale on account produces revenue and increases income, and the incurrence
of expense reduces income without regard to the time of payment of cash.

(2) The expense recognition principle generally results in costs being matched against related
revenues produced. In most situations the cash receipts and disbursements method will violate
this principle.

(3) Consistency requires that accountable events receive the same accounting treatment from
accounting period to accounting period. The cash receipts and disbursements method permits
manipulation of the timing of revenues and expenses and may result in treatments which are
not consistent, detracting from the usefulness of comparative statements.

Other comprehensive income may be displayed (reported) in one of two ways: (1) a second
income statement or (2) a combined statement of comprehensive income.

GRIBBLE COMPANY
Comprehensive Income Statement
For the Year Ended 2010
(in thousands of Euros)

V=] B Lo 0] 1 41 €150
Unrealized gain related to revaluation of buildings..........ccccovrrecciinnncccsrenee 10
Unrealized loss related to available-for-sale securities..........cocooeeveenrennccnceene. (35)
Items not recognized on the income statement............ccocoriiinniicnncnecee (25)
Total cCOMPrenenSIiVe INCOME ... €125

There is no U.S. GAAP in this area, except the SEC does require public companies to report their
expenses by function.

Bradshaw should report this item as an extraordinary item similar to discontinued operations.
While under U.S. GAAP, companies are required to report an item as extraordinary if it is unusual
in nature and infrequent in occurrence. Extraordinary item reporting is prohibited under IFRS.

U.S. GAAP provides for three possible reporting formats for comprehensive income items:
(1) a single income statement (2) a combined statement of comprehensive income, or (3) as a part
of the statement of shareholders’ equity.
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SOLUTIONS TO BRIEF EXERCISES

BRIEF EXERCISE 4-1

STARR CO.

Income Statement

For the Year 2010
SAIES ..ccverirmrrrn s ————————————————————————————————————— £540,000
Cost of goods SOId.......oreirriecnrsree e 330,000
LT o130 0] o] 11 210,000
Selling eXPENSES.....cccomrmrmsmrsmsmssssmsnssssmsssmsnssssnsssmsassnsssasans £120,000
Administrative eXpenses ........ccucvmsmsmsmsssssssssssssssssssssanas 10,000 130,000
Income before income tax.......cccccmrciemrissmssssmessssnsssessnes 80,000
Income tax 25,000
(V123 ] g o o] 3 1= £ 55,000

Earnings per share.........nnirssssiessssssssssssssssnsnss

e

0.55*

*£55,000 =+ 100,000 shares.

Note: The increase in value of employees is not reported.
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BRIEF EXERCISE 4-2

BRISKY CORPORATION
Income Statement
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

[N =] =T 1 (= $2,400,000
Cost of goods SOId ... 1,450,000
(€] o T-T-3 0] Lo 1 SN 950,000
Selling eXPENSES ......covmrmrrsmsmsmsmsassssssmsasassssssmsasasssssnses $280,000
Administrative eXpenses.........ccocuvrimmsmrsmrsmssmssnssnssnssnns 212,000 492,000
458,000
Other income and expense
Interest revenue...... s 31,000
Income from operations..........ccccrecmrcrisssesscnsnssessnnnas 489,000
Interest eXPense ... —— 45,000
Income before income tax.....ccccccrcrcmrrcsmmrcssneesssanen 444,000
Income tax ($444,000 X 30%)...ccccccurrsermsmsarsnsesmsnsasseses 133,200
[N\ =3 ] g Lo o] 3 1= N $ 310,800
Earnings per share........orernmrsssssssnsssssssssssssssssas $4.44*

*$310,800 + 70,000 shares.

BRIEF EXERCISE 4-3

(@) Other income and expense = €800,000 — 